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Corporate Profile

NESIL Y

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability on 22 February 2013. The Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) are a fast-growing manufacturer of recycled copper products,
also known as copper semis, in Southwest China. The shares of the
Company were listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 21 February 2014 (the “Listing
Date”).

We process recycled scrap copper and, to a lesser extent, electrolytic
copper, to manufacture a range of copper products, including copper
wirerods, copper wires, copper plates and copper granules. Beginning
in 2013, we also sell a range of communication cables and power
transmission and distribution cables using copper wirerods that we
produce as the principal raw material. We are increasing our production
capacity and plan to broaden our product range and pursue opportunities
for further vertical integration. In light of favourable development trends
in China and our advantages in raw material supply, facility location and
preferential governmental policies, we believe we are well positioned to
become a leading integrated recycled copper product supplier in China
covering the key value-creating activities in the industry chain.

We currently own and operate three production facilities for recycled
copper products. The facilities of our subsidiaries Mianyang Jinxin Copper
Co., Ltd. ("Jinxin") and Mianyang Tongxin Copper Co., Ltd. (“Tongxin")
are located in Mianyang, Sichuan Province and the facility of our subsidiary
Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei Copper Co., Ltd. (“Xiangbei”) is located in Miluo,
Hunan Province. Our Jinxin, Tongxin and Xiangbei facilities are currently in
commercial production.
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This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available on
the Company’s website at http:/Avww.cmru.com.cn/. Shareholders who
have chosen to receive the corporate communications of the Company
(the "Corporate Communications”) in either the English version or
the Chinese version may request for a copy in the other language. The
annual report in the requested language will be sent free of charge by
the Company upon request.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of language(s)
(either English only or Chinese only or both languages) of Corporate
Communications.

Shareholders may send their request to change their choice of
language(s) of Corporate Communications by notice in writing to the
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar of the Company with Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd. at 17M Floor Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of China Metal
Resources Utilization Limited (“CMRU” or the “Company”), | hereby
present the audited consolidated annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the twelve months ended 31
December 2013. This is the Group’s first annual report since the Group’s
listing on 21 February 2014.

China’s scrap copper industry has developed rapidly with the government’s
increasing emphasis on environmental protection. As the recycling and
metal processing industry is a key component in the development of
a circular economy, the PRC government has introduced a series of
supporting measures and policies designed to promote recycling in China.
CMRU benefited from preferential government policies, which include
preferential corporate income tax rate from China’s Western Development
Campaign, as well as tax refunds, government grants and subsidies etc.,
which have enabled the healthy development of the Group.

As a result of China’s rapid economic development and urbanization,
copper consumption in China continued to grow. In addition, as copper
resources are relatively short in supply in China, and there exists strong
demand for copper products manufactured from scrap copper, it is
predicted that copper production in China will continue to fall below
demand in the coming years. Further, to stimulate growth in the domestic
economy, the PRC government is going to build and upgrade power
transmission and distribution, communication and transportation networks
etc., which will lead to substantially higher demand of cable products, and
will greatly benefit the development of the Group.

In 2013, the Group made substantial progress in various businesses. In
particular, the second production lines of Tongxin facility and Jinxin facility
both commenced production in November 2013, raising the Group's
annual production capacity for recycled copper products to 146,800 metric
tons. With the substantial completion of the 30,000 metric tons annual
production capacity expansion of the Xiangbei facility at the beginning of
2014, the Group’s current total annual production capacity for recycled
copper products is estimated to reach 176,800 metric tons, demonstrating
the growth potential of the Group and management's execution capability.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

CMRU was successfully listed on the Stock Exchange on 21 February
2014. Not only does this mark a new milestone in the Group’s business
development, funds raised from the public offering of shares will also
substantially boost the future development of the Group. Since its
establishment, the Group in conformity with the corporate concept of
“innovation, mission, focus”, has expanded its scale and product coverage
through mergers and acquisitions of mid-down-stream businesses,
becoming one of the few recycled copper manufacturers in China to have
an integrated mid-down-stream industry chain. We believe the vertical
integration business model can increase market share and reinforce the
Group's position as the leading producer of recycled copper products in
North-western China.

In future, apart from mergers and acquisitions of mid-down-stream
businesses, the Group will also consider upstream integration
opportunities to ensure a stable supply of raw materials and to reduce the
risk of price fluctuation of raw materials. The Group will, through a series
of strategic measures, including effective management expansion and
integration of recent acquisitions, enhance operating efficiency, strengthen
research and development capabilities and production capacity, grasp
growth opportunities arising from the strong demand of copper products.
With the implementation of strategic business development measures and
propelled by new capital of the Group, management is confident with the
long-term development of the Group and will strive to bring attractive
returns to shareholders in the long run.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board and management, | would like to express
my sincere gratitude to all employees for their effort and contributions for
the Group during the year, as well as the full support of the shareholders.
I would also like to express my sincere gratitude towards shareholders,
investors, customers, suppliers and business partners who have provided
their full support.

Mr. Yu Jianqiu
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

27 March 2014
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY REVIEW
China Copper Semis Industry

The copper semis industry in China has witnessed rapid development over
the last two decades. Currently, the annual semis production in China is
over 10.0 million metric tons. China is both the largest producer of copper
semis, producing over 40% of the world’s total output, and the largest
consumer of copper semis.

Demand for semis is growing strongly on the back of intense industry
activities. Over the past few years, domestic demand for copper semis
has increased at a Compound Annual Growth Rate (“CAGR") close to
10.0%. Among the major products, consumption of wirerod grew fastest
at a CAGR over 10.0%, exceeding that of the production, as the demand
is being fuelled by increases in consumption of both low voltage energy
cables (e.g. building wire, appliance wire and automotive wire) and copper
power wires. These are driven by the continuing economic development
of China (building wire and copper power wire) and by the strengthening
manufacturing base that is developing in China (appliance and automotive
wire).

We expect China’s semis production to grow as a result of the government
promotion of investment in copper-intensive sectors under the 12th Five-
Year Plan.

The Chinese Metallic Wire and Cable Industry

China is the largest producer of metallic wires and cables globally by
volume. The Chinese metallic wire and cable market expanded at a
greater rate than the world as a whole over the last decade, increasing
from under 20% of global market share to over 30% during this period.
The highest growth has been seen in the power cable segment, which has
increased at a CAGR over 10.0% in the past few years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE SR o

We have a cautiously optimistic outlook for power cable usage in
power infrastructure in future based on the following: 1) strong power
investment will continue to boost wire and cable demand, and 2) in terms
of power cables, the government will continue to improve electricity
accessibility and encourage industrialization in the inland and western
region of the country, which will have great potential of both consumption
and production growth. China’s power industry investment from 2011 to
2015 is forecasted to be RMB6.1 trillion, up 88.3% compared to the past
five years, including a power generation investment of RMB3.2 trillion
and a power grid investment of RMB2.9 trillion. In terms of the long-
term market, we believe that the strong investment in the electric power
industry will boost power cable consumption.

China accounted for 11% of the world market of copper telecom cables
and this market share is anticipated to keep steady by 2016. China’s
demand for internal telecom/data cable has experienced a significant
growth with CAGR over 25.0% by volume and by value in the past few
years. They are mostly used in financial, government, transportation
industries and large international firms, and the demand is expected to
grow steadily going forward. However, the demand for external copper
telecom cables has declined over the past few years, and is expected to
continue to decline in coming years by volume. The reasons for these
substantial reductions arise from the switch in China from net additions
of fixed lines using traditional copper twisted pairs in all previous years to
a net reduction in recent years, as families in general consider that a fixed
landline is not needed in addition to mobile cellular service.

Business review

We are a fast-growing manufacturer of recycled copper products, also
known as copper semis, in Southwest China. We process recycled scrap
copper and, to a lesser extent, electrolytic copper, to manufacture a range
of copper products, including copper wirerods, copper wires, copper
plates and copper granules. Beginning in 2013, we also sell a range of
communication cables and power transmission and distribution cables
using copper wirerods that we produce as the principal raw materials. We
are increasing our production capacity and plan to broaden our product
range and pursue opportunities for further vertical integration. In light of
the favorable development trends in China and our advantages in raw
materials supply, facility location and preferential governmental policies,
we believe that we are well positioned to become a leading integrated
recycled copper product supplier in China covering the key value-creating
activities in the industry chain.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI€BERANAER AT
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During 2013, we accomplished a number of milestones in our business
history. For instance, we completed the construction of our Tongxin facility,
which produces copper wirerods and wires and has an estimated annual
production capacity of 100,000 metric tons of recycled copper products.
After a successful run and trial production, commercial production
commenced in November 2013. In addition, commercial production at the
second production line at our Jinxin facility, also commenced in November
2013.

As of the date of this report, our Jinxin, Tongxin and Xiangbei facilities
had a total estimated annual production capacity for recycled copper
products of 176,800 metric tons (excluding copper granules). In addition,
our Tongxin facility is expected to have an annual production capacity
(measured by copper consumption) for enameled wires of 30,000 metric
tons in the second quarter of 2014.

Future prospects/Outlook

With the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on 21
February 2014 and the completion of our global offering, the Group
raised a total of gross proceeds of approximately HK$600.9 million and
will utilize the fund raised according to the planned usage specified in the
prospectus of the Company dated 11 February 2014 (the “Prospectus”),
which includes, among others, funding our planned capital expenditure in
relation to additions to property, plant and equipment, and research and
development projects of Mianyang Baohe Taiyue Communications Cable
Co., Ltd. ("Baohe Taiyue”) and Sichuan Baohe Xinshiji Cable Co., Ltd.
(“Baohe Xinshiji”) and expansion of production capacity at Xiangbei as
well as repayment of loans.

Xiangbei's 30,000 metric tons annual production capacity expansion
is substantially completed as of the date of this report, commercial
production is expected to begin in the second quarter of 2014.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The construction of Baohe Xinshiji's new production facility next to
our Tongxin facility in the industrial park within the Youxian Economic
Development Zone, Mianyang, Sichuan Province (“Youxian Industrial
Park”) is substantially completed as of the date of this report. Baohe
Xinshiji facility will have two production lines with an aggregate estimated
annual production capacity (measured by copper consumption) of 21,300
metric tons of power transmission and distribution cables. Currently,
a substantial part of the equipment for manufacturing power and
transmission cables has been delivered to the new plant. Production in the
new plant is expected to commence in the second quarter of 2014.

Baohe Taiyue's new production facility, which is next to our Tongxin
facility in the Youxian Industrial Park, is presently at the planning and
design phase. Baohe Taiyue's facility will have three production lines
with an aggregate estimated annual production capacity (measured by
copper consumption) of 16,800 metric tons of communication cables.
Construction of this facility is expected to commence in the second
quarter of 2014. Currently, part of the equipment for manufacturing
communication cables we purchased for this facility has been transferred
to us and is temporarily housed in our Tongxin facility pending completion
of this facility. Some of our communication cable products are currently
produced at such interim manufacturing facility.

Separately, we are in preparation for setting up a sales office and a
warehouse facility in Shanghai from which our customers will be able to
collect our products directly. We believe this collection option will provide
an attractive alternative to our customers in the surrounding area.

In the near term, we will be focusing our efforts on the integration of
Baohe Taiyue and Baohe Xinshiji, ensuring that maximum synergies and
benefits can be derived from such integrations. In addition, we will also
be seeking potential acquisition opportunities within the industry supply
chain which can further enhance the Group’s operational and financial
performance.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI€BERANAER AT
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial review Bf #%5 [E B8
Turnover =20

Our turnover represents the fair value of consideration received or HEPIMEEEERAFTEBREPRBEEEYERBE K
receivable for sales of goods and services in the ordinary course of  SKEWRNREMNQATE - EEH (CHHREERREMIIE -
business. Turnover is shown net-of-VAT and other taxes, returns and EERITIN) INCHEBERIEAHEETED -
discounts after eliminating sales within our Group.

The following table sets forth an analysis of our turnover: TREINHFIHEEROME DM -

2013 2012
RMB’000 A R¥ T 7t RMB'000 ARMEFIT

Sales of recycled copper products HEBERE®D 2,144,429 1,486,238
Sales of power transmission and distribution cables $4§&E XA E4E 528,629 -
Sales of communication cables HEBEEE 250,776 -
Sales of scrap materials SHEEREZEM B 31,177 24,290
Contract manufacturing income ERZERA 3,993 2,605

2,959,004 1,513,133

From 2013, turnover from sales of goods also includes sales of ~ H2013% & - fﬁ%%’i%ﬁﬁ%%%%ﬁﬁ %{%ﬂfxt&%ﬂl
communication cables and power transmission and distribution cables by ~ DRI ELMBEEELXEEHHEE - RfIE
Baohe Taiyue and Baohe Xinshiji, respectively. Some of our customers in E#ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁgﬁmmim\ °

our communication cables business are located overseas.

Turnover for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to RMB2,959.0 & ZE2013%12A31R It F E W 2 X E R/ AR &
million, representing an increase of 95.6% from RMB1,513.1 million for ~ 2,959,000,0007T * ¥ &L 2012412 A31H IEFEHAR
the year ended 31 December 2012. This increase was mainly due to the ~ #1,513,100,0007C £7195.6% ° &7+ &= Ef A #2013
consolidation of Baohe Taiyue’s and Baohe Xinshiji's results from 1 January 1A 1HE& #f5F AMRMIH R ARMF LA REU R BE
2013 and an increase in the sales volume of recycled copper products, #ZEMMEE LTT BRESERBERNERNFHEER
partially offset by a decrease in the average selling price for recycled &b -

copper products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE SR o

Turnover from sales of power transmission and distribution cables
amounted to RMB528.6 million, representing a sales volume of
approximately 13,404 metric tons and an average selling price of
RMB39,438 per metric ton for the year ended 31 December 2013.
Turnover from sales of communication cables amounted to RMB250.8
million, representing a sales volume of 3,106 metric tons and an
average selling price of RMB80,739 per metric ton for the year ended
31 December 2013. We did not recognize any turnover from sales of
communication cables and power transmission and distribution cables
for the year ended 31 December 2012 prior to the acquisitions of Baohe
Taiyue and Baohe Xinshiji.

Turnover from recycled copper products amounted to RMB2,144.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2013, representing an increase
of 44.3% from RMB1,486.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2012, reflecting mainly an increase of 57.6% in the sales volume of
recycled copper products from 30,014 metric tons for the year ended 31
December 2012 to 47,293 metric tons for the year ended 31 December
2013. The increase in sales volume was mainly generated by an increase in
our production as a result of the availability of more working capital. The
overall average selling price of our recycled copper products decreased by
8.4% from RMB49,518 per metric ton for the year ended 31 December
2012 to RMB45,344 per metric ton for the year ended 31 December
2013.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2013 totaled RMB2,828.9
million, representing an increase of 101.9% from RMB1,401.4 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012. The increase was mainly due to the
additional cost of sales arising from the consolidation of Baohe Taiyue's
and Baohe Xinshiji's results from 1 January 2013 and an increase in the
sales volume of our recycled copper products.

The cost of raw materials increased by 96.0% from RMB1,366.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2012 to RMB2,678.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2013. Direct materials cost was the largest
component of the Company’s cost of sales, accounting for approximately
97.5% and 94.7% of the total cost of sales for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 2013, respectively.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI€BERANAER AT
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Cost of sales, other than raw materials and finished goods purchased, was
RMB150.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2013, representing
an increase of 326.3% from RMB35.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2012. The increase was mainly attributable to the processing
fees of RMB9.4 million paid by Baohe Taiyue to Guangzhou Taiyue
Communications Cable Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou Taiyue”) and RMB51.2
million paid by Baohe Xinshiji to Sichuan Xinshiji. The increase was also
attributable to an increase in VAT-surtax from RMB9.1 million to RMB45.7
million. Such VAT-surtax is calculated with reference to the amounts of net
VAT paid to the tax authorities. For the year ended 31 December 2013,
we increased our purchases of raw materials from individual suppliers who
did not provide VAT invoices, as a result, our net VAT paid after deducting
input VAT increased as compared to the amount paid for the year ended
31 December 2012.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our gross profit was RMB130.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2013, representing an increase of 16.5% from RMB111.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2012. Our gross profit margin for the year
ended 31 December 2013 decreased to 4.4% from 7.4% for the year
ended 31 December 2012.

The deterioration in gross profit margin was mainly due to the decrease
in average selling price of recycled copper products by 8.4% without a
comparable decrease in the average raw materials costs. Furthermore,
the Group had been sourcing more of its scrap copper from vendors who
did not provide VAT invoices, which resulted in higher VAT refunds to us,
and on an ex-VAT basis, but these vendors generally sold scrap copper
at a higher price. The decrease in gross profit margin of recycled copper
business was partly offset by the increase in the relative size of cable
segments, both communication cable segment and power cable segment
commands higher gross profit margin than that of recycled copper
products.
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Other revenue

Other revenue increased significantly to RMB280.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2013 from RMB55.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2012. Tongxin and Xiangbei began to receive VAT refunds
under the Comprehensive Utilization of Resources Policy from the third
quarter of 2012 and Jinxin began to receive such VAT refunds from the
third quarter of 2013 when they obtained the relevant approvals from
the tax authorities. The increase in Jinxin's VAT refunds was primarily due
to difference in timing of receiving such VAT refunds under the Social
Welfare Enterprise Policy. During the year ended 31 December 2013,
Tongxin and Baohe Xinshiji also received government grants and subsidies
from the local government.

Other net income/(loss)

Our other net income for the year ended 31 December 2013 was RMBO0.4
million as compared to our other net loss of RMB1.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2012. Our other net income for the year ended 31
December 2013 mainly comprised a net gain of RMB2.4 million on copper
futures contracts trading on the Shanghai Futures Exchange. Our other
net loss for the year ended 31 December 2012 mainly comprised a loss of
RMB2.2 million from the change in fair value of contingent consideration
liabilities.

Selling and distribution expenses

Our selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2013 were RMB9.1 million, representing an increase of 54.2% from
RMB5.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2012. The increase was
primarily due to the consolidation of Baohe Taiyue’s and Baohe Xinshiji's
results for the year ended 31 December 2013.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI€BERANAER AT
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Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2013 were
RMB63.6 million, representing an increase of 211.8% from RMB20.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2012. The increase was
primarily due to the recognition of listing expenses of RMB22.3 million
in connection with the listing of the Company’s shares, administrative
and consultancy fees of RMB2.7 million to Sichuan Baohe Fushan
Resources Recycling Development Co., Ltd. (“Baohe Fushan”) under
the management consultancy agreements Baohe Fushan entered into
with Tongxin, Baohe Taiyue and Baohe Xinshiji in 2012, together with
supplemental agreements entered in July 2013 and December 2013, (the
“Management Consultancy Agreements”), amortisation of intangible
assets of RMB3.7 million in relation to Baohe Taiyue and Baohe Xinshiji
and consolidation of Baohe Taiyue's and Baohe Xinshiji's results from 1
January 2013.

Capital structure

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the capital structure of
the Group mainly consisted of shareholders’ equity, bank and other
borrowings, loans from and amounts due to related parties and finance
leases.

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s bank and cash balances (excluding
pledged deposits of RMB34.0 million) amounted to RMB78.6 million (as at
31 December 2012: RMB19.6 million).

The Group’s inventories increased by RMB26.4 million to RMB140.2
million and our trade and bills receivables increased by RMB347.8 million
to RMB677.1 million (as at 31 December 2012: RMB113.7 million and
RMB329.3 million respectively). The inventory turnover days and trade and
bills receivable turnover days were 16.4 days and 62.1 days respectively,
compared to 29.7 days and 47.6 days in 2012. Decrease in inventory
turnover days was mainly due to the synergy effect streaming from a low
inventory level required to maintain by our cable business as almost all
of their copper wirerods and copper wires, as the major raw materials
for producing communication, power and transmission cables, were
supplied internally by our recycled copper business. Increase in trade and
bills receivable turnover days was mainly due to the fact that we granted
the customers of our power transmission and distribution cable and
communication cable businesses a longer credit period than the customers
of our recycled copper business.
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Trade and bills payables increased by RMB75.6 million to RMB193.1
million as at 31 December 2013 (as at 31 December 2012: RMB117.5
million), the payable turnover days was 20.0 days, compared to 25.4 days
in 2012. Decrease in the payable turnover days was due to an increase
in our advance payments to suppliers which were used to offset the
payment for goods upon suppliers’ delivery of goods. We believe such
advance payments help us to secure raw materials. We endeavor to keep
our trade and bills payable turnover days relatively low mainly because our
prompt payment pattern enhances our suppliers’ willingness to supply raw
materials to us and, therefore, helps us to secure raw materials.

The Group’s total bank and other borrowings increased by RMB249.4
million to RMB424.4 million as at 31 December 2013 (as at 31 December
2012: RMB175.0 million). In respect of the Group’s borrowings, the Group
has to comply with certain restrictive financial covenants and certain assets
were pledged as security.

Loans from and amounts due to related parties as at 31 December
2013 decreased by RMB124.9 million to RMB115.1 million (as at 31
December 2012: RMB240.0 million) mainly due to the repayments of
certain loans to related parties and the exercise of share options by Mr.
Yu Jiangiu on 16 October 2013 with a consideration of RMB64.0 million
that was fully settled by way of setting off an equivalent amount due to
Mr. Yu lJiangiu from the Group. Subsequent to 31 December 2013, the
Group had obtained bridge loans to repay in full the loans from Gushan
Environmental Energy Limited (“Gushan”) and amounts due to Gushan,
Carling Technology Limited and Mr. Yu Jiangiu prior to the listing of the
Company'’s shares on 21 February 2014.

The following table sets forth certain financial ratios of our Group as of
the dates indicated:

M2013F 1274318 - B 5 B RIE & B A 2 & RIE S N
T AR #75,600,0007T & A K #193,100,0007T (72012
F12H318 : AR%117,500,0007T) + ENREAEREA
20.08 ' M2012F Al 525.48 - BN RIERAERE T ET)
B B AP TE A FE P B0 FRIE S N - B B RIE AR IR S A AR
EERXNEREXNONER - ZMRE  ZFRNHEY
BPREBEIMERME - RPIBORERIENE 5 EMNFKE
REMZERASRE  FZ2HRBRMARGTROERXSH
FERIE FE R MM IR R AR - 808 By R PR R VS R A
# e

20135128318 - AEEMBETERAE R HMER
T ARM249,400,0007T & A K #424,400,0007T (74
20124F12A318 « AR¥175,000,0005T) « ANEEARE
EEETE TYBREGERRERETEE -

F2013F 124318 + B8 77 B 20K FE -] B8 B 05 2B R 2
T AR#124,900,0007T % AR #115,100,0007T (72012
#12H318 : AR #240,000,0007T) " TEHNEET
B RIE TR AL AR R20135F10A16H a2k %k
EITEHMERNERE  ZBETEERNORESARKE
64,000,0007T * B 3B K 85 N & B B 51 2 I AW S
SHEIEAEH I - W2013F12A318% - AEEESFR
EERIWEMR2014562A218 L WA AEABEEER
EEREERERAR ([HiZ2]) NERKEMERZ - M
BRI BR A B REE T ERE -

TREIINARBHASENE THBLE

As at 31 December A12831H

2013 2012
Current ratio PEE S 1.2 0.9
Quick ratio RE)LLE 1.1 0.7
Debt to equity ratio* EIR R L & 97.8% 139.1%
Net debt to equity ratio* EETA RS T R 85.0% 132.5%
* (Total interest-bearing debts plus amounts due to related parties)/total equity * (BRI BEBMENBEESFE) BaE
# (Total interest-bearing debts plus amounts due to related parties less cash and ~ * (Bt BEEMEMEESRERRSRASSAEEE),/

cash equivalents)/total equity
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The improvements of current ratio and quick ratio during the year ended
31 December 2013 were primarily attributable to (i) the Group having
obtained certain long term bank loans which amounted to RMB120.0
million as at 31 December 2013; (ii) the Group having entered into a
sale and finance lease-back arrangement of RMB60.0 million with a term
of five years, of which RMB48.0 million was classified as non-current
liability and (iii) the exercise of share options by Mr. Yu Jiangiu with a
consideration of RMB64.0 million that was fully settled by way of setting
off an equivalent amount due to Mr. Yu Jiangiu from the Group.

The improvements in debt to equity ratio and net debt to equity ratio
during the year ended 31 December 2013 were mainly because the
increase in equity was faster than the increase in total borrowings
including bank loans, obligations under finance leases and loans and
advances from related parties.

On 21 February 2014, the shares of the Company became listed on
the Stock Exchange, pursuant to which 525,001,600 ordinary shares
of HK$0.10 each were issued at a price of HK$1.13 per share by the
Company, the total gross proceeds amounted to approximately HK$593.2
million. On 14 March 2014, the over-allotment option described in the
Prospectus was partially exercised by the sole global coordinator (on behalf
of the international underwriters) in respect of an aggregate of 6,824,000
shares, representing approximately 1.1% of the offer shares initially
available under the global offering. The 6,824,000 shares were issued and
allotted by the Company at HK$1.13 per share, the total gross proceeds
amounted to approximately HK$7.7 million.

Employee and remuneration policy

As of 31 December 2013, the Group had over 600 employees in total, in
which the majority are located in the PRC whilst the rest are located in
Hong Kong.

Salaries, bonuses and other cash subsidies are determined with reference
to the performance and length of service of individual employees.

The Company operates the Share Option Scheme (as defined below) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests
of the Company. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the
Report of Directors.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Property Valuation

DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited, an independent property valuer, has
valued our property interests including land use rights as at 30 November
2013 at RMB207.5 million. The texts of its letter, summary of valuation
and the detail of valuation certificates are set out in Appendix IV to the
Prospectus. These properties were not stated at such valuation in the
financial statements of the Group. No additional depreciation/amortisation
would be charged against the income statement of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013 had it been stated at such valuation.

Charge on assets
The following table sets forth the net book value of assets under pledge

for certain banking facilities, bills payable facilities, obligations under
finance leases and outstanding futures contracts as of the dates indicated:

L ESEIE]

BUMEMEMEAERLTERA AT HKMRN2013
FURAEMYER(BRELIHERAE) AARE
207,500,0007C » E g - HEMERGEZFEFIBEHNE
[i% 2 B 857 7Y o 5% 5 ¥ 2 N MR AE A (B A BR DI A0 AN Sk B B 75 3R
Ko AZMEESER - @AEAEEEZE2013F12A31H
IEFERR R NINBREEINTE B -

EHRArEEEE

TRBIRFARAYAEENEEFREESHESE TR
TEE ENEERRE BREBESTHNEERRIHNA
EAKERER

As at 31 December R12831H
2013 2012

RMB’000 A R¥ T 7t RMB'000 ARMFIT

Inventories TE 78,612 89,802
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB N&E 127,688 7,803
Lease prepayments HETBERR 35,071 4,319
Prepayment for land use rights T AR TR SR - 13,410
Government grants receivable JE UK IR i 486 B 12,766 18,041
Deposits with guarantee companies RERARBETER 2,500 2,400
Deposits with banks RERITEFR 26,711 12,045
Deposit with lessor of finance leases REVEREQRMNEFR 4,800 -
Deposits with securities broker REF L TFR - 174

288,148 147,994
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Commodity risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the Group’s products
are scrap copper. The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the price of
copper which are influenced by global as well as regional supply and
demand conditions. Fluctuations in the prices of copper could adversely
affect the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses copper futures
contracts to mitigate its exposure against price fluctuations of copper
raw materials. The market value of futures contracts is based on quoted
market price at settlement or balance sheet date. The Group does not
have significant outstanding copper futures contracts as at 31 December
2013 and 2012 (as at 31 December 2012: Nil). The net realised and
unrealised gains, in aggregate, of RMB2.4 million and RMBO0.9 million
were recognized in the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

Foreign currency risk

The functional currency of a majority of the entities within our Group is
RMB and most of the transactions are settled in RMB. However, we are
exposed to currency risk primarily related to amounts due to and from
related parties, loans from related parties and cash balances that are
denominated in US dollars and/or Hong Kong dollars. During the year
ended 31 December 2013, there was no material impact to the Group
arising from the fluctuation in the exchange rates of these currencies. The
Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and did not commit to
any financial instruments to hedge its foreign exchange exposure during
the year ended 31 December 2013.

Capital expenditures

Our planned future capital expenditures mainly include the purchase of
additional plant, machinery and land which we believe would facilitate
the growth of our business. Our capital expenditures represent additions
to property, plant and equipment and payments for lease prepayments on
lands of approximately RMB230.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2013. The Group will use various ways, including but not limited to cash
on hand (including the proceeds from the initial public offering), cash flow
from operation and bank borrowings to satisfy the capital requirement of
the Group to implement its development and expansion of Xiangbei.

We plan to utilize the funds raised from the global offering to finance the
capital expenditures in relation to the current expansion plans on hand.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2013, the capital commitments in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and land use rights
contracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial statements
amounted to RMB81.4 million (2012: RMB151.6 million).

Significant investments held

Except for investments in subsidiaries, the Group did not hold any
significant investment in equity interest in any other company during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any
material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies,
save as disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2012, Jinxin had entered into a cross guarantee
agreement with a bank in respect of bills payable facilities totaling
RMB40.0 million granted to Jinxin, a supplier and two customers of Jinxin
(“Contracted Parties”) which remain in force so long as the Contracted
Parties have drawn down under the banking facilities. According to the
cross guarantee agreement, the Contracted Parties that are a party to the
guarantee arrangement are jointly and severally liable for all and any of
the borrowings of each of them from the bank which is the beneficiary of
the guarantee.

At at 31 December 2012, the Directors did not consider it probable that a
claim will be made against the Group under any of the above guarantees.
The maximum liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2012 under the
cross guarantees are the aggregate amount of the facilities available for
the two customers and a supplier of RMB25.0 million.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI€BERANAER AT
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On 14 November 2013, each of the Contracted Parties entered into a
supplemental agreement with the bank. Pursuant to the supplemental
agreements, the Contracted Parties agreed to place deposits in an
aggregate amount of RMB40.0 million to secure the bills payable facilities
in full. Jinxin is responsible for RMB15.0 million and other Contracted
Parties are responsible for the remaining RMB25.0 million in connection
with the respective amounts of bills payable facilities available to Jinxin
and other Contracted Parties. On the same day, the Contracted Parties
deposited the required amounts under the supplemental agreements. As
such, the Group had no contingent liabilities under the cross guarantee
arrangement at 31 December 2013. The Group had no other material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2013.

Human resources

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a total of 621 employees.
The Group’s staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2013 were
approximately RMB17.6 million (2012: RMB19.4 million). The Group offers
its staff competitive remuneration packages. In addition, discretionary
bonuses and share options may also be granted to eligible staff based on
individual and Group’s performance. The Group is committed to nurturing
a learning and sharing culture in the organization. Heavy emphasis is
placed on the training and development of individual staff and team
building, as the Group’s success is dependent on the contribution of all
functional divisions comprising skilled and motivated staff.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEE

Directors
Executive Directors

Mr. Yu lJianqiu (81# %), age 49, is the founder of our Group and
the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an executive director of our
Company. Mr. Yu is primarily responsible for the overall business and
strategy of our Group. He also serves as a director in all of our subsidiaries.
Through his holdings in Epoch Keen Limited, Mr. Yu is a major controlling
shareholder of our Company. Mr. Yu has over 20 years of experience in
corporate operations and management in the petrochemical, automobile
and renewable energy sectors. He was the chairman and principal
executive officer of Gushan, a company whose American depositary
shares were listed on the New York Stock Exchange from December 2007
to October 2012. Mr. Yu also founded a number of subsidiaries of the
Gushan Group between 1996 and 2008. Mr. Yu received his degree of
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) from Hautes Etudes
Commerciales de Paris on 13 December, 2010. In 2002, he was elected as
a member of the Fuzhou Committee of the 10th Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Committee and a member of the Santai County Committee
of the 11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee. He was
appointed as a director of our Company on 22 February, 2013 and
redesignated as an executive director on 16 August 2013.

Mr. Liu Hanjiu (Z21i£30), age 49, is an executive director of our Company.
He co-founded Jinxin in February 2009 and currently serves as a director
and the general manager of Jinxin and Tongxin. Mr. Liu is primarily
responsible for the overall operation of our Group. Mr. Liu has over 30
years of experience in the metal recycling sector in Mianyang City, Sichuan
Province. In addition to Jinxin, he also founded Mianyang Changjiu Metal
Processing Co., Ltd. (4[5 TH RIAE B IN T HBR A 7)), the principal business
of which is the manufacture of copper granules, in 2003 and served as
its general manager between 2003 and 2008. Between 2000 and 2003,
Mr. Liu held the position as the general manager of Mianyang Longjiu
Metal Recycling Co., Ltd. (2[5 EREBEUAER AR, the principal
business of which is the manufacture of copper granules, which was also
established by him in 2000. Prior to establishing his own companies which
specialized in scrap metal recycling and process, Mr. Liu was the factory
chief of Mianyang Mianzhong Metal Processing and Smelting Factory (4%
f5 i 4% < /&8 h /A BRI), the principal business of which is the refining
of copper slag, from 1990 to 2000 and Mianyang Fucheng District Jinfeng
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Smelting Factory (4[5 M &3k & & 1§)8 BRER), the principal business of
which is the refining of copper slag, from 1986 to 1990. Mr. Liu was a sole
proprietor engaged in the recycling of waste and scrap materials between
1983 and 1986, after he had acquired the techniques for processing and
smelting non-ferrous metal through his apprenticeship between 1979
and 1983. Mr. Liu currently serves as a people’s representative to the
People’s Congress of Mianyang Nongke District Songya Town Committee.
He was also elected as a people’s representative to the People’s Congress
of Shitang Town, Fucheng District, Mianyang City in 2002 and 2005,
respectively. Mr. Liu studied in middle school. Mr. Liu was appointed as an
executive director of our Company on 16 August 2013.

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson (BES), 48, is an executive director of our
Company. He is in charge of our corporate and strategic development. Mr.
Kwong is also a director of Engen Investments Limited (“Engen”), True
Excel Holdings Limited, Alpha Legend Holdings Limited, Alpha Business
Investments Limited and Alpha Universe Group Limited. Mr. Kwong was
the President of Gushan. He is also an independent non-executive director
of C.banner International Holdings Limited, the principal business of
which is the manufacture and sale of branded fashion footwear, since
26 August, 2011 and China Outfitters Holdings Limited, the principal
business of which is the design, manufacture, marketing and sale of
apparel products and accessories in China with a focus on menswear,
since 8 June, 2011, both of which are listed on the Stock Exchange since
23 September, 2011 and 9 December, 2011, respectively. Mr. Kwong has
12 years of experience in corporate finance and equity capital markets in
Asia, having previously worked at a number of investment banks in Hong
Kong. Prior to joining Gushan in 2006, he was the managing director of
investment banking and he held the position as the head of Hong Kong
and China equity capital markets at CLSA Equity Capital Markets Limited
since March 2004. From 2002 to 2003, Mr. Kwong was a director and the
head of equity capital markets for Cazenove Asia Limited, an investment
bank. After graduating from University of Cambridge, England with a
bachelor’s degree in Arts in 1987, he qualified as a chartered accountant
in the United Kingdom in 1991. Mr. Kwong is currently an associate
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountant in England and Wales,
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Kwong was appointed as an
executive director of our Company on 16 August 2013.
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EEZNEREIRE

Mr. Huang Weiping (E{&%), age 53, is an executive director of our
Company. Mr. Huang co-founded Xiangbei in 2010 and is currently a
director and the general manager of Xiangbei. Mr. Huang is in charge
of production technology and engineering of our Group. Mr. Huang has
more than 10 years of experience in the PRC metal material industry.
Prior to the establishment of Xiangbei, Mr. Huang was a manager at
Fujian Lingzhi Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. (f@i@ & ERREHTE
[R/27]), the principal business of which is the design and construction
of environmental projects, from 2009 to 2011, Fuzhou Kebi Chemical
Materials Co., Limited (f&/N®Htb THEHEBR A 7)), the principal business
of which is the manufacture and sale of synthetic wax, from 2006 to 2009
and Tricon Chemicals Inc., the principal business of which is the trade of
chemicals and metal materials, from 2001 to 2005. He is a fellow member
of the Investment Casting Institute and an executive member of China
Precision Casting Branch Association of China Foundry Association (%
BEHGREE
of the Chinese and Foreign Entrepreneurs’ Club of Fujian Province (1&

SHE Ny

§2359€). Mr. Huang also serves as an executive member

BAPIMEREES) and the Association of Entrepreneurs of Private
Companies of Fuzhou City (f&IM WAL E R E). Mr. Huang was
appointed as an executive director of our Company on 16 August 2013.

Ms. Zhu Yufen (5%k £3%), age 51, is an executive director of our Company.
Ms. Zhu has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
management. She is primarily responsible for our financial reporting and
accounting affairs. Ms. Zhu is also vice president in charge of finance
of Jinxin, since July 2009. Prior to joining Jinxin, she was a vice general
manager and the head of finance department of Mianyang Santai Vise
Co., Ltd. (BB =A% A AR R 7)), the principal business of which
is the manufacture and sale of vises, from 1978 to 2009. Ms. Zhu was

appointed as an executive director of our Company on 16 August 2013.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI€BERANAER AT

BEEMEE S35 EALTMMITESE - EEEN2010
FERAPORIL  BAMIEMNESRALE - BEEEE
AEENEERMEIR SAERTESEMRITER
BE10FEE o FRAEMMILRT - H2009F =20114
REREEBRRHMRARAR (RFXEZXBRERNEED
BT R ) SR 0 2006 E2009F A M BT
MEAERAR (EXZEBEEHEAKE) HLE - UER
20014 22005 ATricon Chemicals Inc. (HEZEBE 2L
ERReBMEES) E%«Ii M RIBFEERENERE
BRTEFEREREFEDENEHES - BELENE
mEeE Etﬂﬁl\m%ﬂé%aﬁﬁ;f&%md‘\\\ MRECERIBEHES
HE - BEEN2013F8A16BEZ T AARNRIRITES -

KREFLL 515 BARANATESE - KLETR G
OB ERNEERB20FKR HIBBEMBRER

G5 ES c KL+ A2009F7ANMASENRIBEE  £5
B o SIASER - ME1978F E2009F B AEBE =4 %
atfaRA A (HEEXBEEHFTH) NEILERE RIS
HEE - KL LTH2013F8A16HEZERARNFNITE
$ °



Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Pan Liansheng (GBER), age 49, is an independent non-executive
director of our Company. Mr. Pan is engaged in non-ferrous metal and
carbon fiber composite materials research and possesses rich knowledge
on the non-ferrous metal industry. Mr. Pan also worked for the Third
Research Institute of the then Ministry of Astronautics of the PRC (1 EX
AR T 2058 =#13EhR), which is involved in the research of aerospace
metals and carbon fibre composite materials, between 1990 and 1993,
focusing on research relating to non-ferrous metal and carbon fiber
composite materials. From 1993 to 1994, Mr. Pan was seconded to
Sanwa Machinery Trading Co., Ltd., the principal business of which is
the design and manufacture of electrical machinery. From 1996 to 1998,
Mr. Pan worked as an assistant professor at Waseda University. From
1998 to 2008, Mr. Pan worked as a chief researcher in the research and
development center of Toshiba Ceramics Co., Ltd. (REZBEEKA &),
the principal business of which is the research and production of high-end
electronic ceramic and silicon semi-conductors. From 2008 to April 2013,
Mr. Pan worked as the general manager at Toshiba Ceramics Co., Ltd.
Currently, Mr. Pan is the Chairman of Thinkon Semiconductor Technology
(Shanghai) Corporation (¥ 888 (L /8)HE R A F), the principal
business of which is the supply of semiconductor material technology, a
position which he has held since April 2013. Mr. Pan graduated with a
bachelor’s degree from Beijing University of Aeronautics and Astronautics
where he focused on research relating to non-ferrous metal and carbon
fiber reinforced composite in 1985. He further obtained his doctorate
degree from Waseda University in 1998. Mr. Pan was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of our Company on 16 August 2013.

Directors and Senior Management
EFENERETEE

BMFHTES

BEBKE 495 RAAAIKBUIENITESE - BEE
NEECLBNREEEEMEBOMAE HECSBTE
MELZHH - HEETTMNI1990F £1993F AE R+
MARIEINFE=MER (AP RMREBANIREEEEM
BRTE) - XA BAREEE S MR OBAEE -
M1993F 219944 » Fh A REH B A=A IT#KA &
M(HEZEBRRTREETEEM) - K19965 51998
FoOELEARRHARSBNBEHIR - R19984F £2008
FoOBRFETRRCHEMA ST (KX EEBRFRRLE
EamETBAMEFEE) NEEMEE - R2008FF
2013548 » BRETRRZEAEMNEMABLLIE - BAT -
EEERYRYEEMR (LE) ARAR (HXEBEBE
HEFZEMBRAN) EF - hE2013F4AR—EEE
PEBRAT o B E AE 1985 F I M EMAKR B AR R E -
HEMBEINAELBNMEARCESWHMEETE -
fb 1998 F B ENS R A KM 2467 - F L EMN2013
F8A6HEETAARARBYIENITES -

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 &3}

23



24

Directors and Senior Management
EEZNEREIEE

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny (Z#&3R), age 46, is an independent non-
executive director of our Company. He was an independent director of
Gushan. He was the chief financial officer of NetEase.com Inc., one of the
China’s leading internet and online game service providers from 2002 to
2007. Prior to joining NetEase, Mr. Lee worked in the Hong Kong office
of KPMG for more than ten years specializing in auditing international
clients. Mr. Lee currently serves as an independent non-executive director
on the board of NetEase.com, Inc., which is listed on the NASDAQ Global
Select Market and as an independent non-executive director and the
chairman of the audit committee of Qunar Cayman Islands Limited, a
Chinese search-based online travel company, which is listed on NASDAQ
Global Market. He also serves as an independent non-executive director of
New Oriental Education & Technology Group Inc., the provider of private
educational services in China, and Concord Medical Services Holdings
Ltd., the principal business of which is the operation of a network of
radiotherapy and diagnostic imaging centers in China, both of which are
listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee was also an independent
non-executive director of Acorn International Inc., a media and branding
company in China which is listed on the New York Stock Exchange,
between 2007 and 2010. Mr. Lee graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and was awarded the Professional Diploma in Accounting in
November 1990. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of our Company on 16 August 2013.
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Ms. Liu Rong (ZI%&), age 49, is an independent non-executive director
of our Company. Ms. Liu is currently dean of the School of Public Finance
and Taxation of Southwest University of Finance and Economics in China,
a position she has held since 2008. Ms. Liu devoted almost her entire 25-
year career to the teaching and research on taxation and fiscal science
at the School of Public Finance and Taxation of Southwest University of
Finance and Economics. Ms. Liu has authored or co-authored more than
10 taxation textbooks and has published a number of articles and thesis
regarding taxation policy and taxation system on various nation-wide
journals and publications such as Economic Perspective ({4CEEB)EE))
and Public Finance Research ({BfEAf7E)). Her academic achievement
has won her the Outstanding Research Achievement Award (Band II)
handed down by the State Administration of Taxation of the PRC and the
Chinese Tax Institute (AHRWHER  PEHKEESEFHMAKNR —F
#%) in 2003. In recognition of her contribution, she was also selected as
an academic and technical leader (reserve candidate) of Sichuan Province
(P91 AT T A5 58 A& 8 AE) in 2004. She has also received the
accolade as a Famous Teacher of Sichuan Province (P9)1|%& %2 %) and
as an Expert With Extraordinary Contribution of Sichuan Province (P9JI1%&
ARHEBBESR). Ms. Liu is currently a chartered PRC tax accountant and
a fellow member of the China Public Finance Society (ff BIBA I E®), the
Chinese Tax Institute (F EF{#%E &) and Sichuan Association of Chartered
Tax Accountants (P9I 7= EZ7%AM1%E). She also serves as vice president
of the International Taxation Association of Sichuan Province (P9)I|& B
BEIU &) and the International Taxation Association of Chengdu City
(AREPTEEEFIUEE). Ms. Liu obtained her doctorate degree in fiscal
science from Southwest University of Finance and Economics in 1999. Ms.
Liu was appointed as an independent non-executive director our Company
on 16 August, 2013.
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Senior Management

Mr. Chan Ngai Chi (BR#5t), age 42, is the Chief Financial Officer of
our Company. Mr. Chan is responsible for our financial management.
Mr. Chan has over 19 years of experience in financial management,
compliance and auditing. Since August 2007, Mr. Chan was the principal
financial officer and principal accounting officer of Gushan. Prior to joining
Gushan, Mr. Chan worked in the audit division of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Hong Kong from 1994 to 1999. He also served as financial controller and
company secretary of Tong Ren Tang Technologies Co. Ltd., a company
in the production and distribution of Chinese medicine, from 2004 to
2007 and TopSearch International (Holdings) Limited, a manufacturer of
printed circuit boards, from 2000 to 2003, both of which are companies
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 9 July, 2010 and 21
June, 2002, respectively. He has served as an independent non-executive
director of Beijing Tong Ren Tang Chinese Medicine Company Limited, a
company in the retail and wholesale of China medicine products, since
15 April, 2013, which is listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange since 7 May, 2013. Mr. Chan graduated from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technologies with a bachelor’s degree
in business administration in 1994 and The Chinese University of Hong
Kong with a master’s degree in economics in 2003. Mr. Chan is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Chen Wei (BR1£), age 33, is the Vice General Manager of our Company
and a director of Tongxin, Jinxin, Xiangbei, Baohe Xinshiji, and Baohe
Taiyue. Mr. Chen is in charge of business risk management. Mr. Chen
has over 10 years of management experience in automobile, renewable
energy and environmental protection sectors. Mr. Chen joined Gushan in
2008 and served as assistant to the chairman of the board and head of
the group office from 2009 to 2012. Since January 2013, he has been
the vice president of Gushan. Prior to joining Gushan in 2008, Mr. Chen
worked for Handan Gushan Bio-sources Energy Co. Ltd., the principal
business of which is the production and sale of bio-diesel products in
China, as assistant to general manager from 2005 to 2008 and as acting
general manager from 2008 to 2009. Between 2002 and 2005, he was
a sales executive at Fuzhou CTE Co., Ltd (f&8/NFixEIRER AR, the
principal business of which is the production and sale of wire and harness
and electronic parts of vehicles in China. Mr. Chen graduated with a
bachelor’s degree in management from Zhengzhou Institute of Technology
(currently known as Henan University of Technology) in June 2002. He
further obtained the qualification of assistant economist from the Fuzhou
City Human Resources Bureau (8T A% /@) in January 2009.
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Ms. Luo Guidi (B#1#), age 39, is the controller of our Company. She
is mainly responsible for financial risk management. She has also been
appointed as the risk management officer of Company and is responsible
for overseeing the Group’s compliance with bank loan covenants. Ms.
Luo has over 15 years of experience in accounting and internal audit.
Since January 2013, Ms. Luo was the manager of the audit department
of Gushan from 2008 to 2012 and has been a director of the risk
management unit at Gushan. Prior to joining Gushan in 2008, she worked
as an audit manager at Fujian Jianyou Certified Public Accountants
Limited (fRZEAEFEIEHAARAF) from 2007 to 2008. Ms. Luo
was an audit assistant and audit project manager at Fujian Lixin Mindu
Certified Public Accountants Limited (fB2{EEEEEIEHAERA
&) from 2003 to 2007. From 1997 to 2002, she worked as a cashier and
accountant at Fuzhou Yaolong Chemical Group Co., Ltd (ML T &
|2 7)), a manufacture of chemicals. Ms. Luo obtained an undergraduate
qualification in accounting from Fuzhou University through self-study
in June 2009. Ms. Luo is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and China Institute of Internal Audit. She is also
qualified as a land valuer and a Registered Real Estate Appraiser in the
PRC.

Mr. Chen Hai (F&78), age 51, is the general manager and director of
Baohe Xinshiji, a subsidiary of our Company. Mr. Chen is responsible for
formulating, overseeing and executing the day-to-day management of
the operation of Baohe Xinshiji. Mr. Chen has over 10 years of experience
in the cable industry. Mr. Chen currently serves as a director, the general
manager and the legal representative of Baohe Xinshiji. Mr. Chen was
a founder of Sichuan Xinshiji, the principal business of which is the
manufacturing and sales of power transmission and distribution cables
in China, and has been a director and the general manager of Sichuan
Xinshiji since its establishment in 2000. Mr. Chen was deputy director
of the national laboratory for the heat-resistance performance testing
of power cables and wire in Chengdu since September 2007 and was
responsible for its technology management. From November 1999 to
August 2000, Mr. Chen was vice general manager of Chengdu Jiasheng
Cables Co., Ltd (K#=RGEERAF]), a producer of electrical wires
and cables. Mr. Chen obtained the qualification as an associate engineer
specializing in electromechanical equipment in October 1998. Mr. Chen
was named as an “Outstanding Entrepreneur” (BEHEREDEAIER) by
the China Federation of Private Companies (fFEIR &M EBAEIES) in
November 2010. Mr. Chen graduated with a junior college qualification
from Sichuan Normal University via a correspondence course in June 1989
majoring in chemistry.

Directors and Senior Management
EFENERETEE

BEBLZL 395 RARARMNEBE -mEZEFHHA
BERE - MNMEZEARRAFNEAREREAS  BFER
REBETRITERZAENER - B TR RAINE
AEBEESISFLER - BT BRN2008F E2012F HifHE
EEEEETHEERBE2013F1 A —HETHZAR
ERIEGIROMBE o R2008F MAHIZAET « #H2007F &
2008 F ETBERR ST EHEATBRARIMEEIE o
B+ H2003F £2007F BEEEEEA ST EEA
BRARMEBNIERETIEE L2 - N1997F £20024F
M mAEBRENRBEEIEERR (—KEBRRER) 1
HMEME AT - B LH2009F6 AE1BEBIEEMNA
BHEHBLERE B ITRTEEMeMingM+tH
NEHBFABEMEE o thINE R EE B KA 1t (& R
TG s E S R o

BROBEE @ 515% - =ARQ BN E R BRAF 40 00 B 418
REF -MAEBESNT  EBENRTRIFTLEED
HEER BREEREETEEEDI0FLR - REER
BRAFTLHES  BLEBEREERE - REELZM)I
it (RFEEXEBREREERRESEE) OaA - I
B B2000F R AR—E 2L EEFRBLE -
BRI B2007F9 A AREP B R EEMEE RFAHE
RREREMNECGE  VTAEERMER - RAEEBE1999
F11RZ2000F8 A AR RGEERLE (ERREE
AERE) WEIBLSIE o REEN1998F 10 A B IEER
BITI2ATRE IR o FRICER2010F 11 AP RR A X5
CEHERTEFREDLEAER] HEBHE - BREEAHK
BB MR 1989F6 A M) IR & K 2B E(EREE
% o

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 &3k

27



28

Directors and Senior Management
EEZNEREIEE

Mr. Fan Dunxian (S823#), age 45, is the general manager and director
of Baohe Taiyue, a subsidiary of our Company. Mr. Fan is responsible for
formulating, overseeing and executing the day-to-day management of
the operation of Baohe Taiyue. Mr. Fan has over 5 years of experience in
the cable industry. He currently serves as a director, the general manager
and the legal representative of Baohe Taiyue. Mr. Fan was a founder of
Guangzhou Taiyue, the principal business of which is the manufacturing
and sales of communication cables in China, and has been a director and
the general manager of Guangzhou Taiyue since its establishment in 2007.
Mr. Fan completed his junior college education with Fujian Agriculture
University (currently known as Fujian Agriculture and Forestry University) in
July 1996, majoring in phytomedicine and medical science.

Company Secretary

Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan (3RFE3#), age 54, is the company secretary of
our Company. Mr. Cheung has over 21 years of experience in financial
management. Mr. Cheung was the financial controller of Gushan since
March 2006. Mr. Cheung also served from April 2001 to March 2006
as the qualified accountant and company secretary of Goldigit Atom-
tech Holdings Limited (currently known as Jinchuan Group International
Resources Co. Ltd), a developer and producer of pesticides in China which
is listed on the Stock Exchange since 23 October, 2003. Mr. Cheung was
an independent non-executive director of Auto Italia Holdings Limited, a
company which has been listed on the Stock Exchange since 16 July, 1991
and whose principal business is the import, marketing, distribution and
after-sales services of high quality, branded products in Asia including cars,
electronic appliances, fashion apparels and accessories, from November
2005 to May 2013, and has been an independent non-executive director
of Tian Shan Development (Holding) Limited, a property developer in
China, since 16 June 2010, which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange since 15 July, 2010. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Cheung obtained a
diploma in fabric manufacturing from the Hong Kong Polytechnic in 1981.
He was appointed as our company secretary on 8 March 2013.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI€BERANAER AT

WEIREE - 4557 - BRAQFIMBE A TRME M LLE
REZ - DAEBEHTE  HEENRTRIRHEENH
BEE REEREBTERAFOSFLR - IR ARMNKR
MHES  LEBREERER BEEREMER (X2
XBREHREEHEBREEE) VA A - W EB2007F 5K
SAR—ERBMEMAES RALIE - SBEER19965F7
ATl EERERE (RREREMARE) OREHE - *

BENESRES -

ATWE

RIS E - 5458 RARRIMARIWE « REERIH
EIREHE21F4805 c REEB2006F3AREETHIZH
BISEE o SRAEER2001F4AE2006F3 AR IMETS
B TREERERAR RB/IEEBEREREAR
NA - EHEMREME®REER - B2003F10H23H
RRBRMET) HAERGAMRARIWE - REEY
2005F 11 A E2013F5 A A B EFIRAR AR (B1991
FIRI6BBRERZMEMHAR  HEZEBILERME
0 2o HEEnEgER iRESERY - £F A=
B BRI NBIIERNTES - UKL BE2010%F6
A16ARRARILER (ER) ARAR (FE-—RMEHRE
7 - B2010F7 A 15 B BNE R ATER L) /9B IEHIT
EFE - MERTAREITMASNEREENTEGM
NEWGE - REEMIBIFENEEBETIERNFTHEY
HEENE - tR2013F3 A8 EZR T ARMNARIME -



Report of the Directors
EHEHE

The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the EFEMAREANAFTIRAEBEEEZ2013F12A31HIEF

Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013. ERRERIREEE -
Principal Activities FEXK

The Group is a manufacturer of recycled copper products, also known as ~ AEBEZHEIFAEMBEAEER (MERHFFRKS) &S
copper semis, in Southwest China. Beginning in 2013, the Group started ™ © B2013F i - AEBEMIAHE L BUREE B R HH
to sell a range of communication cables and power transmission and M ABEXZRM A BEESEFNRLEE -

distribution cables using copper wirerods produced by the Group as the

principal raw material.

Directors !

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the directors of ~ RAFEREBEEARNFHRAE - ARFESHOT ¢
the Company were as follows:

Executive Directors Appointed on HITES BEZERH

Mr. Yu Jiangiu (Chairman and 22 February 2013 and AT & 2013FF2A22B &
chief executive officer) redesignated as an executive (EFEFHRITBBH) 2013816 BHEA

director on 16 August 2013 WITESE

Mr. Liu Hanjiu 16 August 2013 BIER K& 20134 8A16H

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 16 August 2013 BEExE 2013%F8A16H

Mr. Huang Weiping 16 August 2013 |mEFRE 20134%8H16H

Ms. Zhu Yufen 16 August 2013 KEFw+ 2013468H16H

Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Mr. Pan Liansheng 16 August 2013 EEBEE 2013%F8H16H

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 16 August 2013 FEM T E 201348H16H

Ms. Liu Rong 16 August 2013 Bm L+ 2013568H16H

Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographies ZEERSREEEERE

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of the Group AS£BEZREREREEBEFEFEINLATREZ LR
are set out in the section headed "Directors and Senior Management” in  E32E | —# o
this annual report.
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Confirmation of Independence of Independent
Non-executive Directors

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Save as disclosed in note 23 and 34 respectively to the financial
statements, no director had a significant beneficial interest in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

Changes in Directors and Senior Management

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the changes in Directors and
Senior Management are set out below.

Further to the service contract entered into between Mr. Yu Jiangiu
and the Company effective 1 March 2014, Mr. Yu Jiangiu’s salary has
been revised from $1,920,000 to $3,192,000 per annum, payable on a
12-month basis. The emoluments of Mr. Yu are determined by the Board
with reference to the remuneration benchmark in the prevailing market
and the complexity, workload and Mr. Yu Jiangiu’s responsibilities to the
Company and its subsidiaries.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change to any of the information
required to be disclosed in relation to any director pursuant to paragraphs
(@) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules since the Listing
Date.
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company and its Associated
Corporations

As the Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as at 31 December
2013, Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO") and section 352 of the SFO were not applicable to the directors
or chief executive of the Company as at 31 December 2013.

As at the Listing Date, the interests and short positions of the directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i) recorded in the register

Report of the Directors
EESWmE
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required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or (i) otherwise notified  TABFETEEF L FHNEETE) ([EEFH ) BRAA
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for AR LB FIEEZR LAB T ¢
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
Long position in the shares of the Company RATRRDANEE
Approximate
Capacity/ Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held shareholding™
EEpE B, REmttE FERGEE BOFERA DO
Mr. Yu Jiangiu Interest in a controlled corporation® 958,574,400 45.68%
AR Rt EEER?
Mr. Liu Hanjiu Interest in a controlled corporation® 103,205,200 4.92%
BERKE REGEEERY
Mr. Huang Weiping Interest in a controlled corporation® 102,963,000 4.91%
|IEEEE RIEGEERERY
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson Legal and beneficial owner 4,772,600 0.23%
RMEIET A BERBERERAA
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Notes:

(1 The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the number
of the Company’s issued shares as at the Listing Date.

2) The shares were held by Epoch Keen Limited which was wholly-owned by Mr. Yu
Jiangiu.

(3) The shares were held by Silver Harvest Holdings Limited which was wholly-
owned by Mr. Liu Hanjiu.

(4) The shares were held by Gold Wide Enterprises Limited which was wholly-owned

by Mr. Wang Weiping.

Save as disclosed above, as at the Listing Date, so far as is known to any
director or the chief executive of the Company, none of the directors or
the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were (i) recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO, or (i) otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

No rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company were granted to any director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were any such
rights exercised by them, nor was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors, or their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate since the Listing Date.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of
the Company

As the Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as at 31 December
2013, Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and section 336 of the SFO
were not applicable to the Company as at 31 December 2013.

As at the Listing Date, the following persons (not being a director or chief
executive of the Company) had 5% or more interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Report of the Directors
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Long position in the shares of the Company RATRRDANEE
Number of Percentage of
Name Capacity in which interests are held shares shareholding™
BE LB BEERNEH RHEE RET DO
Mr. Chen Gonghao® Interest in a controlled corporation 167,952,400 8.00%
PREGZR D S EEE
First Harvest Global Limited® Legal and beneficial owner 167,952,400 8.00%
BIRIRBRARE BERBEEHEAAN
Madam Mak Siu Hang Viola® Interest in a controlled corporation 137,276,000 6.54%
BB+ EHLEEE R
VMS Investment Group Limited® Legal and beneficial owner 137,276,000 6.54%
SIBEEEEFRAR BEREREAA
Notes: BREE
(1 The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the number (1) AHRKREBREE RARDT RN LT EHE H#TRNG
of the Company'’s issued shares as at the Listing Date. H’\J%( B -
) First Harvest Global Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Chen Gonghao. Mr. Chen  (2) FLERMBERAFTARBEEELERE - ROEREER
Gonghao is deemed to be interested in the shares held by First Harvest Global RARNELIRIRER A AFBEORN P HEA LR
Limited.
3) VMS Investment Group Limited is wholly-owned by Madam Mak Siu Hang Viola.  (3) SMREESEBERAFABEIRLTTERE °

Madam Mak Siu Hang Viola is deemed to be interested in the shares held by
VMS Investment Group Ltd.

Other then as disclosed above, as at the Listing Date, the directors have
not been notified by any person (not being the directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had 5% or more interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 December 2013, none of the directors or their respective
associates had any business or interests in businesses which compete or
are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of
the Group.

Proposed Final Dividend

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set out
in the consolidated income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 63 and 64 respectively of this annual
report.

Closure of Register of Members

The Company’'s Register of Members will be closed from 4 June 2014
to 6 June 2014 (both days inclusive), during such period no transfer
of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, unregistered
holders of shares of the Company should ensure all share transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Ltd., at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on 3 June 2014.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 13 to the financial statements.
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Share Capital

Movements of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 30 to
the financial statements.

Bank Loans

Bank Loans and other borrowings of the Company and the Group as at
31 December 2013 are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

Directors’ Emoluments and Five Highest Paid
Individuals

The directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board with reference to
their duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.
Details of the directors’ emoluments and the five highest paid individuals
are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the financial statements respectively.

Emolument Policy

A remuneration committee was set up to develop the Group’s emolument
policy and structure for remuneration of the directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating
results, individual performance of the directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.

Pension Schemes

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “PRC Schemes") organized by the local
authorities whereby the subsidiaries are required to make contributions
to the PRC Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries. Contributions to the PRC Schemes vest immediately. Under the
PRC Scheme, retirement benefits of existing and retired employees are
payable by the relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no
further obligations beyond the annual contributions.
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The Group enrolled all employees in Hong Kong in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF") (together with the PRC Schemes, the
“Retirement Benefit Schemes”), which is a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF. The Group contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs to
the MPF subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$25,000,
and which contribution is matched by the employees. The assets of the
MPF are held separately from those of the Group, in funds under the
control of trustees. Contributions from the employer are 100% vested
in the employees as soon as they are paid to the MPF and subject to
certain conditions being met, all benefits derived from the mandatory
contributions must be preserved until the employee either reaches
the normal retirement age of 65 or meets certain specified conditions
whichever is earlier.

The Group’s contributions to Retirement Benefit Schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2013
were RMB2,378,000.

Management Contracts

No contract for the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered into or
existed during the year.

Reserves and Distributable Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in note 30 to the
financial statements and the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

As at 31 December 2013, the Company’s distributable reserves available
for distribution amounted to RMB337,495,000, calculated in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Law (2012 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands.
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Major Customers and Suppliers
Suppliers

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the aggregate purchases
attributable to our five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of
our total cost of purchases.

Customers

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the five largest customers were
customers of our recycled copper products, which included power
transmission and distribution cable manufacturers, copper processing
companies and trading companies. For the year ended 31 December
2013, the aggregate turnover of sales attributable to our five largest
customers contributed less than 30% of our consolidated turnover.

Connected Transactions

Following the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date, the transactions between the Group
and certain connected persons of the Group became continuing
connected transactions. The Company has applied for and the Stock
Exchange has granted a waiver from, among others, strict compliance
with the announcement requirements in respect of certain continuing
connected transactions of the Group. Details of the continuing connected
transactions of the Group are as follows:

Continuing connected transactions exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements

Master Production Agreement with Guangzhou Taiyue

On 6 February 2014, we entered into the Taiyue Master Production
Agreement dated 6 February 2014 to govern the terms and conditions of
the transactions between our Group and Guangzhou Taiyue in connection
with the provision of production and processing services for our
communication cable products. As Guangzhou Taiyue is 40% held by Mr.
Fan Dunxian, a director of Baohe Taiyue, the production and processing
arrangement between our Group and Guangzhou Taiyue constitute
continuing connected transactions of our Company.

The Taiyue Master Production Agreement took effect upon listing and will
continue until 31 December 2014.
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The Taiyue Master Production Agreement is subject to an annual cap
of RMB5.0 million for the financial year ending 31 December 2014. In
arriving at the annual cap, our Directors considered the following factors:

° the monthly average of the historical transaction values and
volume of the production and processing service provided by
Guangzhou Taiyue for the nine months ended 30 September
2013; and

° the expected termination of the production and processing
arrangement with Guangzhou Taiyue after the new production
facility of Baohe Taiyue commences commercial production, which
is currently expected to be in the second or third quarter of 2014.

Taking into account such factors, the annual cap has been primarily
calculated by multiplying the monthly average of the historical transaction
values for the nine months ended 30 September 2013 by four, and adding
a buffer to provide the Company with some flexibility to cater for any
unexpected increase in transactions.

The amount paid/payable by the Group to Guangzhou Taiyue for the
provision of production and processing services for the year ended 31

December 2013 was approximately RMB9.4 million.

Master Production Agreement with Sichuan Xinshiji

On 6 February 2014, we entered into the Xinshiji Master Production
Agreement dated 6 February 2014 to govern the terms and conditions of
the transactions between our Group and Sichuan Xinshiji in connection
with the provision of production and processing services for our power
transmission and distribution cable products. As Mr. Chen Hai, a
director of Baohe Xinshiji, has de facto control over Sichuan Xinshiji, the
production and processing arrangement between our Group and Sichuan
Xinshiji constitute continuing connected transactions of our Company.

The Xinshiji Master Production Agreement took effect upon listing and
will continue until 31 December 2014. The Xinshiji Master Production
Agreement is subject to an annual cap of RMB30.0 million for the
financial year ending 31 December 2014. In arriving at the annual cap,
our Directors considered the following factors:

o the continuous increase in the historical transaction values and
volume of the production and processing service provided by
Sichuan Xinshiji in the nine months ended 30 September 2013;

o the actual sales of Baohe Xinshiji for the nine months ended 30
September 2013 and the expected continuing growth of our
power transmission and distribution cable business; and
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o the expected termination of the production and processing
arrangement with Sichuan Xinshiji after the new production facility
of Baohe Xinshiji commences commercial production, which is
currently expected to be in the second quarter of 2014.

Taking into account such factors, the annual cap has been primarily
calculated by multiplying the monthly average of the historical transaction
value for October and November 2013, which amount to RMB7.8 million
and RMB8.8 million, respectively, by three and adding a buffer to the
product to provide the Company with some flexibility to cater for any
unexpected increase in transactions. We believe that the monthly average
of the transaction values for October and November 2013 is a more
appropriate basis for determining the annual cap for the Xinshiji Master
Production Agreement as we expect the level of transaction in October
and November 2013, which is higher than the level in the previous
months in 2013, will continue in 2014.

The amount paid/payable by the Group to Sichuan Xinshiji for the
provision of production and processing services for the year ended 31
December 2013 was approximately RMB51.2 million.

Master Sale Agreement with Guangzhou Taiyue

On 6 February 2014, we entered into the Taiyue Master Sale Agreement to
govern the terms and conditions of the transactions between our Group
and Guangzhou Taiyue in connection with the sale of copper products
(mainly copper wires). The Taiyue Master Sale Agreement took effect upon
Listing and will continue until 31 December 2014. As Guangzhou Taiyue
is 40% held by Mr. Fan Dunxian, a director of Baohe Taiyue, the sale of
copper products by our Group to Guangzhou Taiyue constitute continuing
connected transactions of our Company.

The Taiyue Master Sale Agreement is subject to an annual cap of RMB17.0
million for the financial year ending 31 December, 2014. The annual
cap has been determined with reference to the market rates for copper
products which our Group sells to persons or companies which are not
connected persons of our Group or any of their associates under the
Listing Rules (“Independent Third Parties”). In arriving at the annual
cap, our directors have considered the following factors:

. the monthly average of the historical transaction values and
volume of the sale of products to Guangzhou Taiyue for the nine
months ended 30 September 2013; and
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o the expected decrease in sales to Guangzhou Taiyue after the new
facility of Baohe Taiyue commences commercial production, which
is expected to be in the second or third quarter of 2014.

Taking into account such factors, the annual cap has been calculated by
multiplying the monthly average of the historical transaction value for the
nine months ended 30 September, 2013 by four, and adding a buffer to
the product to provide the Company with some flexibility to cater for any
unexpected increase in transactions.

The amount paid/payable by the Guangzhou Taiyue to the Group for the
purchase of copper products for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
approximately RMB44.2 million.

Master Sale Agreement with Sichuan Xinshiji

On 6 February 2014, we entered into the Xinshiji Master Sale Agreement
to govern the terms and conditions of the transactions between our
Group and Sichuan Xinshiji in connection with the sale of copper products
including copper wirerods and copper wires. The Xinshiji Master Sale
Agreement took effect upon listing and will continue until 31 December
2014. As Mr. Chen Hai, a director of Baohe Xinshiji, has de facto control
over Sichuan Xinshiji, the sale of copper products by our Group to Sichuan
Xinshiji constitute continuing connected transactions of our Company.

The Xinshiji Master Sale Agreement is subject to an annual cap of
RMB50.0 million for the financial year ending 31 December 2014. The
annual cap has been determined with reference to the market rates for
copper products which our Group sells to Independent Third Parties. In
arriving at the annual cap, our directors have considered the following
factors:

o the monthly average of the historical transaction values and
volume of the sale of products to Sichuan Xinshiji for the nine
months ended 30 September 2013; and

o the expected decrease in sales to Sichuan Xinshiji after the new
facility of Baohe Xinshiji commences commercial production,
which is expected to be in the second quarter of 2014.
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Taking into account such factors, the annual cap has been calculated by
multiplying the monthly average of the historical transaction value for the
nine months ended 30 September 2013 by three, and adding a buffer to
the product to provide the Company with some flexibility to cater for any
unexpected increase in transactions.

The amount paid/payable by the Sichuan Xinshiji to the Group for the
purchase of copper products for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
approximately RMB170.2 million.

Master Purchase Agreement with Sichuan Xinshiji

On 6 February 2014, we entered into the Xinshiji Master Purchase
Agreement to govern the terms and conditions of the transactions
between our Group and Sichuan Xinshiji in connection with the purchase
of certain cable products including power transmission and distribution
cables. The Xinshiji Master Purchase Agreement took effect upon listing
and will continue until 31 December 2014. As Mr. Chen Hai, a director of
Baohe Xinshiji, has de facto control over Sichuan Xinshiji, the purchase of
copper products by our Group from Sichuan Xinshiji constitute continuing
connected transactions of our Company upon listing.

The Xinshiji Master Purchase Agreement is subject to an annual cap of
RMB55.0 million for the financial year ending 31 December 2014. In
arriving at the annual cap, our directors have considered the following
factors:

o the monthly average of the historical transaction values and
volume of the purchase of products from Sichuan Xinshiji for the
nine months ended 30 September 2013; and

° the expected decrease in purchases from Sichuan Xinshiji after the
new facility of Baohe Xinshiji commences commercial production,
which is expected to be in the second quarter of 2014.

Taking into account such factors, the annual cap is calculated by
multiplying the monthly average of the historical transaction value for the
nine months ended 30 September 2013 by three, and adding a buffer to
the product to provide the Company with some flexibility to cater for any
unexpected increase in transactions.

The amount paid/payable by the Group to Sichuan Xinshiji for the
purchase of power transmission and distribution cables for the year ended
31 December 2013 was approximately RMB195.8 million.
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A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2013 is contained in note 34 to the
financial statements. The transactions summarised in note 34(a)(ii) to the
financial statements fall under the definition of “continuing connected
transactions” under the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2013
and have confirmed that the transactions have been entered into (i) in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal
commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to or from independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor issued an
unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in the annual
report in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules and confirmed
the following:

1. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the auditor
to believe that the disclosed continuing connected transactions
have not been approved by the Company’s board of directors;

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group;

3. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in
all material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements

governing such transactions.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to provide incentive and/or reward to eligible persons for their
contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of, our
Company. The Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved by a
written resolution of the then shareholders of the Company on 28 January
2014 and has came into effect upon the Company’s listing on 21 February
2014.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options (“Options”) to
subscribe for such number of shares in accordance with the terms set out
in the Share Option Scheme to any director or employee of the Group
and any other person (including a consultant or advisor) who in the sole
discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the Group
(“Eligible Persons”).

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of our Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares
in issue as at the Listing Date (i.e. 209,832,160 shares) (the “Scheme
Mandate Limit”). Our Company may at any time as the Board may
think fit seek approval from our shareholders to refresh the Scheme
Mandate Limit, save that the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other schemes of our Company shall not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of approval by shareholders in general
meeting where the Scheme Mandate Limit is refreshed.

Our Company may seek separate approval from our shareholders in
general meeting for granting Options beyond the Scheme Mandate
Limit, provided that the Options in excess of the Scheme Mandate Limit
are granted only to the Eligible Person specified by our Company before
such approval is obtained. The maximum number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other options granted
and yet to be exercised under any other scheme shall not exceed 30% of
our Company’s issued share capital from time to time. No options may
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of our Company if this will result in such limit being exceeded.
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No Option may be granted to any one person such that the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of Options granted and to
be granted to that person in any 12-month period up to the date of the
latest grant exceeds 1% of our Company’s issued share capital from time
to time.

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be
entitled at any time within 10 years after the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme to offer the grant of an Option to any Eligible
Person as the Board may in its absolute discretion select to subscribe at
the subscription price for such number of shares as the Board may (subject
to the terms of the Share Option Scheme) determine (provided the same
shall be a board lot for dealing in the shares on the Stock Exchange or an
integral multiple thereof).

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the Board may in its absolute
discretion when offering the grant of an Option specify such conditions,
restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set forth
in the Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit when making
an offer to an Eligible Person (including, without limitation, as to any
performance criteria which must be satisfied by the Eligible Person and/or
the Company and/or its Subsidiaries, and any minimum period for which
an Option must be held, before an Option may be exercised, if any),
provided that such conditions shall not be inconsistent with any other
terms or conditions of the Share Option Scheme.

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted and accepted by the
Eligible Person and to have taken effect when the duplicate offer letter
comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option duly signed by the
grantee together with a remittance in favor of our Company of HK$1.00
by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by our Company
on or before 30 days after the offer date. To the extent that an offer is
not accepted within the time stated in the offer for that purpose, it shall
be deemed to have been irrevocably declined and shall immediately lapse.
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The subscription price in respect of any particular Option shall be such
price as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine at the time of
grant of the relevant Option (and shall be stated in the letter containing
the offer of the grant of the Option) but the subscription price shall be at
least the highest of:

a) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the offer date, which must be a business day;

b) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and

Q) the nominal value of a share.

An Option shall be exercised in whole or in part within the option period
which is the period to be determined and notified by the Board to the
grantee during which period the Option may be exercised and in any
event shall not exceed ten years commencing from the date on which the
offer in relation to such Option is accepted.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years from the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme, after which
no further options will be granted or offered but the provisions of the
Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the extent
necessary to give effect to the exercise of any subsisting Options granted
prior to the expiry of the 10-year period or otherwise as may be required
in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of securities available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme of the Company was 209,832,160 shares, which was
approximately 10% of the issued share capital as at the date of this
annual report. As the Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as
at 31 December 2013, the Company had no outstanding share options
both as at 31 December 2013 and at Listing Date.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Shares
of the Company

As the shares of the Company had not been listed on the Stock Exchange
as at 31 December 2013, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed shares during
the year ended 31 December 2013.

Deed of Non-Competition

Mr. Yu Jiangiu and Epoch Keen Limited, being controlling shareholders of
the Company (the “Parties”), entered into a deed of non-competition
("Deed of Non-Competition”) dated 6 February 2014, details of
which have been set out in the paragraph headed “Non-Competition
Undertaking” in the section headed “Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

The Company has reviewed the annual declaration from the Parties on
compliance with their undertaking under the Deed of Non-Competition.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of
compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of
Non-Competition have been complied with by the Parties.

Contingent liabilities

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Company and the Group are set
out in note 33 to the financial statements.

Post Balance Sheet Events

Details of the post balance sheet events are set out in note 38 to the
financial statements.

Sufficiency of Public Float

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company
confirmed that based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company had
maintained sufficient amount of public float as required under the Listing
Rules and agreed by the Stock Exchange.
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Auditors

KPMG has been appointed as auditor of the Company in 2014. KPMG
shall retire in the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Professional Tax Advice Recommended

If any shareholder is unsure about the taxation implications of purchasing,
holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in relation to
the Shares, it is advised to consult an expert.

By order of the Board

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
Yu Jianqiu

Chairman

27 March 2014
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in the
Company's annual report for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group recognizes the vital importance of good corporate governance
to the Group’s success and sustainability. We are committed to achieving
a high standard of corporate governance as an essential component of
quality and have introduced corporate governance practices appropriate
to the conduct and growth of our business.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange with effect
from the Listing Date. As the Company was not a listed company during
the year ended 31 December 2013, the Corporate Governance Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “CG Code”) was not
applicable to it during that period. The CG Code has been applicable to
the Company with effect from the Listing Date.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has been in compliance with
the mandatory code provisions of the CG Code since the Listing Date,
save as to the deviation from the code provision A.2.1 which requires
that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. Key corporate
governance principles and practices of the Company as well as details

relating to the foregoing deviation are summarized below.
The Board
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for overall management and control of the
Company. The Board’s main roles are to provide leadership and to approve
strategic policies and plans with a view to enhancing shareholder value.
All directors carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively, and acting in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations are followed.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control and risk management systems, material
transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

Directors have full and timely access to consult with the Company’s senior
management independently. Any director and Board Committee may
request independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company’s expense, upon making reasonable request to the Board.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Group to the senior management
of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs,
the Board has established three Board committees, namely the audit
and corporate governance committee (the “Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee"”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The
Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company were as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Jiangiu (Chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Liu Hanjiu

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Huang Weiping

Ms. Zhu Yufen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny

Mr. Pan Liansheng

Ms. Liu Rong
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Biographical details of the directors and senior management of the Group
are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has been in compliance with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1)
and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors with at least one independent
non-executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement of Rule 3.10A
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Director has confirmed his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company
considers each of them to be independent.

All directors have brought a wide range of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning. Moreover, through active participation in Board meetings,
taking the lead in managing issues involving potential conflict of interests
and serving on Board committees, all independent non-executive directors
make various contributions to the effective direction of the Company.

Induction and Continuous Professional Development

The directors have been provided with the relevant training to ensure
that they have a proper understanding of the business and operations of
the Company and that they are fully aware of their responsibilities and
obligations as a director of a listed company as well as the compliance
practice under the Listing Rules.
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The attendance record of professional training received by the directors in
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REBARBNBRA LT  EFRXEERINHERL

preparation for the Company’s listing on the Stock Exchange is as follows: BEAAT ¢
Date of attendance of
Director directors’ training B=x HEZESEZIN BB
Mr. Yu Jiangiu 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013 B A 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013
Mr. Liu Hanjiu 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013, 7/10/2013 BIER ST E 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013, 7/10/2013
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013 BEELEE 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013
Mr. Huang Weiping 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013 |mE A 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013
Ms. Zhu Yufen 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013 KEFLZL 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013 EM AL 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013
Mr. Pan Liansheng 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013 BT E 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013
Ms. Liu Rong 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013 REmz+ 5/3/2013, 20/8/2013
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer FERITHEH

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Yu Jiangiu is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. As Mr. Yu is the founder of the Group and has extensive
experience in corporate operations and management, the Board believes
that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr. Yu taking up both
roles for continuous effective management and business development of
the Group.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company.

Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any service contract which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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The rules and procedures governing the appointment, retirement, re-
election and removal of directors are set out in the Articles of Association
of the Company. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing
the Board structure, size and composition and making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment and re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors.

Independent non-executive directors are appointed for a specific term,
subject to re-election. In accordance with the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM"), at least one-
third of the directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-
third) shall retire from office by rotation, provided that each director shall
be subject to retirement at an AGM at least once every three years.

Any new director appointed to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an
addition to the existing Board shall be subject to re-election at the next
AGM after his appointment.

Board Meetings

The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen
days will be given for all regular board meetings to provide all directors
with an opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda for
regular board meetings.

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice will
generally be given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched to the directors or Board committee members at least three
days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to review
the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings. When directors
or Board committee members are unable to attend a meeting, they will be
advised of the matters to be discussed and given an opportunity to make
their views known to the chairman prior to the meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are/will
be recorded in sufficient detail to include the matters considered by the
Board and the Board committee and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board committee meeting will be sent to the directors for comments
within a reasonable time after the date on which the meeting is held.
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According to the Articles of Association, a director shall not vote nor
be counted in the quorum on any resolution of the Board approving
any contract or arrangement in which he or his associates is materially
interested.

Directors’ Attendance Records at Board Meetings

Two Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2013
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and the attendance of the individual directors at these meetings is set out ~ ZEERNEHRMLFELREEHIWT -
below.
Attended/
Eligible to BHERE
Name of director Category attend BEEpE Hhl Al R E
Mr. Yu Jiangiu Board meeting 2/2 BRI SEE EXge3 2/2
Mr. Liu Hanjiu Board meeting 2/2 ZNER K& ExgeR 2/2
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson Board meeting 2/2 BMEERE EFggE 2/2
Mr. Huang Weiping Board meeting 2/2 =HEFEE EEge3 2/2
Ms. Zhu Yufen Board meeting 2/2 KEZLZL EEEER 2/2
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny Board meeting 2/2 FEMR ST E ExgeR 2/2
Mr. Pan Liansheng Board meeting 2/2 EEBEE EEgeR 2/2
Ms. Liu Rong Board meeting 2/2 Bzt EEEE; 2/2
Model Code for Securities Transactions SR G MNELET A
The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by %@E’JT“ E“J

Officers on terms no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code
as its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. As the
Company was not listed on the Stock Exchange as at 31 December 2013,
the provisions under the Listing Rules in relation to compliance with the
Model Code by the Directors were not applicable to the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

Board Committees

The Board has established the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs. All Board
committees have been established with defined written terms of reference,
which are posted on the Company’s website “http:/Avww.cmru.com.cn”
and are available to shareholders upon request. All Board committees
report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations.
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All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s

expense.
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises of Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny, Mr. Pan
Liansheng and Ms. Liu Rong (Chairperson) who are all independent non-
executive directors. The functions of the Nomination Committee primarily
are to: (i) review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii) identify individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; (iii)
assess the independence of independent non-executive directors; (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for directors, in particular the chairman
of the Board and the chief executive; and to (v) determine the policy for
the nomination of directors, the nomination procedures and the process
and criteria adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship.

On 16 April 2014 the Nomination Committee adopted a board
diversity policy in compliance with code provision A.5.6 (the “Board
Diversity Policy”). The Board Diversity Policy applies to the Board and
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage. The Nomination
Committee will review annually the structure, size and composition of the
Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy, and will make
recommendation to the Board on the measurable objectives for achieving
board diversity. The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance
of diversity perspectives of the Board that are relevant to the Company
business growth.

No meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

The Nomination Committee recommended the re-appointment of Mr.
Yu Jiangiu, Mr. Liu Hanjiu and Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson as executive
directors of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises of Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny, Mr.
Pan Liansheng (Chairperson) and Ms. Liu Rong who are all independent

non-executive directors.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee include the following:
(i) to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s remuneration
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing remuneration policy; (ii) to review and approve the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the Board's
corporate goals and objectives; (iii) either to determine, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management, or to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive directors and
senior management; (iv) to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive directors; (v) to consider salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities and
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries; (vi)
to review and approve compensation payable to executive directors and
senior management for any loss or termination of office or appointment
to ensure that it is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive; (vii) to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; (viii) to ensure that no director or any of his associates
is involved in deciding his own remuneration; and (ix) to determine the
policy for the remuneration of executive directors, assess performance of
executive directors and approve the terms of executive directors’ service
contracts.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2013 are set out in note 9 to the financial statements contained
in this annual report.

Remuneration of senior management other than Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2013
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No meeting of the Remuneration Committee was held during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee comprises of Mr. Lee
Ting Bun Denny (Chairperson), Mr. Pan Liansheng and Ms. Liu Rong who
are all independent non-executive directors.

In relation to reviewing the Company’s financial information, the Audit
and Corporate Governance Committee’s duties mainly are to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant or unusual
items raised by the financial officers of the Group or external auditors
before submission to the Board; (i) review and monitor the external
auditors’ independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit
process; (i) make recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and (iv) review the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting system,
internal control system and risk management system.

In relation to its corporate governance functions, the Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee’s responsibilities are (i) to develop, review and
update the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices
and to make recommendations to the Board, (ii) to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, (i) to review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, (iv)
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and directors, and (v) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

One meeting of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee was
held on 13 September 2013, attended by Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny, Mr.
Pan Liansheng and Ms. Liu Rong.

Auditor's Remuneration

The total remuneration paid or payable to the Company’s auditors, KPMG,
for audit services amounted to RMB1,437,000.

In addition, KPMG was appointed as the Company’s reporting accountants
for its initial public offering of shares, in relation to which total fees paid
or payable to KPMG during the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted
to RMB4,471,000.
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An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to KPMG is set out
below:
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SNHENTESHEHMEHAOME TN T

RMB’'000
ARBT T

Audit services FBZRH (BZ=2013F12A8
(audit fee for the year ended 31 December 2013) BTREFENSEZER) 1,437
As reporting accountants for the Company’s initial public offering ERARRE R ARME SRR ETAD 4,471

Directors’ Responsibilities for Financial
Reporting in respect of Financial Statements

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 which give a true and
fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group’s
results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with
monthly updates on the Company's performance, positions and prospects.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.
Internal Control

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board to
maintain an adequate internal control system to safeguard shareholder
investments and Company assets and review the effectiveness of such
system on an annual basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Company and considers the internal control system
to be effective and adequate.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal
action against its directors.
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Updates on Compliance and Regulatory Matters
disclosed in the Prospectus

As disclosed in the section headed “Business — Compliance” in the
Prospectus, during the period ended 31 December 2010, the two financial
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 and the nine months ended
30 September 2013, there were certain incidents of the Group’s non-
compliance with applicable regulations. As at the Listing Date, all incidents
of non-compliance have been rectified, save that the basis of the Group’s
contribution to social insurance and housing fund schemes remains to
be adjusted from local minimum wages to actual wages of the relevant
employees as required by relevant law.

The updated status of the remedial actions taken in relation to the
adjustment of calculation basis of contributions under the social insurance
schemes and housing fund schemes as at the date of this annual report is
set out below:

Adjustment of basis to make contributions to social
insurance schemes

As disclosed in the Prospectus, at the time of listing, the Company had
been making contributions to the social insurance schemes for the Group'’s
employees based on the local minimum wages in their work locations
instead of their actual wages as required by relevant laws.

At the date of this report, the Group has already submitted applications
to the relevant authorities to adjust the calculation basis of contributions
under the social insurance schemes. Starting May 2014, contributions to
the social insurance schemes for the Group’s employees will be based on
their actual wages.

Adjustment of basis to make contributions to housing
fund schemes

At the time of listing, the Group had been making contributions to
housing fund schemes for its employees based on the local minimum
wages in their work locations instead of their actual wages as required by
relevant laws.

At the date of this report, the Group has already submitted applications
to the relevant authorities to adjust the calculation basis of contributions
under the housing fund schemes. Starting May 2014, contributions to the
housing fund schemes for the Group’s employees will be based on their
actual wages.
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Communications with Shareholders and
Investors

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables shareholders and investors to make
the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at
"http://www.cmru.com.cn”, where extensive information and updates on
the Group's business developments and operations, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for
public access.

Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or requests to the
Company as follows:

Address: Unit 908, China Merchants Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
(For the attention of Corporate Communications Department)
Fax: +852 2587 7199
Email:  ir@cmru.com.cn
Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings to raise any concerns they might have with the
Board or the management directly. Board members and appropriate senior
staff of the Group are available at the meetings to answer any questions
raised by shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationship with
its investors.

Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional investors and analysts to keep them informed of the Group’s
developments.
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Shareholders’ Right

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and
voting.

Under article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Company’s shareholders
may convene an extraordinary general meeting or put forward proposals
at shareholders’ meetings pursuant to the Articles of Association. Any one
or more shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall, by written
requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the Articles of Association.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, the procedures
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the Company and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company has not made any changes to its Articles of Association
since the Listing Date. An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association
is available on the Company's website and the Stock Exchange’s website.
Shareholders may refer to the Articles of Association for further details of
their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (http://www.cmru.com.cn) immediately after the relevant
general meetings.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

cbnac

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Metal
Resources Utilization Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 63 to 180, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2013,
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

27 March 2014
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Consolidated Income Statement

Are W

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BZE20135F12A31H ILFE AARKFIE)

Note 2013 2012
M3 RMB'O00ARMTT RMBO0OARETFIT

Turnover =E ] 4 2,959,004 1,513,133
Cost of sales HERA (2,828,880) (1,401,445)
Gross profit EF 130,124 111,688
Other revenue H i gzs 6(a) 280,565 55,886
Other net income/(loss) HinFWA (EE) 6(b) 428 (1,509)
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEES (9,107) (5,927)
Administrative expenses TR (63,640) (20,413)
Profit from operations R 338,370 139,725
Finance costs BAREAR AR 7(a) (33,330) (16,850)
Profit before taxation AR 7 305,040 122,875
Income tax FiiSHt 8(a) (59,492) (30,583)
Profit for the year FEREF 245,548 92,292
Earnings per share BREF 12

Basic (RMB) AR (ARET) 0.17 0.07
Diluted (RMB) #8 (AR¥T) 0.17 0.07

The notes on pages 72 to 180 form part of these financial statements. FET2EEE180B MM BRI B HREN —FH

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 £}

63



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
RETEWE

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HZE2013F12A31HILFE (AARKIIE)

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKEFIT

Profit for the year FREF 245,548 92,292

Other comprehensive income for &R H 2 EK

the year
Item that may be reclassified FEIE ] EFT 7 HE
subsequently to profit or loss: EEmmIEA -

Exchange differences on translation & JErh B &= 48
of financial statements of non-PRC ~ BAFSIREKMEN =8
entities 4,935 (72)

Total comprehensive income for FR2ERFHLEE
the year 250,483 92,220

The notes on pages 72 to 180 form part of these financial statements. FT2EZE180E M BK M BRI —FH ©
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HeBERER

At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi)
20135128318 (AARMSIE)

Note 2013 2012
MizE  RMB'O00ARYTFT RMB'O00ARKETFIT
Non-current assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - R N&E 13 404,706 272,849
Lease prepayments GE=SEENEN 14 87,371 9,332
Intangible assets WA E 16 7,312 10,968
Goodwill [EES 17 39,308 39,308
Pledged deposits [REEwGVEES 18 6,300 =
Other non-current assets HMIEREEE 19 52,834 42,634
Deferred tax assets FIENIBE E 20(b) 145 351
597,976 375,442

Current assets REEE
Inventories =8 21 140,160 113,724
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E MR IR 22 848,666 465,072
Amounts due from related parties & Uk BEES 75 A 23 964 4,569
Pledged deposits [REEEGVEES 18 27,711 14,619
Cash and cash equivalents N NKIRNEEEBR 25(a) 78,615 19,609
1,096,116 617,593

Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 RHE M ERN R 26 420,671 253,810
Obligations under finance leases BERETHEL 27 12,000 =
Bank loans and other borrowings ~ $R7TE X R HAb{E K 28 304,374 175,000
Amounts due to related parties JiE 1~} BB 5 5 0E 23 30,200 145,662
Loans from related parties RAEE B 24 84,948 94,315
Current taxation BIERR X 20(a) 28,317 23,863
880,510 692,650
Net current assets/(liabilities) BREBEE (8E) 215,606 (75,057)
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERAHERE 813,582 300,385
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
meEBERER

At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi)
M2013F12A318 (AAREDIE)

Note 2013 2012
M3 RMB'O00ARMTT RMBO0OARETFIT

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans and other borrowings ~ $R1TE R E b2 K 28 120,000 =
Obligations under finance leases BERETHEME 27 48,000 =
Deferred government grants IEIE AT 7 BN 29 31,048 =
Deferred tax liabilities RIETIE & & 20(b) 1,729 2,063
200,777 2,063
NET ASSETS FEE 612,805 298,322
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARRHE
Share capital &N 30(c) 907 68
Reserves s 30(d) 611,898 298,254
TOTAL EQUITY RS 612,805 298,322

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 720143 527 B8 E S & it/ LR T3 -

2014.
Yu Jianqiu Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
BEM BERE
Chairman Director
FE EF
The notes on pages 72 to 180 form part of these financial statements. F72EEFI180E M BRIVEHRRAN—ZD -
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Balance Sheet
BEAER

At 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi)
720135128318 (UAARKEZIE)

Note 2013
Mf3f RMB'O00AR¥F T

Non-current assets FRBEE
S = L B 298,322
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FELUBT B A B HY FR I8 23(c) 61,609
Cash and cash equivalents HeLBESZEER 453
... ....... 62062
Current liabilities REEE
Accrued expenses and other payables [ 5T5 s K2 EoAth i (< 5B 26 3,907
Amount due to a director BN —RIEFHFIE 23(d) 18,075
R, ... .. 21,982 |
_Netcurrentassets ~~~  BRBEE 40,080
NET ASSETS BEE 338,402
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRR G 30(a)
Share capital A% 907
Reserves = 337,495
TOTAL EQUITY MR 338,402

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March

2014.

Yu Jianqiu
BEMK

Chairman

e

The notes on pages 72 to 180 form part of these financial statements.

MR2014F3 827 A EE S RIRET)E -

Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
BMERE
Director

EF

FE72HEE 180 AM MBI MR — 2D -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AR R

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HZE2013F12A31HILFE (AARKIIE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RAREGRRE,
Share-based
Share capital  Exchange reserve Capital reserve ~ Statutory reserves  payment reserve  Retained profits Total
AR &
A B 5 AR EAGEE EERE  ARONREE REEH st

(Note 30(c)) (Note 30(d)(i)) (Note 30(a)(i)) (Note 30(d)(iv) (Note 30(d)(v))
(PizE30(c)) (PzE30(d)i) (PzE30(d)(i)) (PzE30(d(iv)) (MiEE30(d)v)

Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARETR ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARBTT ARBFT
Balance at 1 January 201251818
2012 iSfe o3 67 7,507 48377 10,268 7,659 47,786 121,664
Changes in equity for 20125
2012: HRESS :
Profit for the year FRET = = - - - 92,29 92,29
Other comprehensive Hitz2E
income e = (72) - - - - (72)
Total comprehensive B2E
income gz = (72) - - - 92,292 92,220

Appropriations to statutory E&EETE

fesenves e 3000) - - - 9,890 - (.850) -
Issue of shares for HXAIARE

settlement of contingent  E77R&1

consideration 30(d)(ii) 1 - 4,090 - - - 4,091
Capitalisation of amount N EHRRER

due to Gushan BRAR ([EH])

Environmental Energy  HJEUEBEA AR

Limited (“Gushan") 30(d)i) - - 77,700 - - - 77,700
Share-based compensation & 123 (89 SARAR &

settled by Gushan HHERE 30(d)i) - - 2,647 - - = 2,647

Balance at 31 December 2012%12H318
2012 ife= ] 68 7435 132,814 20,158 7,659 130,188 298,322
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

,_\ﬂ —HE N/ h
GARREBE
For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi)
BZE2013F12A31BLLFE VAARKSIE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RRTRERRES
Share-based
Exchange Statutory payment Retained
Share capital ~ Share premium reserve  Capital reserve reserves reserve profits Total
DRGA
B& BAEE EXRE ERffE EERE  ERLAREE REERN @t
(Note 30(c))  (Note 30(d)(iii))  (Note 30(d)(i))  (Note 30(d)(ii)) (Note 30(d)(iv))  (Note 30(d)(v))
(WEE30()  (WiE3o()Gi)  (MFEE30(@))  (W&E30(d)Gi)  (H&E30(d)iv)  (BF&E30(d)(v))
Note RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB000
Mz ARBTR ARBTR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR
Balance at 1 January 20131818
2013 e 68 - 7435 132,814 20,158 7,659 130,188 298,322
Changes in equity for 20135
2013: HRESS
Profit for the year FERET - - - - - - 245,548 245,548
Other comprehensive Hthzm
income Wz - - 4,935 - - - - 4,935
Total comprehensive ErENR
income - - 4,935 - - - 245,548 250,483
Arising from corporate M BMAREHE
reorganisation 759 - - (759) - - - -
Appropriations to BRTATERE
statutory reserves 30(d)(iv) - - - - 29,248 - (29,248) -
Shares issued under share B ftiEETEI TETHIRL
option scheme 30(d)(iii) 80 71,579 - - - (7,659) - 64,000
Balance at 31 December 2013%12531R %%
2013 907 71,579 12,370 132,055 49,406 - 346,488 612,805
The notes on pages 72 to 180 form part of these financial statements. FET2EZE130E M EBKIBREN—ZH ©
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
el nER

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi)
HZE20135F12A31BILFE (UARKESIE)

Note 2013 2012
Mzt  RMB'O0OARM¥TIT RMB'O00ARKETFTT

Operating activities REER
Cash generated from operations CEMEEE 25(b) 95,849 91,611
The People’s Republic of China BEATREARLRE ([HE])

("PRC") Corporate Income Tax EFEH

paid (55,166) (20,365)
Net cash generated from REFTHMBFRS

operating activities 40,683 71,246
Investing activities RETEE
Payment for the purchase of BEME  BEMEERRK

property, plant and equipment (189,670) (140,651)
Payment for lease prepayments A HAETEN K (40,418) -
Payment for prepayments for land sz s + i {F FR4EFB T 0

use rights - (13,410)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - KE&RENFERIE

plant and equipment 35 -
Proceeds from acquisitions of U BE BB R BRI FT 1S T8

subsidiaries (net of cash and cash (MR EWIENIRE &

equivalents acquired) ReEEEE) - 152
Interest received B2 1,647 443
Increase in pledged deposits IR 538 00 (19,392) (12,619)
Net cash used in investing REFHFFAFERS

activities (247,798) (166,085)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2013 (Expressed in Renminbi)

rAﬂ/\

n\/ \

BEmEax

HZE2013F12A318ILFE AAREDIE)

Note 2013 2012
M  RMB'OOOARMTT RMB'O0OARKTT

Financing activities RESEE
Proceeds from new bank loans and i8R 1TE N M E (& FRETE 0B

other borrowings 478,880 175,000
Repayment of bank loans and other EEETER M HAMES

borrowings (236,000) (110,000)
Proceeds from sale of assets under  $HEE&MRIZHE T & EMSHRIE

sale and leaseback arrangement 60,000 -
Proceeds from advances from local & H B T V3R A 1S 5008

governments 50,000 -
Repayment of advances from local &8 & BT8R

governments (7,640) -
Interest paid EATHLE (27,122) (11,166)
(Repayment to)/advances from (B®),/ RE B R

related parties (51,899) 28,991
Proceeds from issue of shares BATIRD PS5/ 8 - 1
Repayment of loans from related BEREBEH THNER

parties - (11,162)
Net cash generated from REITBMETFRSE

financing activities 266,219 71,664
Net increase/(decrease) ReRBESSEBERFEM (RD)

in cash and cash equivalents 59,104 (23,175)
Cash and cash equivalents FUNNRERRESEEER

at the beginning of the year 19,609 42,781
Effect of foreign exchange rate EZRSFHHE

changes (98) 3
Cash and cash equivalents FARANWESRRSESEER

at the end of the year 25(a) 78,615 19,609

The notes on pages 72 to 180 form part of these financial statements.

F72EEFE 180 MM BRI B HREM—FH ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BTk M ot

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRRBEHEN

(a)

IAARKTIE)

General information

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited (“the Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 22 February 2013.
The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the
Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales
of copper and related products and the provision of contract
manufacturing in the PRC. The shares of the Company have been
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) since 21 February 2014.

Pursuant to the corporate reorganisation of the Group (“the
Corporate Reorganisation”), the Company became the
holding company of the Group on 19 March 2013. Details of the
Corporate Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the

Company dated 11 February 2014 (“the Prospectus”).
Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards
(“IAS") and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB"). These financial statements also comply
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(“Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Company and the Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued a number of new and revised IFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. There have
been no significant changes to the accounting policies applied
in these financial statements for the years presented as a result
of these developments. The Group has not applied any new or
revised standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period. The revised and new accounting
standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective for the
accounting period beginning 1 January 2013 are set out in note
37.
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(b)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of preparation of the financial statements

Engen Investments Limited (“Engen”) was incorporated on
August 6, 2010 as a subsidiary of Gushan Environmental Energy
Limited (“Gushan”). Gushan listed its American Depositary Shares
on the New York Stock Exchange in December 2007, with Mr. Yu
Jiangiu being the major shareholder of Gushan. In October 2012,
Gushan merged with Trillion Energy Holdings Limited, a company
indirectly wholly-owned by Mr. Yu Jiangiu. Subsequent to the
merger, Gushan ceased to be a publicly traded company.

Engen was established with the view of becoming the holding
company of the copper business of Gushan, which commenced
when Engen acquired Mianyang Jinxin Copper Co., Ltd. (“Jinxin")
in November 2010.

The companies that took part in the Corporate Reorganisation
were controlled by the same ultimate equity shareholder, Mr.
Yu lJiangiu both before and after the Corporate Reorganisation
and there were no changes in the business and operations of
Engen and its subsidiaries. The Corporate Reorganisation only
involved incorporating the Company with no prior substantive
operations as the holding company of Engen and the holding
company of the Group. Accordingly, the Corporate Reorganisation
has been accounted for using a principle similar to that for a
reverse acquisition as set out in IFRS 3 “Business combinations”
with Engen treated as the acquirer for accounting purposes.
The financial statements have been prepared and presented as a
continuation of the consolidated financial statements of Engen
and its subsidiaries, with the assets and liabilities of the Group
recognised and measured at their historical carrying amounts prior
to the Corporate Reorganisation.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except for derivative financial
instruments (see note 2(e)) and contingent consideration liabilities
(see note 2(u)) that are stated at their fair values.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
IFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of IFRSs
that have significant effect on the financial statements and major
sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 3.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights
(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and cash flow and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(j)).

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method as at the acquisition date — i.e. when control is transferred
to the Group.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of
debt or equity securities, that the Group incurs in connection with
a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree; over

(ii) the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.
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2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(d)  Business combinations (continued)
When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.
Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or group of cash-generating units, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 2(j)).
On disposal of a cash-generating unit, any attributable amount of
purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or
loss on disposal.

(e) Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value.
At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured. The gain
or loss on remeasurement to fair value is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

(f)  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 2())).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.
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(9)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives as
follows:

— Buildings The shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and their estimated useful lives,
being no more than 20 years after the
date of completion

— Plant and machinery 5 to 10 years
— Furniture, fittings and 3 to 10 years
equipment

— Motor vehicles 4 to 10 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a
reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction and equipment pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(j)). The cost of
self-constructed items of property, plant and equipment includes
the cost of materials, direct labour, the initial estimate, where
relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note
2(v)). Capitalisation of these costs ceases and the construction in
progress is transferred to property, plant and equipment when the
asset is substantially ready for its intended use.

No depreciation is provided in respect of the construction in
progress until it is substantially completed and ready for its
intended use.
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2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated useful life is
finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(j)).
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. Customer relationships are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives are three
years.

(i) Leased assets

(i)

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets
for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether
the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to
the Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leased assets (continued)
Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases,
the amounts representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if
lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments of such
assets are included in property, plant and equipment and the
corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates
which write off the cost or valuation of the assets over the term
of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will obtain
ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note
2(f). Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy as set out in note 2(j). Finance charges implicit
in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over the period
of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic
rate of charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for
each accounting period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Sales and leaseback arrangement resulting in finance lease

A sales and leaseback arrangement which results in a finance lease
is a means whereby the lessor provides finance to the lessee with
the asset as security. To reflect the substance of the transaction,
any excess of sales proceeds over the carrying amount of the
asset, or any deficit of sales proceeds lower than the carrying
amount of the asset, is deferred and amortised as an adjustment
to the depreciation of the asset.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leased assets (continued)
Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating
leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or
loss in equal installments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the
leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term.

Impairment of assets
Impairment of trade and other receivables

Investments in current and non-current trade and other receivables
that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about
one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; and

- significant changes in the technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the
debtor.
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2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
0] Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of trade and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

- For trade and other current receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively
where financial assets carried at amortised cost share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar
to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of trade and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect
of trade debtors and bills receivable included within trade and
other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not
remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied
that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is
written off against trade debtors and bills receivable directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to identify indications that the following assets
may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- lease prepayments;

- non-current prepayments for property, plant and
equipment;

- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s balance sheet.
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2  Significant accounting policies (continued)
0] Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. In addition, the recoverable amount of goodwill is
estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of
impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of
its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the
carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit
to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), or value in use (if determinable).
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2  Significant accounting policies (continued) 2

0] Impairment of assets (continued) (j)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued) (ii)
- Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment
loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals
of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the
year in which the reversals are recognised.

(k) Inventories (k)

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-
down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

0)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value
and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note
2(j)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using an effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in accordance
with note 2(r)(i), trade and other payables are subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.
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2

(p)

(i)

AARBIIE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a share-
based payment reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the Binomial Option Pricing Model, taking into
account the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment
reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the share-based payment reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the share-based payment
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).
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(a)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for
the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the
balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect

of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities
and all deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that
may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from
the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the
deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit
can be utilised.
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(a)

AARBIIE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purpose, the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
that they are not part of a business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent
that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements
therein, are presented separately from each other and are not
offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities,
and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities if the
Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or
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2

(a)

(r)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets
and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis
or realise and settle simultaneously.

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer (i.e.
the guarantor) to make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the group issues a financial guarantee, the fair value of
the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred income within
trade and other payables. The fair value of financial guarantees
issued at the time of issuance is determined by reference to fees
charged in an arm’s length transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the actual
rates charged by lenders when the guarantee is made available
with the estimated rates that lenders would have charged, had
the guarantees not been available, where reliable estimates of
such information can be made. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the group’s policies applicable to
that category of asset. Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.
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(i)

(ii)

AARBIIE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as deferred
income is amortised in profit or loss over the term of the
guarantee as income from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with note 2(r)(ii) if and
when (i) it becomes probable that the holder of the guarantee
will call upon the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as
follows:

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when the customer has accepted the goods
and the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Contract manufacturing income

Contract manufacturing income is recognised when the contract
manufacturing services are rendered.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method.

Government grants

An unconditional government grant is recognised in profit or
loss as other revenue when the grant becomes receivable, other
government grants are recognised in the balance sheet initially
when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with the conditions attached to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred
are recognised as revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in
the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively
recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.
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(t)

(u)

AARBIIE)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of operations with functional currency other than
Renminbi are translated into Renminbi at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into Renminbi
at the closing foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in
the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency other than
Renminbi, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that operation with functional currency other than
Renminbi is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the
profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

Contingent consideration liabilities

Contingent consideration liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value. At each settlement and balance sheet date the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(v)

(w)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale
are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a
qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the asset is
being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are in progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted or
complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Group or the Group’s parent.
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

(w) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

U]

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the same third
entity, or vice versa.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,

that person in their dealings with the entity.

94 China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FE£BE RN HERA T
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(x)

(a)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial statements provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

Accounting judgements and estimates
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Note 35 contains information about the assumptions and their risk
factors relating to the fair value of financial instruments.

2

(x)

(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)
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(BRmAEHEN

(b)

AARBIIE)

Accounting judgements and estimates
(continued)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s financial statements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following accounting judgements:

Impairment

Notes 17 and 35(a) contain information about the assumptions
and risk factors relating to the impairment of goodwill and trade
debtors. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as
follows:

In considering the impairment losses that may be required for
certain assets of the Group, the recoverable amount of the asset
needs to be determined. The recoverable amount is the greater
of its fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. It is difficult
to precisely estimate fair value because quoted market prices for
these assets may not be readily available. In determining the value
in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted
to its present value, which requires significant judgement relating
to items such as level of turnover and amount of operating costs.
The Group uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and supportable
assumptions and projections of items such as turnover and
operating costs.

Impairment losses for doubtful debts are assessed and provided
based on the regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectability by the management. A considerable level of
judgement is exercised by the management when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FE£BE RN HERA T
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(b)

(ii)

(iii)

Accounting judgements and estimates
(continued)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s financial statements (continued)

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price less
estimated costs of completion and distribution expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycles or changes in market conditions. Management
reassesses these estimations at the balance sheet date to ensure
inventories are shown at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. Management
reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be recorded
during any reporting period. The useful lives of the assets are
based on the Group’s historical experience with similar assets
and taking into account anticipated technological changes. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if there are
significant changes from previous estimates.

(b)

(i)

(iii)

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(BRmAEHEN

(b)

(iv)

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FE£BE RN HERA T

AARBIIE)

Accounting judgements and estimates
(continued)

Critical accounting judgements in applying the
Group’s financial statements (continued)

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. Management carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of these transactions is
reconsidered periodically by taking into account all changes in
tax legislations. Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible
temporary differences. As deferred tax assets can only be
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available, management'’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax
assets, if any, are recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Contingent consideration for acquisitions

Certain of the Group’s business acquisitions involved post-
acquisition performance-based contingent consideration. Fair
values of contingent consideration for acquisitions, as of their
respective acquisition dates form part of the consideration
transferred in exchange for the acquired business. These fair value
measurements require, among other things, significant estimation
of post-acquisition performance of the acquired business and
significant judgement on time value of money. Contingent
consideration shall be re-measured at its fair value resulting from
events or factors emerge after the acquisition date, with any
resulting gain or loss recognised in the profit or loss.

(b)

(iv)
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4  Turnover 4 EEH
The principal activities of the Group are manufacturing and REEMETEXBRERHENRREBERMNR
sales of copper and related products and provision of contract #HE REERT -

manufacturing services in the PRC.

Turnover represents the sales value of goods sold to customers less EREEREETEPNEMNEEEERRE T
returns, discounts, and value added taxes and other sales tax, and 0 BEBNEMEERAREREEEWRA - S5
contract manufacturing income which is analysed as follows: m

2013 2012

RMB'000A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARET T

Sales of recycled copper products HEBEER 2,144,429 1,486,238
Sales of power transmission and HEXALEE
distribution cables 528,629 -
Sales of communication cables HEBEEE 250,776 =
Sales of scrap materials SHEEREZEM AL 31,177 24,290
Contract manufacturing income ERZERA 3,993 2,605
2,959,004 1,513,133
Sales of recycled copper products to one customer (2012: one HE2013F12A31BLEE mMAKEE— %
customer) of the Group represents more than 10% of the Group's (2012 : — %) BEFHEBLENERGEAEHE
total turnover for the year ended 31 December 2013. In 2013, the B EEI0% £ R2013F - RERF M E
turnover from the customer amounted to RMB304,351,000 (2012: 3 % A A R #304,351,0007T (20124 A R ¥
RMB272,808,000). Further details of concentrations of credit risk 272,808,0007T) - FRAREZEEFPHEESHE
arising from customers are set out in note 35(a). B EYE — PRI FE35() ©
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(BRBEFHEIN - LARKEDIE)
5 Segment reporting 5 2@®E
The Group manages its businesses by business operations. In a REEREBEEERAEL - B/ RERK
manner consistent with the way in which information is reported ERBEMARNEENTRSNTEREENLE R
internally to the Group's most senior executive management for BEROAR -8B AEER2012FEHE —# 7]
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, WMEDE - BIBERMERD 3P - K2013F - #R
the Group has only identified one reportable segment, i.e. 201212 A3 B REM I RAMFELEEETRAD
recycled copper products segment in 2012. In 2013, following A ([RAFEL]) REBRMEHWBEREGR
the acquisitions of Sichuan Baohe Xinshiji Cable Co., Ltd. (“Baohe AR ([RFZFH]) % AEBESHAN=E0 ]®E
Xinshiji”) and Mianyang Baohe Taiyue Communications Cable DEE - BNBERERD T  ZARBESBRBEE
Co., Ltd. (“Baohe Taiyue”) on 31 December 2012, the Group BHE -
has identified three reportable segments, namely recycled copper
products segment, power transmission and distribution cables
segment and communication cables segment.
(i) Recycled copper products segment: use of scrap copper (i) BANERD R : AR N ERNRER
and electrolytic copper for the manufacturing of recycled A A
copper products;
(if) Power transmission and distribution cables segment: sales (if) KRBESE  HERLSHE &
of power transmission and distribution cables; and
(iif) Communication cables segment: manufacturing and sales iy REEESH: EHBRESEE -
of communication cables.
(@) Segment results (a) THEPFEE

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s most senior executive
management monitors the results attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments
with reference to sales generated by those segments and the
expenses incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “profit after
taxation”. To arrive at reportable segment profit, the Group’s profit
is further adjusted for items not specially attributed to individual
segments, such as head office or corporate administrative costs.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FE£BE RN HERA T
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(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

5  Segment reporting (continued) 5 2#®RE (&)

(@) Segment results (continued) (a) DEBHELE (&)
A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is not provided HROHBEENBENAEERLETHERESR
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management SEEERTHREERE  BkHMBEEMEETT
and accordingly, no segment assets or liabilities information is 27 -
presented.
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as REBERAFE RBREFEAERD R RTHDH
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management for XBERENMERASESSRTREREENA2
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment BOERFTIMT -

performance for the current and prior years is set out below:

2013

Power
transmission
Recycled copper  and distribution =~ Communication

products cables cables Total
BEHER AEES BiEEE @gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AR®T T ARET T
Revenue from external REIMNBE RS
customers 2,162,531 528,629 267,844 2,959,004
Inter-segment revenue o Ep i dE 588,426 1,176 3,653 593,255
Reportable segment revenue  AJ R & 7 #BU S 2,750,957 529,805 271,497 3,552,259
Reportable segment profit AR 2 S5 F 201,313 32,725 40,792 274,830
Interest income FBUWA 1,636 11 - 1,647
Finance costs BFFSRC AN 27,226 38 452 27,716
Depreciation and TEREH
amortisation 20,157 2,801 1,582 24,540
VAT refunds, government BERREL
grants and subsidies BFHEBh R AEeL 272,636 4,222 2,060 278,918
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(% SEHRPES - UARAFIE)
5 Segment reporting (continued) 5 oEH®mE (&)
(a) EBZEAE ()

(@) Segment results (continued)

2012

Power
transmission
and distribution

Recycled copper Communication

products cables cables Total
BHEIER AES BEEE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARET T ARETT
Revenue from external REINERFH M
customers 1,513,133 = = 1,513,133
Inter-segment revenue DB - _ _ _
Reportable segment revenue  AJ R 2RI 1,513,133 - - 1,513,133
Reportable segment profit ATRE D20 A 98,189 = = 98,189
Interest income FBUWA 442 - - 442
Finance costs BARE A AR 10,907 = = 10,907
Depreciation and e R
amortisation 8,679 - - 8,679
VAT refunds, government EERRBE KL
grants and subsidies e EN 55,443 = = 55,443
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AAR®SIE)

(BRH=AEEAEN

5  Segment reporting (continued) 5 S2H®E (&
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue and (b) A& 5 2BULES BRI Z HIETER
profit or loss
2013 2012
RMB'000 A K¥F T RMB'O00ARETFT
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue AR o Bl e 3,552,259 1,513,133
Elimination of inter-segment revenue D HPEUER (593,255) -
Consolidated turnover (see note 4) e EERE (RME) 2,959,004 1,513,133
Profit R F
Reportable segment profit derived from the B A& EINEE FH)
Group's external customers By 274,830 98,189
Unallocated head office and corporate AOE AN ERE MM
expenses (29,282) (5,897)
Consolidated profit after taxation FEBIERT 245,548 92,292
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

5 Segment reporting (continued) 5
() Geographic information (c)

As the Group’s business participates in only one geographical
location classified by the location of assets, i.e. the PRC, including
Hong Kong, no separate geographical segment analysis based on
the location of assets is presented.

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of the Group's revenue from external customers. The
geographical location of customers is based on the location at
which the goods are delivered.

DEHRE (&)
3B E R
RN A EM M £ RE—BIREEMEHE St

Ergs - BB (BEEE) BT E2RRE
EFTEE] D B B3R ) BB DA

TREINABAREREINEDE P B W A & 7
ENEN - TPMRABETIRIERMEE D

2013 2012
RMB'000A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKEFIT

PRC F 2,907,115 1,513,133
Other countries HABIR 51,889 =
2,959,004 1,513,133
6  Other revenue and other net income/(loss) 6  Hfttliz=REMFWRA (&E)
(@) Other revenue (a) Hfblkzs
2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'000ARKEF T
VAT refunds EBR
— Employment of disabled staff (note (i) —EABRKET (ME0) 13,472 8,598
— Comprehensive utilisation of resources —IREFBER (HEG))
(note (i) 185,742 40,001
Government grants (note (jii)) BB (B EEGin) 36,452 6,844
Government subsidies (note (iv)) BUFAEEsE (BsEGv)) 43,252 -
Interest income FEUA 1,647 443
280,565 55,886
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A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

Other revenue and other net income/(loss) 6 HitWzm=REMFUWA (EE)

(continued) (#])

Other revenue (continued) (a) Hftuukz (&)

Notes: Bt

(i) The Group is entitled to government grants for value added tax (“VAT") (i) AEEFEERBIBERTIEER BT
refunds in connection with the employment of disabled people under 20071675 Bt R AR IR A T B AR ([1EE
Cai Shui [2007] No. 67 issued by the PRC State Administration of #1) R BFMHE -

Taxation.

(ii) The Group is entitled to government grants for VAT refunds under (i) RAEBEFEERRBRERT AR BEHS
the Policies for Products Generated from Comprehensive Utilisation BEHNEREREETNAESEERBENBEA (B
of Resources (Cai Shui [2011] No. 115) jointly issued by the PRC State [2011]1155%) BEEERRBABATHE) ©
Administration of Taxation and Ministry of Finance.

(iii) The amounts represent local government grants received by operating (iii) ZECBIEASE Z BB QR FTIRERA 77 B
subsidiaries of the Group for the purpose of providing immediate FIRBh - 1ERYHE A R & RIS B BIR B + DA
financial support to the subsidiaries for general operating use with AR—REE MTEEEBEBEBEKRA - BE
no future related cost. No specific conditions are required to meet in AN SRR G o
connection with the grants.

(iv) In 2013, the Group was granted government subsidies of (iv) 20135 - 7N & B B E B 4 B P45 & 1)l
RMB43,252,000 from Sichuan Province Mianyang City Youxian District EEGTHIUEVERE FRNMBARE
Finance Bureau in connection with meeting tax payment thresholds. 43,252,0007T ° A R #33,000,0007T & 1l Bf 1% &
RMB33,000,000 of the subsidies were settled by offsetting against ZF2013F12A318 IEFE & BT 22 5K ATIE
the advances from the local government during the year ended 31 $H o
December 2013.

Other net income/(loss) (b) EAFWA (EE)

2013 2012

RMB'000A R¥ T RMB'000AERHKT T

Net gain on copper futures contracts HEIE & #URF I e 2,367 935

Change in fair value of contingent FAREBEBENA L EEH)

consideration liabilities - (2,211)

Net foreign exchange loss FRIE B8 (672) )
Loss on disposal of property, plant and BEWE  BENMRENEE

equipment (1,184) (111)

Others A (83) (113)

428 (1,509)
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

7 Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

7  BangR

Bt AE R T HBR A TSI &S

2013 2012
RMB'000AR¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKETIT
(@) Finance costs (a) /i 5%
Interest on bank loans and other AR AFRBEEENR
borrowings wholly repayable B R EMERAFLE
within five years 24,306 9,511
Interest on loans from related parties B8 I EREF S 6,270 5,942
Guarantee fees and other charges ERERARHEMIE 2,754 1,397
33,330 16,850
(b) Staff costs (b) BIRAK
Salaries, wages and other benefits He - TEREMET 15,239 14,018
Contributions to defined contribution FEHFCRIRET BRI
retirement schemes 2,378 2,694
Share-based payment expenses VAR A7 A EE R 8T SR =2 - 2,647
17,617 19,359

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FE£BE RN HERA T

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate
in defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the local authorities whereby
the subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries during the current and prior years. Contributions
to the Schemes vest immediately. Under the Schemes,
retirement benefits of existing and retired employees
are payable by the relevant scheme administrators and
the Group has no further obligations beyond the annual
contributions.

RIRTBEARE SRR AR - REERF
B e Y B A R 22 L ph a5 1 7 S R AR R SR
HFCRKRBAE S (581 - &t - M8
RARKNFEERBEFERIZAEREERS
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Profit before taxation (continued)

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging: (continued)

A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

7 BiEnzA (&)

T8 A M TR A N IR G H - ()

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKETIT

relating to staff costs, depreciation and amortisation, which amount is

also included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above

or in note 7(b) for each of these types of expenses.

(c) Otheritems (0 Hng g

Cost of inventories# (note 21(b)) FERkA# (FisE21(b)) 2,828,880 1,401,445
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BE R RENITE

equipment 20,000 8,473
Amortisation of lease prepayments THETBR R E 884 206
Amortisation of intangible assets E A EREY 3,656 -
Auditor’s remuneration %A NS 1,575 26
Listing expenses kX 22,313 =
Research and development costs fEER A 2,751 613

# Cost of inventories includes RMB21,421,000 (2012: RMB12,250,000) # FERADRBIEEE TR - ENEBHESE

B AR #21,421,0007T (2012F : A R
12,250,0007T) ' BEZEMAZME - BHLE
e A XM 7 ()R EN A FLREA -
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(BRA=AEBEN

(a)

AARBIIE)

Income tax in the consolidated income 8

mEWBERANAER

statement
Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) #HZRAWBERANFIER :
represents:
2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥F T RMB'O00ARKEFT
Current tax — PRC Corporate Income ENERREIE — PRI EARE
Tax
Provision for the year FANEE 67,650 30,573
Effect of reduction in tax rate for prior year @FFEER R MG E
(note (iii)) (HfE3EGii)) (8,030) =
59,620 30,573
Deferred tax B IA
Origination and reversal of temporary o = 2E ) A A K (D)
differences (128) 10
59,492 30,583

Notes:

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the
BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands
and the BVI.

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the Group did
not earn any assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during
the current and prior years. The payment of dividends by Hong Kong
incorporated subsidiaries are not subject to any Hong Kong withholding

tax.

The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Corporate Income
Tax at the statutory rate of 25%. In 2013, the Company’s subsidiaries,
Jinxin and Mianyang Tongxin Copper Co., Ltd. (“Tongxin”) applied
for preferential income tax treatment under the Notice on Taxation
Policy Issues concerning the In-depth Implementation of the Western
Development Strategy (Cai Shui [2011] No. 58). In May 2013, each of
the Company’s subsidiaries, Jinxin and Tongxin obtained the approval
from local tax authority and became entitled to a preferential income
tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2020. Tax credits
of RMB8,030,000 related to the preferential tax treatment for 2012 are
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2013.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FE£BE RN HERA T

FaE

(ii)

(iii)

REFASHSREABRZESNRY KA - &K
SEBRKERSE S K IHEEE LS MR TR
Bt -

R AN S BN AN F E B 5 I & REUE SR
BENESHOEMERBGHN - BRI BT B
BREL B - B8 LM AL A MY BB 2 BR A A
SHRGRNERMBEBRIO

AR R R BIFT B A AR BRUE TE B R 25% B A
REMEMEH - R2013F - AREHBAR
SERBHINSMEARAR ([HE]) BIEER
RAE He TG E A B BB A RA B I R B 03B AN (B
Bi[2011]5585%) BHFEEEBMSHAE ° 12013
F58  ARRAINBARCBRINES EMSEH
i %5 H B BEfE - A 2012481 B1H 220204
12A31 B =B 15% M EBMERTE - 2012
FEBENBFEMNIEATEES ARS,030,000
TR BEZE2013F12A31BILFEHEBR -



(b)

Income tax in the consolidated income

statement (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements

A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

8 HZEWERANFEHR (&)

Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting (b) FiEHAXERBERARETENETEFN
profit at applicable tax rates: R ¢
2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥TF 7 RMB'000AERBFT
Profit before taxation T AT A 305,040 122,875
Notional tax on profit before taxation, RS Rl AR
calculated at the rates applicable in the BT BB R 5T E /T AT
tax jurisdictions concerned e M B HEE IR 65,483 32,158
Effect of non-deductible expenses B AR E 1,173 53
Effect of non-taxable income FERBIUM AR & (2,635) (2,280)
Effect of reduction in tax rate R T AN E (8,030) -
PRC withholding tax on interest income REBAER 2HAEBATE
among entities within the Group WA KA B TR0 633 652
PRC withholding tax on re-investment of ~ HRERE B BRELAEIN—K
retained earnings to increase registered MiB A am R E AR
capital of a subsidiary AR ETESORR 2,500 -
Others Hth 368 -
Actual tax expense BB 59,492 30,583
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B R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

9 Directors’ remuneration 9 EEME

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the BEEBARGIZ 161 GEEENESHEMT ¢
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

2013
Salaries,
allowances Retirement

Directors' and benefits Discretionary scheme Share-based
fee in kind bonuses  contribution Sub-total  payments Total

-1 B8 HRGA
Bz REMAE  BERA % Nt ERRAR @t

(note 9(a))

(GELE)

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
AEBTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARWTR ARMTR ARMTR

Executive directors HTEE

Mr. Yu Jiangiu AEMEE - 511 - 4 515 - 515
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson BEErE - 417 - 4 481 - 481
Mr. Liu Hanjiu EnEHE - 64 - 5 69 - 69
Mr. Huang Weiping BESLE - 113 - - 113 - 113
Ms. Zhu Yufen KEZT - 55 - - 55 - 55

- 1,220 - 13 1,233 - 1,233
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHITES
directors
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny FEREE - - - - - - -
Ms. Liu Rong g - - - - - - -
Mr. Pan Liansheng EEp - - - - - - _
- 1,220 - 13 1,233 - 1,233
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9

+ EWEN
A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

Directors’ remuneration (continued) 9 E=EM< (&)
2012
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  Discretionary scheme Share-based
Directors' fee in kind bonuses  contribution Sub-total payments Total
e 2 RIRGHE R A
EzHe  RENTE BETEA 1t Nt BRI &5t
(note 9(a))
(Kf9(a)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETT ARETR AREBTT ARMTT ARETR ARETR
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Yu Jiangiu mENLE - - - - - - -
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson BEEEE - - - - - - -
Mr. Liu Hanjiu EnEHE - 56 - 4 60 1,998 2,058
Mr. Huang Weiping BESLE - 120 - 4 124 = 124
Ms. Zhu Yufen REZRT - 51 - - 51 150 201
- 227 - 8 235 2,148 2,383
(a) These represent the estimated value of share options (a) REHHRIEESERBERENMGEEE -
granted to the directors. The value of these share options ZEBRRERNEE IR BEM E2(0) () FTE A
is measured according to the Group’s accounting policies SEBEMUARG RERNNRZ SN EETH
for share-based payment transactions as set out in note Kit2  MRBEZWE  FHEEEEZEB
2(p)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes EF E R AT HOR WA B IR H AR AR T A m
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous years FIRERSEMNAR - ZEEYN =S
where grants of equity instruments are forfeited prior to (RREEELBRENEERAKREE) B
vesting. The details of these benefits in kind, including M3 1R H#HEE -
the principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed in note 31.
(b) Mr. Yu Jiangiu received total remuneration of (b) HZE2013F12A318ILFE - eni@f 4

RMB1,033,000 (2012: RMB1,574,000) from Gushan in his
capacity as principal executive officer of Gushan for the
year ended 31 December 2013.

UHREBELERTRARNE D Bh
A2 U B % il 48 58 A R 5 1,033,0007T (2012
£ AR¥1,574,0007T) °
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

9 Directors’ remuneration (continued)

(o) Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson received total remuneration
of RMB966,000 (2012: RMB1,471,000) from Gushan in
his capacity as president of Gushan for the year ended 31
December 2013.

(d) In connection with the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange, Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny, Ms. Liu
Rong and Mr. Pan Liansheng have been appointed as the
Company’s independent non-executive directors effective
from 16 August 2013.

10 Individuals with highest emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2012:
two) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 9. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2012:
three) individuals are as follows:

9

10

EEME (&)

(0 HE2013F12A3181LFE - BERLE
AR A S A &7 - M a2 R
Bl 42 58 A K #966,0007T (20124 : AR
1,471,0007C) °

(d) AR R RN AT BT - WAL -
IR T REBEBEECDERTAEANRE
SIEHITES  B2013F8 16 B AR -

REHMAL

haGEeHFMALE D B3R (20126 :28) &
= HEBRMI oM EE - Hir2% (20124 : 38)
ATEVFBEEN T

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKEFIT

Salaries and other emoluments e R E AR 514 179
Discretionary bonuses BYIBTEAL - =
Share-based payments LARR D AR 3K - -
Retirement scheme contributions RIRETBI R 8 12

522 191

The above individuals’ emoluments are within the following band:

A EALHFHMNFLATRE

2013 2012

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £%1,000,000% 7T

2 3
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12

(a)

Profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company

The consolidated profit attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company includes a loss of RMB23,823,000 which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

Earnings per share
Basic

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company
of RMB245,548,000 (2012: RMB92,292,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares. For the purpose of calculating
basic and diluted earnings per share, the number of ordinary
shares used in the calculation reflected (i) the effects of the share
sub-division of Engen in February 2013; (ii) share exchange in
connection with the Corporate Reorganisation as disclosed in
note 30(c) and (jii) the capitalisation issue which took place on 21
February 2014 in connection with the listing of the Company’s
shares on a retrospective basis as if the events had occurred on 1
January 2012.

1

12

(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements

+ EWEN
A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

RATEHERRRELZR

ARREZBRRERELREERIEEERBARE
23,823,000t © EFFARRRIE BIHRE -

BREF
=W

BRERENTIREBEAR R EERREESFIAR
#245,548,0007T (20124 : AR#92,292,0007T)
REBRAOMETHHRE MTE - et EGRELR
R#EFERFIME  STEMANETBEREE RET()
201362 A BE&RM DI 5 (B EEAMRR
(RMEE30() B B8) K(iii)i AR 2 &) AR 15 70201442
R21BETHENMCBITHENTE  MOEHES
HER2012F1A1BEAE -
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

12 Earnings per share (continued) 12 BRER (&)
(@) Basic (continued) (@) EXK (&)
2013 2012
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of 7% /A B4 25 A% 5 FE {5 %

the Company (RMB’000) (ANRETIT) 245,548 92,292
Issued ordinary shares at the beginning of ~ F#JH) 2 317 Z FMAK

the year 10,225 10,000
Effect of issue of shares of Engen BITReROHMTE

(note 30(c)ii)) GEENEO) - 133
Effect of share sub-division of Engen M2013F2 B n B e BRin s £

in February 2013 (note 30(c)(iii)) (B EE30(c)ii)) 1,012,275 1,003,167
Effect of share options exercised TR EN 2 (MFE30(0Vv)

(note 30(c)(v)) 210,926 -

1,233,426 1,013,300
Effect of share exchange in connection XA DI E

with the Corporate Reorganisation (B 5E30(c)(iv))

(note 30(c)(iv)) 9,202,500 9,119,700
Effect of capitalisation issue (note 38(b)) B ITHZE (H5+38(b)) 1,450,593,714 1,408,487,000
Weighted average number of ordinary BTSRRI METHEE

shares in issue 1,461,029,640 1,418,620,000
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BRERREF (ARETT) 0.17 0.07

(b) Diluted (b) #®E

BREFRNRBRABMEEEHELBRMA
BRTEIINEAR ZNETFHEAE - RARHME
FE SREEANSRRNSREAER - BAM
BEEEENEE L AR AREEER -

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. Diluted earnings
per share is the same as basic earnings per share for both years as
all potentially dilutive potential ordinary shares were anti-dilutive.
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(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

13 Property, plant and equipment 13 Y% - BERRZE
Furniture,
Plant and fittings and Construction in
Buildings machinery equipment  Motor vehicles progress Total
GE-
BEN BER#E REBRRE RE ERIR ast
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBFR ARBTR

Cost: BA
At 1 January 2013 #2013F1818 53,188 67,199 951 4,670 162,030 288,038
Additions ME
- through business combinations  — BB AEA G - - - - - -
- others - Hfth 6,608 8,179 3,450 29 139,587 158,120
Transfers =474 114,956 7,292 - - (186,248) -
Net decrease arising from sales ~ EEHAEZ HELH

and leaseback transaction NN - (9,338) - - - (9,338)
Disposals RE - (1,596) (77 (121) - (1,794)
At 31 December 2013 R2013%12A31H 174,752 135,736 4324 4,845 115,369 435,026

Accumulated depreciation: ZEHE

At 1 January 2013 20131 A18 4,302 8,887 427 1,573 - 15,189
Charge for the year ERk 7,251 11,320 394 1,035 - 20,000
Written back on sales and ERHR

leaseback transaction RGO - (4,294) - - - (4,294)
Written back on disposals RERED - (472) (58) (45) - (575)
At 31 December 2013 R2013%12A31H 11,553 15,441 763 2,563 - 30,320
Net book value: REFE
At 31 December 2013 R2013E12A318 163,199 120,295 3,561 2,282 115,369 404,706
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

13 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 13 #¥¥ - BEKZRE (&)

Furniture,
Plant and fittings and Construction in
Buildings machinery equipment  Motor vehicles progress Total
e
BEN Rl R RERRE HE ERIR it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTL ARETT ARETT ARG ARETT ARETTL

Cost: A

At 1 January 2012 #2012%1R818 43,666 49,979 734 3,744 986 99,109
Additions NE

- through business combinations  — BB AEA G - 2,113 43 - - 2,156
- others - Hfth 7 71247 124 926 178,619 186,923
Transfers & 9,515 8,010 50 - (17,575) -
Disposals RE - (150) - = - (150)
At 31 December 2012 2012612A318 53,188 67,199 951 4,670 162,030 288,038

Accumulated depreciation: 2EHIE

At 1 January 2012 1201281818 1,869 4,019 207 660 - 6,755
Charge for the year FRMB 2433 4,907 220 913 - 8,473
Written back on disposals RERER - (39) - - - (39)
At 31 December 2012 R2012E12A318 4,302 8,887 427 1,573 - 15,189
Net book value: REFE .

At 31 December 2012 R2012%12A31H 48,8836 58,312 524 3,097 162,030 272,849
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13 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(a)

(b)

(0)

All of the Group’s property, plant and equipment are
located in the PRC. At 31 December 2013, property, plant
and equipment with net book value of RMB127,688,000
(2012: RMB7,803,000) were pledged for certain banking
facilities granted to the Group (see note 28(b)).

At 31 December 2013, the Group has yet to obtain
property ownership certificates for certain buildings with
an aggregate net book value of RMB28,469,000 (2012:
RMB29,483,000). The amount of RMB28,469,000 as at 31
December 2013 comprised Jinxin's buildings with net book
value of RMB27,743,000. The directors of the Company
are of the opinion that the Group owned the beneficial
title to these buildings as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Additions to construction in progress in 2012 comprised
RMB161,320,000 for the construction of production
plant of Tongxin. Additions to construction in progress
in 2013 principally comprised RMB103,098,000 and
RMB26,037,000 for the construction of production plant
of Baohe Xinshiji and Tongxin respectively.

=+ EWEN
A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

13 % BENRRE (&)

(a)

(@]

REBENRMEWE BERZBHLR
R - R2013F12A318 - BREEFE A
A R #127,688,0007T (201245 : A R &
7,803,0007T) KM% - BEKERHE MK
FTAEKENE FRITEEEHER (RN
28(b)) °

2013124318 + A % B & K #t R @ F
B4 58 A R #28,469,0007T (20124 + A
R #£29,483,0007T) W& TEEYIIGE
E#- R2013F12A31BM B AR
28,469,000 T B35 & B W B E Y A BRE F
BEAR27,743,0007T - XAREERA
REBR2013F K2012F 12831 BB A%
FSHEYN B EME o

R20NEARENERZIRCEARZINSEE
EREHARE161,320,0007T  #20134F
AENEEIRFZREEBRMFTLR
HES B EERE K AR 103,098,000
TR AR#26,037,0007T °
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

14 Lease prepayments 14 MHEFEMNRK

2013 2012
RMB'000A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKEFIT

Cost: A :

At 1 January ®1A1H 9,708 9,708

Additions NE 78,923 -

At 31 December M12A31H 88,631 9,708

Accumulated amortisation: Z5HEey

At 1 January ®1A1R 376 170

Charge for the year FRG 884 206

At 31 December MW12H31H 1,260 376

Net book value: BREFE :

At 31 December M12A31H 87,371 9,332
The lease prepayments represent costs of the land use rights in HEBNREFAUATREN L (KREBER
respect of land located in the PRC, on which the Group built its B A EEM REEY) AL AKX
production premises and buildings. The land use rights expire in AN o+ P FIREN 2056 F 2063 R 2 Hf ©

2056 to 2063.

At 31 December 2013, land use rights with an aggregate carrying M2013%F12A31H REEE XA ARB
amount of RMB35,071,000 (2012: RMB4,319,000) were pledged 35,071,0007T (20124 : A K #4,319,0007T) )
for certain banking facilities granted to the Group (see note 28(b)). THFEAEE R TASEEMNE TRITEEELK

# (RHEE28(b)) °
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15 Investments in subsidiaries 15 RHEATINRE
The Company
AAFE
2013
RMB'000 A K¥F T
Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR - RAAR 298,322
At 31 December 2013, the Company had direct or indirect M2013F12A318 * ARARR NI BRARESR
interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are private BESEEER  ZSEWNBRAREAELARR :
companies:
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of issued  Attributable equity interest
Name of company establishment and paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
R
AL R 2 BRTRERERFHE EEARRfERE TEER
Direct Indirect
E# S
Engen Investments Limited The British Virgin United States dollars 100% - Investment holding
BEREBRAR Islands (“BVI") ("US$") 10,225 REER
RERAHS 10,225%7t ([%7))
([EBERES])
True Excel Holdings Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong dollars = 100%  Investment holding
REERERAA B ("HK$") 1 REAEK
a7 ([B])
Alpha Legend Holdings Limited  Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
B ERERAR BE 18T REAZR
Alpha Business Investments Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited BB BT REER
FHREBRAA
Alpha Universe Group Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Inactive
BREBERAR BE BT HEXY
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

15 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

15 REBLRANIRE (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Particulars of issued  Attributable equity interest
Name of company establishment and paid-up capital held by the Company Principal activities
R
LS R BRTRERERFHE EEADRfERE TEER
Direct Indirect
E# 3
Mianyang Jinxin Copper The PRC Renminbi - 100%  Recycling of scrap copper for the
Co., Ltd.* H ("RMB") 70,000,000 manufacturing of recycled copper
EEeRREERAR ARE ([ARE]) products
70,000,0007T o1 A 7 5 A S T R MO RE SR
Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei Copper  The PRC RMB55,000,000 = 100%  Processing of scrap copper and
Co., Ltd.(“Xiangbei”)* F AK#55,000,00070 electrolytic copper for the
AR INEER AR manufacturing of copper related
(3 ]) products
P A 2 AR R E PR OB 8
Mianyang Tongxin Copper The PRC RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Recycling of scrap copper for the
Co., Ltd.* H AR%50,000,0007T manufacturing of recycled copper
L RBREERAR products
1B 5 A A 6 2 e P P ) RS
Sichuan Baohe Xinshiji Cable ~ The PRC RMB30,000,000 = 100%  Sale of power transmission and
Co., Ltd.* F AE30,000,0007T distribution cables
m)IIRAE R R E B R AR HEZREE
Mianyang Baohe Taiyue The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Communications Cable H AR%30,000,0007T communication cables
Co., Ltd.* EERHEREEE
BERNREBERE
BRATF
S The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official * BENANEZLEBHEMRSE - ZFRFANELE

names of these companies are in Chinese.
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(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

Intangible assets 16 B|EEE
Customer relationships EF@#%
2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥F T RMB'000AREFT

Cost: A :

At 1 January ®1A18 10,968 -

Additions through business combinations — BEBEBAFAE - 10,968

At 31 December ®12A31H 10,968 10,968

Accumulated amortisation: S 1

At 1 January Mm1A18 - =

Charge for the year FEANHIBR 3,656 =

At 31 December W12A31H 3,656 -

Net book value: BRENFE :

At 31 December ®12A31H 7,312 10,968
Intangible assets represent customer relationships acquired by the A AR AN B LU AR AT i 4D RRAR AR
Group in connection with the acquisitions of Baohe Xinshiji and (M201212A31BEK) MERFSNEFPEE (R
Baohe Taiyue completed on 31 December 2012 (see note 36(a)(iii) B 3E36(a)(ii) K236(b) (i) ° G A K #$5 X H et A LR
and 36(b)(ii))). The amortisation charge for the year is included in EHERAE [FTHHRAX ]

“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income statement.
Goodwill 17 B®E
2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥F T RMB'000ARETFT

Cost and carrying amounts: AR ERARTE B :

At 1 January R®1A1R 39,308 38,847

Additions through business combinations  FE@RESESHRE - 461

At 31 December M12A31H 39,308 39,308
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

17

Goodwill (continued)

Impairment tests for cash-generating units
containing goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs)

17 BHE (E)

BERENREEEENVARENR

BEDDETAKE TIINREELER

as follows:
2013 2012
RMB'000AR# Tt RMB'O00ARKETIT
Jinxin 5 16,081 16,081
Xiangbei Nisie 22,766 22,766
Baohe Xinshiji RAFTHEAD 213 213
Baohe Taiyue RFNZ= 248 248
39,308 39,308

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based
on value in use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period
are extrapolated using a zero growth rate. The growth rates do
not exceed the long-term average growth rates for the business in
which the CGU operates. The cash flows are discounted using pre-
tax discount rates of 15.0% (2012: 14.7%) at 31 December 2013.
Key assumptions used for the value in use calculations are the
gross margins, growth rates and the availability of VAT refunds.
Management determined the budgeted gross margins and growth
rates based on past performance and its expectation for market
development. When preparing the financial budgets, management
assumed that there would be no changes to the existing
government policies in respect of the VAT refunds in connection
with the employment of disabled staff and under the Policies for
Products Generated from Comprehensive Utilisation of Resources
(see note 6(a)). No other government grants are assumed to be
received in the value in use calculations.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs based on the value-in-use
calculations is higher than its carrying amount as at 31 December
2013 and 2012. Accordingly, no impairment loss for goodwill has
been recognised in the consolidated income statement.
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18 Pledged deposits 18 EBEAER

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKEFIT

Deposits with guarantee companies RERARTR 2,500 2,400
Deposits with banks RERITRIF 26,711 12,045
Deposit with lessor of finance leases REVEEE R AIETFR 4,800 -
Deposits with securities broker REFEL TR - 174
34,011 14,619
Represented by: BN :
Current BNHA 27,711 14,619
Non-current FEENER 6,300 =
34,011 14,619
Pledged deposits were placed with guarantee companies for BEAE R 1T B A K #20,000,0007T (20124 -
the purpose of obtaining bank loans of RMB20,000,000 (2012: AR#15,000,0007T) A ERA BFREERF
RMB15,000,000), which were guaranteed by the guarantee o BRARTERBERARER -
companies.
Pledged deposits with banks were placed as security for bills REBTHEERTFRE R REE S BN EBTFRIE
payable of the Group (see note 26(b)). EEH (RMEE26(b)) ©
Pledged deposit of RMB4,800,000 was placed as security for the M2013F12A318 + A K #4,800,0007T (2012
obligations under finance leases as at 31 December 2013 (2012: F:8)NEERFRENREHMETHEEGTR
Nil). YRR -
Pledged deposits with securities broker were pledged as deposits M20135F12A31H - RFESFLLENEERERE
for outstanding copper futures contracts as at 31 December 2012. AR E S N EIRIERES ©
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B R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

19 Other non-current assets 19 HMERBEE
2013 2012
RMB'000 A K¥F T RMB'O00ARETT
Prepayments for property, plant and Y% - BB kBT

equipment and land use rights R TER K 48,834 42,634

Deferred differences arising from a sales ERHRR FEERELEER
and leaseback transaction (Note) (Hf$3E) 4,000 -
52,834 42,634

Note:  Deferred differences arising from a sales and leaseback transaction Mzt : SRENXSELNELCEZEFLAHNREEEN

represent the deficit of sale proceeds over the net book value of the
assets disposed of under the sales and leaseback transaction which
resulted in a financial lease. The differences are deferred and amortised
as adjustments to the depreciation of the assets over their estimated
useful lives.

ERBERSEHRE N EEENPSRRERE
BREFEMEANZR - LAZHERYEEN
ENABEEENTHAIRBFHRNTAELER

20 Income tax in the consolidated balance 20 HZEEEBEBRAMFEHR
sheet
(@) Current taxation in the consolidated balance sheet (a) #HZHEEESBRANEIEATKIELS !
represents:
2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥F T RMB'O00ARETFT
At 1 January ®1A1R 23,863 12,740
Provision for PRC Corporate Income Tax for 4 AH B >3
the year FriS BB 67,650 30,573
Reduction in tax rate for prior year BEFENTETE (8,030) -
Additions through business combinations  #EBEKESHIRE - 915
PRC Corporate Income Tax paid B BEMEMEH (55,166) (20,365)
At 31 December M12A31H 28,317 23,863
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(b)

Income tax in the consolidated balance

sheet (continued)

Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet and the movements during the year

are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

20 FEEERBERANAEH (H)

(b) EWRBELENIE (BEE) AfF
REABERERTRABNELTHE (BE)/ 8E

AN
HVAERER D RN AR Z T

Depreciation/
amortisation

allowances

in excess of

the related

depreciation/  Provisions and

amortisation accruals Total

i

BBITEE

HWEsENITE
BRE RBRERESER et
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREETTT AREETFIT AREETTT
At 1 January 2012 M20121A1H 2,560 (858) 1,702
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss GPNVE3 (92) 102 10
At 31 December 2012 R2012412A31H 2,468 (756) 1,712
At 1 January 2013 20131818 2,468 (756) 1,712
Credited to profit or loss T ABE (72) (56) (128)
At 31 December 2013 72013 12H31H 2,396 (812) 1,584
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B R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

20 Income tax in the consolidated balance 20 HFREEEEEXRANAEHR (&)
sheet (continued)

(b) Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised (b) CHERELERIE (BE) AR (&)
(continued)

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKETIT

Reconciliation to the consolidated balance 474 B EE (&3 752 :
sheet:

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the — PNEE BEREZH

balance sheet FIEERIHE E (145) (351)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the & E B &R FERH
balance sheet FRERIEB & 1,729 2,063
1,584 1,712
()  Deferred tax liabilities not recognised () ARERNELEBIBEEE
At 31 December 2013, temporary differences relating to the 20135 12A318 - EAREE & H B E 2 R &
undistributed profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries amounted Ko Bl s R A BRI ERR =5 A AR %419,654,000
to RMB419,654,000 (2012: RMB181,422,000). No deferred JC (20124 : AR#181,422,0007T) - BEEMZ S
tax liabilities in respect of these undistributed profits have been RO @ MNERBELCHIEEE  RERARRD AE
recognised as the Company controls the dividend policy of these ZEMBRARMNREBE - MEAXRBEFTREZ
subsidiaries and it has been determined that these profits will not ERFETSEATERHRRDIK ©

be distributed in the foreseeable future.
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A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

21 Inventories 21 FE

(@) Inventories in the consolidated balance sheet (a) HZAEEEBRANEFEESRE:

comprise:
2013 2012
RMB'000 A K¥F T RMB'O00ARETFT
Raw materials B 64,201 76,858
Work in progress ERG 13,597 10,374
Finished goods BIPK B 62,362 26,492
140,160 113,724
At 31 December 2013, inventories of RMB78,612,000 (2012: 201341283180 £ 5 AR #78,612,0007T
RMB89,802,000) were pledged for banking facilities granted to (20124 : AR%89,802,0007T) WIFEE X T
the Group (see note 28(b)) (2012: certain bills payable (see note AEBMEITEE (AKE28(b)) (20124F : EFFE
26(b) and banking facilities (see note 28(b)). NEF (R FE26(0) R IRITEE (RHE28(b)) 1E

R

(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) WRABMILFAGESRRRNFESE
recognised as an expense and included in the AW :
consolidated income statement is as follows:

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'000ARKEFIT

Carrying amount of inventories sold EEFENREE 2,828,880 1,401,445
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kr + 23
B R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

22 Trade and other receivables

22 EBFREMEWRFIE

2013 2012

RMB'000 A R¥F 7t RMB'000AREETF T

Trade debtors and bills receivable SRR LW EE 677,102 329,315

Advance payments to suppliers S R P FR IR 74,755 72,125

Government grants receivable JE U R A 47 B 85,953 39,742
Other deposits, prepayments and Hibize  BNRK

receivables A& e 10,856 23,890

848,666 465,072

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered

or recognised as expense within one year.

(a) At 31 December 2013, government grants receivable of (a)
RMB12,766,000 (2012: RMB18,041,000) was pledged for certain
banking facilities granted to the Group (see note 28(b)).

(b)

(b)  Trade debtors and bills receivable included amounts due from
related parties as follows:

PR B 5 K H b YR IR TR B 7 — F U B S FE R
REX -

M2013412A318 » &8 A A K ¥12,766,0007T
(20124 : AER#18,041,0007T) ) JE U B T #4 Bh
ERETAEENS TRITEEMFELIER (R
28(b)) °

B 5 R E W R B R R R T ORI T

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥F 7t RMB'000ARKETF T
Guangzhou Taiyue Communications Cable EMNFHRHBEEEFR AR
Co., Ltd. ("Guangzhou Taiyue") ([EMZRRL]) 5,958 8,627
Sichuan Xinshiji Cable Co., Ltd. )it 4L SR B A IR A &)
(“Sichuan Xinshiji”) (TPl ErtE4e 1) 35,736 72,775
41,694 81,402

() At 31 December 2012, advance payments to suppliers included  (c)
an amount due from the related party, Guangzhou Taiyue, of
RMB1,923,000. No advance payments were made to Guangzhou
Taiyue at 31 December 2013.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT
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A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

22 Trade and other receivables (continued) 22 ESREMEWEE (&)

(d)  Ageing analysis (d) BRERDAHT
At the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of trade debtors REZER  BIRAREWREENHRE ST (AR
and bills receivable, based on transaction date is, as follows: SBEHEAEE) M :

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKETIT

Within 30 days 30KA 312,971 258,584
31 to 60 days 31E60K 270,981 46,935
61 to 180 days 61£2180K 91,871 23,780
Over 180 days HiB180K 1,279 16
677,102 329,315
Trade debtors and bills receivable are normally due within 90 days BOERREWREER —MRNZH HHETIORA
from the date of transaction. Further details of the Group’s credit FH - AEENEERENE —SFBEHNRME
policy are set out in note 35(a). 35(a) °
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kr + 23
B R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

22 Trade and other receivables (continued) 22

(e) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not (e)
impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable that are
neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are

B2 RHEMEBWRIE (F)

WERENE S RAREREE

ABER KA RBRRBENE SRR REREED
FREEDHTINT

as follows:
2013 2012
RMB'000 AR¥F 7t RMB'000ARHEEF T
Current BNER 236,153 66,779
Less than 30 days past due B R30K 262,744 213,782
31 to 60 days past due BHI31E60K 164,050 41,851
61 to 180 days past due #HI61 2 180K 14,006 6,887
Over 180 days past due B HAR IR 180K 149 16
Amounts past due HEHA TR I8 440,949 262,536
677,102 329,315

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. No
impairment loss on trade debtors and bills receivable was made
during the current and prior years.
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+ EWEN
A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

23 Amounts due from/to related parties

(@) Name and relationship with related parties

During the current and prior years, the directors are of the

view that the related parties of the Group include the following

individuals or entities:

Name of party

Relationships

Mr. Yu Jiangiu*
EIFELN

Mr. Liu Hanjiu*
EESA

Mr. Huang Weiping*

HIEN

Mr. Zhang Huayi*
RER

Mr. Chen Hai*
BRE

Mr. Fan Dunxian*
BHIR

Gushan Environmental

Energy Limited
("Gushan”)

Carling Technology
Limited (“Carling”)

Controlling shareholder and key

management personnel

Key management personnel

Key management personnel

Key management personnel

Key management personnel since the
acquisition of Baohe Xinshiji on 31
December 2012 and a beneficial
minority shareholder of the Company

Key management personnel since the
acquisition of Baohe Taiyue on 31
December 2012 and a beneficial
minority shareholder of the Company

Immediate holding company of Engen
prior to the completion of Corporate
Reorganisation on 19 March 2013
and a company controlled by Mr. Yu
Jiangiu

A private company controlled by Mr. Yu
Jiangiu

23

(a)

FEUR  FEAS BARE 75 RRIR

BTS2 E  ELEA R TS MY R 4R

RAFENBEFE  EFRR/LEENBY L E
BTIIALHESE :

BEHBANS BB BER

BIEERK ST PR R R T EEIE AR

BEM TEEBAS

R L TEEEAS

REEF S TEEEAS

BeR A o A= * B2012%12 A31 BURBELR
MFALEEETEEEA

BRARFMERPRE

SEHOR L B2012412 A31 B BE(R
MEBHEETEEEAS
PZYNSEF= N &S

HERBERAR  E2013F38 198 BAETK

AT A))

MERARAR]
(M0 )

AR EMERERA
A AR EHREEREE
I AT

BRSO AL &
N

F

el
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kr + 23
B R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

23 Amounts due from/to related parties 23 MEW ~FE(IBEE S FIE (&)
(continued)

(@) Name and relationship with related parties (a) FIEES A5 R EREK A NEER (&)
(continued)

Name of party Relationships BEHAME S EB BR
Gold Hero Holdings A private company controlled by Mr. SRERAR AT H2010F11A3BKESS
Limited (“Gold Hero") Chen Lian* [, a former director (Tex1) HBABRRLE (80
of Jinxin, and a related party to the AIESE) RN [E o R
Group since the acquisition of Jinxin FESlRAE R - AR
on 3 November 2010 and ceased to 1K2013F2 208 ~B A
be a related party on 20 February oy
2013
Silver Harvest Holdings A private company controlled by Mr. BRERBRA FR B S A P il
Limited Liu Hanjiu (T&4R]) FLE QA

(“Silver Harvest")

Gold Wide Enterprises A private company controlled by Mr. SECEBRAR BHEEFEEEGD
Limited (“Gold Wide”) ~ Huang Weiping (T&E) FR—Y/NG]

Silvery Boom Limited A private company controlled by Mr. REFRARE (TR HERERLEEHD
("Silvery Boom") Zhang Huayi g1) [IR—/NS]|

Sichuan Gushan A private company controlled by Mr. Yu M ER2mpa b2 BeTER S E bl
Vegetable Fat Jiangiu BRAR (T FLARF]
Chemistry Co., Ltd.* ELA)

(“Sichuan Gushan")
usPll ey i =t =P =g

NG|

Fujian Gushan Biodiesel A private company controlled by Mr. Yu BEOIZEYSHR  HaEREEES
Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Jiangiu BRAR ([8E  FLARFA
Gushan”)* ?E@Efféi aizl)
MR ARA
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+ EWEN
A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

Amounts due from/to related parties

(continued)

Name and relationship with related parties

(continued)

Name of party

Relationships

Sichuan Baohe Fushan
Resources Recycling
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Baohe Fushan”)*

mIERMNELEEE

RAZEARAR]

Sichuan Xinshiji Cables
Co., Ltd. (“Sichuan
Xinshiji”)* F8JI it 42
BRERRAF

Guangzhou Taiyue

Communications Cable
Co., Ltd. (“Guangzhou

Taiyue”)* EM T
BiEREBRAR

* The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official

A private company under significant
influence of the daughter of Mr. Yu
Jianqiu

A private company which is 19.5%
owned by Mr. Chen Hai who has
de facto control of the board of
directors of Sichuan Xinshiji and a
related party to the Group since the
acquisition of Baohe Xinshiji on 31
December 2012

A private company which is 40%
owned by Mr. Fan Dunxian and a
related party to the Group since the
acquisition of Baohe Taiyue on 31
December 2012

name of these related parties is in Chinese.

23 JEW FESRAR T RO ()

(a) BABL BERERBANER (&)

MBS, BB BER
MWIERMELE SaENRCENLRE
S ERAZEER FENALENT
~A ([MRFIE
W) *
|ttt 4 R8E  B2012912 831 BEER
RAR ([00)IF  FMEFttaRAmRBREEE

4 )

BN EEBER
BRE AR ([E
MEL]) *

* RXANRELHERDE - ZEWBHINE S

(ESm)I st aenES

SHEEREZEGE) RAK
B RAEE T BEA 19.5% 1
FE AT

BH20124F 12 A31 BEEIR
MRMAL A ROBER LA
KA B MRS HE
40%HIFLE A ]

T AR SR YE
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B R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

23 Amounts due from/to related parties 23 MEW ~FE(IBEE S FIE (&)

(continued)
(b)  Amounts due from/to related parties (b) FEW FE(SEEESE T FRIE
Note 2013 2012
Mz  RMB'O00OARM T RMB'O00AERETIT

Amount due from Mr. Liu Hanjiu JEURBIEIA S £ FRIA 259 -
Amount due from Mr. Zhang Huayi  fEUSREE s S A Y FRIE 37 =
Amount due from Mr. Fan Dunxian  JEURSE IR e 4 HyZR I8 - 3,190
Amount due from Guangzhou Taiyue J& U5 E )N 2880708 - 1,379
Amount due from Baohe Fushan IR AN S | & FRIE 668 -
Amounts due from related parties — JEUL BAESE 77 AR IB (i) 964 4,569
Amount due to Mr. Yu Jiangiu FERT RN S R 3R IE 18,075 27,268
Amount due to Mr. Liu Hanjiu FETBIER S AR FUA - 19,555
Amount due to Mr. Huang Weiping FEf &85 £ B KIA - 19,135
Amount due to Mr. Zhang Huayi JE < oR EE 2% S A O FROE - 980
Amount due to Gushan e AZ )RR IE 11,830 8,656
Amount due to Carling FERTINZE R FRIE 155 68
Amount due to Silver Harvest FEfTEIRAFRIE 140 -
Amount due to Baohe Fushan FERHMRANE LA FRIE - 22,000
Amount due to Sichuan Xinshiji JETPT) 1|5 it 42 RO RROB - 24,000
Amount due to Guangzhou Taiyue  FEfHE M SR A9 08 - 24,000
Amounts due to related parties FETRBES H I FR1B (i) 30,200 145,662

Notes: B2

(i) The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, interest free and (i) FE U BARS 5 RORIAYS R EIER - R B REREXK

repayable on demand. B2 -
(ii) The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest free and (i) FEfTRARE DT MR RERIE T - B RARER
repayable on demand. B3% -
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(9)

(d)

24

Amounts due from/to related parties
(continued)

Amounts due from subsidiaries

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and repayable on demand.

Amount due to a director

The amount due to a director is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

Loans from related parties

23

(c)

(d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

FEUR  FEATRARE 5 RRIR (4E)

FE U B 8 2~ B R SRR

FERHBARNRESARER  RARBRER
g -

BN — L EBHFHIE

BN - EFNFOAREER  RERBRERE
R o

24 REBABLHNER

Note 2013 2012
ffiZf RMB'O00AR¥ Tt RMB'000ARETFIT

Loans from Gushan REHEHNER (i) 79,515 82,012
Loan from Gold Hero (see note 28(e)) K E &K E X (RHi5E28(e)) (ii) - 6,698
Loan from Silver Harvest KEHEENER (iii) 5,433 5,605
84,948 94,315
Notes: B EE -
(i) At 31 December 2013, the loans from Gushan are unsecured, interest (i) REALBCHNERSERF - R2013F12A3181%

bearing at 6.56% per annum (2012: 6.06% to 6.56% per annum) and
repayable within one year.

(ii) At 31 December 2013, the loan from Gold Hero is unsecured, interest
bearing at 6.06% per annum (2012: 6.06% per annum) and repayable
within one year. Gold Hero ceased to be a related party of the Group
since February 2013 upon its disposal of all the equity interest in
Engen.

(iii) At 31 December 2013, the loan from Silver Harvest is unsecured,
interest bearing at 6.06% per annum (2012: 6.06% per annum) and
repayable within one year.

FF%E6.56% (20124 + FH%*6.06%%E6.56%)
TR URBER—FREE -

(i) RESSHERSEEF - R2013F12A3181&
F H £6.06% (20124 : F F| %£6.06%) 5 & -
ARER—FRNER - B2013F2AcRHEER
SHRHRER - CETHRAEENBE S

(iii) RELROERAEER - R2013F1283181%
F F %£6.06% (20124 : F 7 %£6.06%) & 2 -
LARBR—FRERE -
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B R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRA=AEBEN

25

(a)

AARBIIE)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated

25

(a)

ReRkREFEHER

REEERBERKRGERENERANR

balance sheet and consolidated cash flow statement eRELEEBEEIE
represent:
2013 2012
RMB'000 A R#¥F T RMB'000ARET T
Cash at bank and in hand RITEHRKLFERS 78,615 19,609

At 31 December 2013, cash and cash equivalents in the amount
of RMB77,887,000 (2012: RMB16,330,000) are denominated in
RMB and are deposited in banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is
subject to the relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC government.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT
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25 Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to cash
generated from operations:

A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

25 RERBEELHEEE (F)

(b) BiADRAELBRER TR

Note 2013 2012
ffiE  RMB'OOOARMTT RMB'O0OARKTT
Profit before taxation A& A 305,040 122,875
Adjustments for: KLANIEE FE
Finance costs B I N 7(a) 33,330 16,850
Share-based compensation LARR (D R ERE R FE(E 7(b) - 2,647
Depreciation e 7(c) 20,000 8,473
Amortisation of lease prepayments & B R AN 2 £ 7(c) 884 206
Amortisation of intangible assets A ER 7(c) 3,656 =
Interest income FEUA 6(a) (1,647) (443)
Loss on disposal of property, REYE - BB &
plant and equipment H 518 6(b) 1,184 111
Change in fair value of contingent AR B A FEZE)
consideration 6(b) - 2,211
Exchange differences ERER 1,510 (31
Changes in working capital: BEESEE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories & (&Em),wE (26,436) 2,282
Increase in trade and other B 5 N E Ath FE YR IEIE N
receivables (382,550) (129,244)
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 [ E fth JE (< FRIEIE A0 140,878 65,674
Cash generated from operations BEMBIEE 95,849 91,611
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B R MR
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

26 Trade and other payables 26 ESKRHMEMNRIE
The Group The Company
rEE b NN
2013 2012 2013
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000

AR®T AREET T AR¥TFT

Trade payables B S 5IE 166,706 76,137 -
Bills payable ERAEE 26,400 41,400 -
Receipts in advance TEUGRIR 22,758 7,568 =
Accrued expenses and other payables FE5tEHSZ & H b fE{ F8E 204,807 128,702 3,907
Derivative financial instruments PTESRT A (FFFE35()
(note 35(f)) - 3 -
420,671 253,810 3,907
All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled or FiEE 5 R E A B RIBTERR —F A X R
recognised as income within one year or repayable on demand. RN - HAREKER -

(@) Trade payables included amount due to a related (a) EBZEMNIBEIEUT EBIEEE AN
party as follows: 18

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKETIT

Sichuan Xinshiji uspli i - 16,797

(b)  Bills payable are normally issued with a maturity of (b) BENEBENEHA-—RISBBREA
not more than six months.

At 31 December 2012, bills payable were secured by pledged 201261283318 - ERNRBEAFNRTHER
deposits of RMB12,045,000 placed with banks (see note 28), 17 A R #12,045,0007T (R Fi3528) « BREE
inventories with carrying amount of RMB70,562,000 (see note BARYT70,562,000tFE (RHTE21) R2E
21) and personal deposits of Mr. Liu Hanjiu amounting to R EMEATFRAREEG6,000,0007THEA

RMB6,000,000.

At 31 December 2013, bills payable were secured by pledged 20135128318 - ERNRBEAFRRTHER
deposits of RMB26,606,000 placed with banks (see note 28). HERARK26,606,0007T (RH5E28) #HH o
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26 Trade and other payables (continued)

() At the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of
the trade and bills payable, based on transaction
date, is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(R BERRES - HUARAIIE)
26 EBESZRHAMEMSRE (F)

(0 REHER BESERAMRERENREBNE
RO (URZEHAEE) 0T

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥F T RMB'O00ARKETFT
Within 30 days 30K 102,572 49,659
31 to 60 days 31260k 35,395 25,932
61 to 180 days 61£2180K 33,739 40,552
Over 180 days i@ 180K 21,400 1,394
193,106 117,537
(d)  An analysis of accrued expenses and other payables (d) AEBMESTR X R HEMENSFIEN DT
of the Group is analysed as follows: mE
2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥F T RMB'O00ARETFT
Salaries, wages, bonus and other accrued ¥4 - T& - {EALREH M

benefits FET1ER 3,977 2,761

Payables for the purchase of property, plant B4 E W% - BiE &R E
and equipment and intangible assets BEREMNZIE 78,331 74,953
Payables for land use rights T PR REFE (S FRIR 11,595 =
VAT payable FEHBER 63,138 33,689
Unearned government grants TEU B BT 78 B 19,860 10,300
Others EHih 27,906 6,999
204,807 128,702

Payables for the purchase of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets included amounts due to related parties
of RMB14,000,000 (2012: RMB14,000,000) which comprised
RMB4,000,000 and RMB10,000,000 payable to Guangzhou Taiyue
and Sichuan Xinshiji respectively at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

At 31 December 2013, payables for land use rights of
RMB11,595,000 are repayable to Baohe Fushan within one year.

2013F K2012F 128318 - BEME - BE &
AN T A EE A FE A RROE B R RN R B U5 B B
AR#14,000,0007¢ (20124 : AR#14,000,000
T0)  ZARIBEED RIS BN R R ) F A
HIFIE A R #4,000,0007T &2 AR ¥10,000,0007T ©

M20135F12A318 » +HERAENENRBAR
#511,595,0007 BN —FAREEFRMB L -
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

27 Obligations under finance leases

At 31 December 2013, the Group had obligations under finance

27 BMEHETHER

MR2013F12A318  ASEHBU NEEERE

leases repayable as follows: HETHET
2013 2012
Present value Present value of

of the minimum Total minimum the minimum lease Total minimum

lease payments  lease payments payments lease payments

REHE REHE REHEE RIEHEE

REMNRE RIEMRE FIBRIR(E PR

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET ARBFT AREBFT

Within 1 year 1R 12,000 15,187 - -
After 1 year but within 1FEE2FER

2 years 12,000 15,398 - -
After 2 years but within 2 EBESFR

5 years 36,000 40,222 - -

48,000 55,620 - -

60,000 70,807 - -
Less: total future interest B AR RFE

expenses iz 4a g (10,807) -

Present value of finance lease FIEMESEHEE
obligations 60,000 -

On 27 December 2013, the Group entered into an agreement

with a leasing company to sell certain of the Group’s plant and

equipment to the leasing company and leaseback the plant and

equipment for a five year period. The Group has the option

to purchase the plant and equipment at a nominal price of
RMB10,000 at the end of the lease period. At 31 December 2013,
the net book value of plant and equipment held under finance

leases included in property, plant and equipment amounted to

RMB60,000,000.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT

M20135F12H278 - AEEE -—FHEE R AT
—MABAFHEEMALEHZE  AZHEEA RS
EREBETHERBBEEABHEZERE LR
e NHEEHR  AEEAREZENEREARKE
10,0007C 5 B Z Z M5 MR » 12013F12 431
H G SREREEEHANDE  KERXERDF
EEEARKG60,000,000TTHE « BE R



28 Bank loans and other borrowings

(@) At 31 December 2013, the analysis of the carrying

amount of borrowings is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

28 HBITERRHEMMER

(a) 2013F128318 ' ERWEEREE D
WmT

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKEFIT

Bank loans SRITER

— secured — BHER 207,380 125,000

— unsecured — fER 60,000 50,000
267,380 175,000

Entrusted loans ZEER

— unsecured — \EHER 90,500 =

Other borrowings HABIER

— unsecured — \EHER 66,494 =
424,374 175,000

Represented by: By :

Current BNEA 304,374 175,000

Non-current JEBNHEA 120,000 -
424,374 175,000
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

28 Bank loans and other borrowings 28 HRITERKHMMER (&)
(continued)

(b)  The amounts of banking facilities and the utilisation (b) M2013F12A31BMERTEERLFH
at 31 December 2013 are set out as follows: BRERT X :

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKETIT

Banking facilities available ATRRITEER
— secured —B2ER 253,780 216,400
— unsecured — R 60,000 50,000
313,780 266,400
Amounts utilised EBAMIE
— bills payable — ENEE 26,400 41,400
— bank loans — RITER 267,380 175,000
293,780 216,400
There are cross default provisions in certain banking facilities, the ETRIOTGEEENBERIXENKX  AEBER
default on a loan by the Group would then cause a default on —HERKSEMERMAER ENRXNEME
other loans which have cross default provisions. e
The banking facilities were secured by the following assets: EEMRTTRERBATEEERR
2013 2012
RMB'000 A K¥F T RMB'O00AREETT
Property, plant and equipment (note 13(a)) #1% - BiE K &M (M5E13@)) 127,688 7,803
Lease prepayments (note 14) MEBMAR (MiFE14) 35,071 4,319
Prepayment for land use rights T E AR TRIT SR - 13,410
Inventories (note 21) & (FfaE21) 78,612 89,802
Government grants receivable (note 22) FEMB T HEB) (PEE22) 12,766 18,041
Pledged deposits (note 18) BHEIFEFER (Mi3E18) 29,106 14,445

283,243 147,820

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT



28

(9)

Bank loans and other borrowings
(continued)

At the balance sheet date, bank loans were
repayable as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

vk 23
BRI =t
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(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

RITERREMER (&)

RESEH  BITERNERBRUT :

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKETIT

With 1 year or on demand 1FARIREK 257,380 175,000
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBRE2FR 10,000 =
267,380 175,000

As at 31 December 2012, secured bank loans of the Group
totaling RMB15,000,000 were guaranteed by independent
third party financial guarantors which in turn obtained personal
guarantees by Mr. Liu Hanjiu along with certain assets which are
included in the above table.

As at 31 December 2012, secured bank loans of the Group
totaling RMB20,000,000 were guaranteed by Mr. Huang Weiping
along with certain assets which are included in the above table.

At 31 December 2013, bank loans of RMB40,000,000 (2012:
RMB20,000,000) were secured by the lease prepayments and
property, plant and equipment of Sichuan Gushan. In respect
of the bank loan of RMB20,000,000 at 31 December 2013 and
2012, Jinxin is subject to a covenant on the fulfilment of assets/
liabilities ratio. At 31 December 2013 and 2012, the covenant had
not been breached.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group obtained
bank loans totaling RMB76,000,000 which required inventories of
RMB154,520,000 as security. At 31 December 2012, the Group
did not have the required level of inventories and therefore had
breached the loan covenants of the bank loans which became
payable on demand as at 31 December 2012. Amongst the bank
loans of RMB76,000,000, RMB20,000,000 and RMB30,000,000
were fully repaid at maturity in May 2013 and July 2013
respectively. In April 2013, the Group received waivers from the
bank in respect of the bank loans of RMB26,000,000 that were
in breach of covenants. Such loans of RMB26,000,000 were fully
repaid by December 2013.

2012 12A31B AE B REA AR
15,000,000t EERRITEREHBLE =70
BEERAREER - ZFERARELEREGZER
FHEMBAERER ERABETEE -

MR2012%F 128318 ARE B RA2BE A ARE
20,000,000t E EIFRITERRAREF A LR
REXRMBENETEAERR-

M2013F12A31H © € % A A R #40,000,0007T
(20124 : AR %20,000,00070) #IER7T & FX A M
NEEWHREENZMDE - BE RREHELIF
B2013F R2012F12A31BENRITERARE
20,000,000t E @ @BEXIEBTEAEABL X
HRFEFTHRR o R20135F %2012612A8318 + I
M3 SR o

HZE2012F12A31BILFE - AEBBSRITE
M A H£AR®T6,000,0000T c ZEFBREENE
HARM154,520,000t 07 B ERER - 12012
F12A318  AEEVEMBENFEKE -
HEBRBOTERNEREZHE  MZxERITER
K AR2012612 A31B AR ERKER - RAREK
76,000,000 T ERITE R F - AR H¥20,000,0007T
K AR #30,000,0007C 8 5 BIR201345 A & 2013
FTAEIHRRHBER - N2013F478 - AEERE
REHRRITE R AR 26,000,0007T E B ER1T
% - % AR %26,000,0007T E KB R20134512
ABEEE -
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(9)

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited 1 El & B %

AARBIIE)

Bank loans and other borrowings
(continued)

At the balance sheet date, bank loans were
repayable as follows: (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group obtained
bank loans of RMB30,000,000 secured by certain trade receivables
of RMB63,854,000. At 31 December 2012, the Group had
collected the full amount of the pledged trade receivables but
did not comply with the loan covenants which required the
Group to obtain written consents from the bank prior to using
the funds for its operations. In April 2013, RMB20,000,000 of
these bank loans were repaid by the Group upon maturity. In
August 2013, the Group received a waiver from the bank in
respect of noncompliance of the loan covenants for the remaining
RMB10,000,000 bank loan which was fully repaid at maturity in
November 2013.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group obtained
bank loans totaling RMB50,000,000 secured by certain trade
receivables of RMB66,802,000. Prior to the maturity of the loans,
the Group had collected the full amount of the pledged trade
receivables but did not comply with the loan covenants which
required the Group to obtain written consents from the bank prior
to using the funds for its operations. In August 2013, the Group
received waivers from the banks in respect of noncompliance
of the loan covenants for these bank loans and the loans of
RMB50,000,000 were fully repaid at maturity by December 2013.

At 31 December 2013, bank loans totaling RMB10,000,000
(2012: RMB15,000,000) were secured by independent guarantee
companies to which the Group was charged a total of non-
recoverable guarantee fees of RMB520,000 (2012: RMB360,000)
during the year ended 31 December 2013.

SRANAERAF

28

(c)

RITERREMER (F)
REER  RTERNERBRAOT :
(%)

HE2012F12A318EFE - AEERBIRTE
A AR¥30,000,0007C + AETESERFIBBAR
#63,854,0007T 1E A - 2012128318 -
AEED BRI ERE S EKKIE  BXEZ
FTERELHERTE  EAEEPAREECIERLEE
sﬁ C BARBRITEERE c R2013F4A7 -

2 L RITE T K ARE20,000,0007T E A B HES
AASEEER - KN2013F8A - XEERTETE
REFHED RHRITE R A K%10,000,0007TH
SIRTTEA R - BERIEER2013F 11 ABEERE -

nnk EE ‘—L

HE2013F12A31B IEFE - ARERERTE
M HBEE AR KES0,000,0007  AE T E 5 EKRGRIA
AR ¥66,802,000TtE AR - REREIHRT - &
SEE2BKMEEIFE S EUGRIE @ B FE=T
BEREERTE - E$%§bﬁﬁ%§%ﬁ$?ﬁﬁ“%§%

WA BARBRITE@MRE - K2013F8A » &
;‘ElEJE$&¢Exwﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ’vgﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%

% M A R #50,000,0007T & # 2 2013412
A2 BRI E o

M2013%F12A318 AE BMBEAARY
10,000,0007T (20124 : A R #15,000,0007T) &)
RITERBEBUERARRHRER  MARERE
F2013F 12 A3 AL FEHZERAAIXNMN T A
W ERE S £ ARS520,0000T (2012F : AR
#360,0007T) °
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(d)

(e)

29
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(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

Bank loans and other borrowings 28 HRITERKEMMER (&)
(continued)
Significant terms and repayment schedule of (d) ZRXEERNEAXKRRERY
entrusted loans
At 31 December 2013, entrusted loans are repayable as follows: M2013F12A318 * ZEBERWERBRAT :
2013 2012
RMB'000A R¥ T RMB'O00AERKT T
Within 1 year or on demand 1FAIRER 40,500 =
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBE2FER 50,000 -
90,500 -
The entrusted loans were unsecured, interest-bearing at 5.6% to Lt ERAEER  HFEFE56%E12.0%ME -
12.0% per annum.
Significant terms and repayment schedule of other (e) HERNWEXERRERD
borrowings
As at 31 December 2013, a loan of RMB60,000,000 was 20134128318 » —% A R #60,000,0007T #9
unsecured, interest bearing at 12% per annum and repayable in ERAEER - REFE12.0%5 8 RER20155F
February 2015. 2AEE-
As at 31 December 2013, a loan of RMB6,494,000 from Gold M2013F12A31H —ERBEEHMARE
Hero was unsecured, interest bearing at 6.06% per annum and 6,494,000 K B X A M - 1R F F %6.06%5t
repayable within one year. BRENR—FAREE -
Deferred government grants 29 EIEBTRES

In December 2013, the Sichuan Province Mianyang City Youxian
District Finance Bureau provided conditional government grants
of RMB31,048,000 to the Group. Such government grants are
conditional to meeting certain tax payment thresholds by the
Group for the three years ending 31 December 2015. Should the
tax payment thresholds not be met by the Group, the government
grants are repayable to Sichuan Province Mianyang City Youxian
District Finance Bureau by August 2016.

2013612 A+ W)II& & Ml & BUR m A S
B R A G 8 BT R A KR #531,048,0007T © 17
HZERNTHMESFAREBE £20155F12H31H
IE=AFEEIEFTARIIER - HAEE o WA
EEREEDNZSEATIIE - NEBENR201658
R RIS % BT H A6 (852 T 701148 4855 ThoRs (L @ B
B e
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30 Capital, reserves and dividend 30 EX - #ERRE

(@) Movement in components of equity (a) HERIBHEE
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of REBGEERNZED HH%E&HEXZF’EJ ﬁ%ﬂ’\]%
each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out RERGEEREDR - ARAERIERIHRE
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of S BB R E R EBH T T

the changes in the Company’s individual components of equity
between the date of incorporation and the end of the year are set

out below:
The Company RN
Share-based
Exchange payment  Accumulated
Share capital ~ Share premium reserve  Capital reserve reserve losses Total
DRGRER
B REVEE B EARE BiREE ZitEg @zt
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ik AREFT AREFT ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARBFT ARETT

At 22 February 2013 (date of #201352A228

incorporation) (M) - - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income 2ENGEE - - 97) - - (23,823) (23,920)
Transfer from Engen upon HRERBTEE

replacement of share option #BRARe

scheme 31 - - - (7,659) 7,659 - -
Issue of shares upon the Corporate A% BARERTRI

Reorganisation 30(c)() 827 - - 297,495 - - 298,322
Shares issued under share option  RIZEIETEI%IT 300K

scheme o) 30(cl)il) 80 71,579 - - (7,659) - 64,000
At 31 December 2013 201348124318 907 71,579 (97) 289,836 - (23,823 338,402

(b) Dividend (b) BE
The directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the EERBNRNEZ2013F 128318 LEFERE »

year ended 31 December 2013.
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BT ¥R PR

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

BX - mERKE ()

Share capital () m=RK
Authorised and issued share capital JETE KRB BEITIRA
Nominal value
of ordinary
Par value No. of shares shares
HE BRBEE LEREE
HK$E7T HK$#E T
Authorised: EE
At 22 February 2013 (date of 7201352 H22H
incorporation) (FEfpksz B EE) 0.10 300,000 30,000
Increase in share capital on 19 March 7201343 A 19 B i
2013 0.10 99,700,000 9,970,000
At 31 December 2013 72013412 H31H 100,000,000 10,000,000
(equivalent to RMB8&,071,000)
(FHER AR¥8,071,0007T)
Issued and fully paid: ERTREHE :
At 22 February 2013 (date of 7201352 H22H
incorporation) (FEffARSZ B ER) 0.10 1 =
Issue of shares upon the Corporate A BHBEITIRGD
Reorganisation 0.10 10,224,999 1,022,000
Issue of shares under share option RIE A e T 21251 TR D
scheme 0.10 1,013,000 101,000
At 31 December 2013 72013412 H31H 11,238,000 1,123,000

(equivalent to RMB907,000)
(SR AR#907,0007T)
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

30 Capital, reserves and dividend (continued) 30 ¥4 - #FERKRE (&)

(c)  Share capital (continued) () B (&)

(i) The Company was incorporated on 22 February 2013 (i) NRER2013F2 A22 B - JEER
with an authorised share capital of HK$300,000 divided 7K %300,0007 7T + % 43,000,0008% & f&
into 3,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each. On the same date, EER1VETHRGD - AB - —REER
one share of HK$0.1 was allotted and issued at par. Upon 0.1 JT 89 AR 7 R T fE Ac 3% R 8617 - 122013
completion of the Corporate Reorganisation on 19 March FIA1IABESHETKE  AARIK AR
2013, the Company became the holding company of the EERER AT - R2013F38198 © &
Group. On 19 March 2013, the authorised share capital of A B #51#3%99,700,0000% F fX E E0. 175 7T
the Company increased to HK$10,000,000 by the creation R B #5574 FE AR AN #2802 10,000,0007%
of additional 99,700,000 shares of HK$0.1 each, rank pari T ZERMNETEEEARFREER
passu with the existing ordinary shares of the Company BRE=BEREHMMA - RAA - &2£10,224,999
in all respects. On the same date, a total of 10,224,999 BREREBECNBTHRNEIREED KX
shares of HK$0.1 each were allotted and issued at par. BAT °

(ii) At 1 January 2012, 31 December 2012 and 1 January (ii) 201251818 ~ 2012912 A31H %2013
2013, the share capital in the consolidated statement FIANR  GEaRREHRANKRAEER
of changes in equity represented the share capital of S HIRA o 420104 + 10,000/% & ik & &
Engen. In 2010, 10,000 ordinary shares of Engen with RIETHRE L BRIVIZEABEEITUERS
US$1 each were issued at par for US$10,000 (equivalent 10,0003 7T (FHEF N A R#67,0007T) © 7
to RMB67,000). On 29 May 2012, 225 ordinary shares 201255R29H * B¥17225BREE A
of Engen of US$1 each were issued for the settlement 1ZETMBE LB - i WEERIL
of contingent consideration liabilities arising from the EERNSIAREBEEE -

acquisition of Xiangbei.

(i) Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders (iii) BEERSKREN2013F2AIBEBAENE
of Engen passed on 1 February 2013, the shareholders ERABR BReRFHLERSHEERE
of Engen approved the sub-division of ordinary share of BITRAREREEI.00ETTHEBR S
US$1.00 each in the authorised and issued share capital P A100M B R EE0.01E TR B -
of Engen into 100 ordinary shares of US$0.01 each. EEEARDOIFE REBERERT
Immediately following the stock split referred to above, £ %5,000,0001k & — Rl KRG - B8R
Engen is authorised to issue a maximum of 5,000,000 HEE0OIEL MESHE BT A&
shares of a single class each with a par value of US$0.01 B%10,225% 7T (A R ¥68,0007T) © 5 &
and the issued share capital of Engen became US$10,225 1,022,500 GAREE0.01E LA ©
(RMB68,000) comprising 1,022,500 shares of US$0.01
each.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT



30 Capital, reserves and dividend (continued)

(o)

(d)

(i)

Share capital (continued)

(iv)

(v)

On 19 March 2013, all shareholders of Engen transferred
their holdings in the issued share capital of Engen to
the Company in consideration for the shares allotted
and issued by the Company as part of the Corporate
Reorganisation. Following such transfer, the Company
became the holder of the entire issued share capital of
Engen.

On 16 October 2013, Mr. Yu Jiangiu exercised the share
options of the Company (see note 31) to subscribe for
1,013,000 shares in the Company at a consideration of
RMB64,000,000 of which RMB80,000 was credited to
share capital and the balance of RMB63,920,000 was
credited to the share premium account.

Nature and purpose of reserves

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign currency differences

arising from the translation of the financial statements of

operations with functional currency other than Renminbi. The

reserve is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set

out in note 2(t).

Notes to the Financial Statements

+ EWEN
A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

30 BEX - RERKE ()

(c)

(d)

A (48)

(iv)

M20135F3R198 - fE R ¥ EHN —
7 Be2BERESHESNESBETRA
MRS E T ARR - AQ AR EAMETT
BRINERHRE - REHAEER  KARAIKA
Be2HEEITRAMIFTAA °

(v) MR2013F10816H » e @ R X £ 7 &
ANAGEEBKRERWNZE) ARBEAE
A A1,013,0000 - REAARK
64,000,0007T © H & A R#80,0007T E 72
ABA K #5258 A R #63,920,0007T B 52 A
BEAD (B R o

HENMEERBE

[E 5%

ERREEREREYIEAARERINGEEENER
BTSRRI LR P BIMNEZHE - ZREBREHN
2O E ST RRERE ©
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30

(d)

(ii)

AARBIIE)

Capital, reserves and dividend (continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
Capital reserve

On 11 January, 2011, Gushan granted share options for the
purchase of an aggregate of 3,000,000 of its ordinary shares
to nine employees of Jinxin pursuant to Gushan’s share
option scheme. Based on the Binomial Option Pricing Model,
the estimated fair value of the options at grant date was
approximately US$0.36 (RMB2.36) per share option. The amount
of share-based payment expense recognised for these options
was RMB3,596,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011. On
12 October 2012, Gushan cancelled such share options due to
its privatisation from the New York Stock Exchange (see note 31).
As a result of such cancellation, the Group fully recognised the
previously measured but unrecognised share-based compensation
cost of RMB2,647,000 at the cancellation date. Such share-based
compensation expenses in 2012 were recorded as contributions
from shareholder in capital reserve since the Group had no
obligation to settle the share option awards.

On 31 December 2012, Gushan waived an amount of
RMB77,700,000 due from True Excel Holdings Limited (“True
Excel”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Engen. The directors of
the Company accounted for the waiver of debts as an equity
contribution to the Group and recorded as capitalisation of
amount due to Gushan within capital reserve.

On 29 May 2012, 225 new shares of Engen were issued in
connection with Xiangbei’s partial achievement of the earn-out
arrangement for the year ended 31 December 2011. The fair value
of such Engen’s ordinary shares was estimated to be approximately
RMB4,090,000 and was credited to share capital (nominal value)
and capital reserve. Subsequently, the Group entered into an
agreement with Gold Hero and Silver Harvest and agreed that no
further new ordinary shares of Engen will be issued in connection
with the acquisition of Xiangbei.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT

30 BEX - RERKE (8)

(d)

(if)

HENEERAZE (&)
RN 1o

R2011E1 A1E - A2 REBEHEBREGTERNAE
TEHEEREBRENREES $£3,000,0008 & 12
TEiR e BIEIZHA] BEEEEN ZFER
RRE L BN G A TFENOASE M EREC.363E
7T (AR#2367T) - BLE2011F12A318IEFE
W% F AR A LARR (D A BT AN SR R
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(d)

(iii)

(iv)

Capital, reserves and dividend (continued)
Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
Share premium

On 16 October, 2013, Mr. Yu Jiangiu exercised the options
granted under the share option agreement entered into between
the Company and Mr. Yu Jiangiu on 23 August 2013 (“Yu Share
Option Agreement”) in full to subscribe for 1,013,000 shares in
the Company at a consideration of RMB64,000,000 of which
RMB80,000 was credited to share capital and the balance of
RMB63,920,000 was credited to the share premium account.
RMB7,659,000 has been transferred from the Share-based
payment reserve to the share premium account in accordance with
policy set out in note 2(p)(ii).

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. Under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the share premium account
of the Company are distributable to shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course
of the business.

Statutory reserves

According to the PRC rules and regulations, the Company’s
operating subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the net
income after tax, as determined in accordance with PRC GAAP,
to a general reserve fund and an enterprise expansion fund until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital of the
respective companies. The transfer to the reserves must be made
before distribution of dividends to shareholders can be made.
These amounts are not available for distribution to shareholders,
except upon liquidation.
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30 Capital, reserves and dividend (continued)

(d)  Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(v) Share-based payment reserve
Share-based payment reserve represents the portion of the fair
value of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group at grant date that has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in note
2(p)ii).

(e) Distributable reserves
The Company was incorporated on 22 February 2013 and there
were no distributable reserves as at 31 December 2012. At 31
December 2013, the aggregate amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of the Company amounted to
RMB337,495,000.

(f)  Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurate with the level of risk and by securing access to
financing at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to
the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions
affecting the Group.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net
debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total interest bearing borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
The Group defines “capital” as all components of equity.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT
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30 Capital, reserves and dividend (continued)
(f)  Capital management (continued)

The net debt-to-capital ratio was as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

30 BX - HERKE (&)
() EBEXEHE (E)
FEBEARLEDT :

Note 2013 2012
ffiZf RMB'O00AR¥FT RMB'000ARETFIT

Bank loans and other borrowings  $R7TE R R EH (& 28 424,374 175,000
Loans from related parties BB 24 84,948 94,315
Obligation under finance leases BMERSETHESE 27 60,000 =
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B RE RIS EEEE 25 78,615 19,609
Net debt HETE 490,707 249,706
Total equity BT 612,805 298,322
Net debt-to-capital ratio FEFEARLE 80.1% 83.7%

Except for the banking facilities which require the fulfilment of
certain covenants as disclosed in note 28, neither the Company
nor any of the subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

KI8T B R BB TE TR IRITRESN
AR A Ko AR AT BT B8 X B3 52 B N SR e N 0 B AR AR
FEFTIR °
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31

AARBSIE)

Share-based compensation

On 31 October 2011, the board of directors of Engen granted
Mr. Yu lJiangiu, the Controlling Shareholder, options to purchase
up to 1,013 ordinary shares of Engen at an exercise price of
RMB63,179 per ordinary share (“Engen Share Options”). The
Engen Share Options are exercisable immediately and will expire
on the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. Any ordinary
shares of Engen issued upon the exercise of the Engen Share
Options will be subject to a right of first refusal in favour of Engen
before such ordinary shares can be validly transferred. The Group
determined that the estimated fair value of the Engen Share
Options at grant date was RMB7,561 per share. The amount of
share-based payment expense recognised was RMB7,659,000
for the year ended 31 December 2011. The expected volatility
of 50.5% used in estimating the grant date fair value was based
on the average volatility of several listed companies in the metal
recycling sector. Since Engen did not have a trading history at
the grant date, the Group estimated the potential volatility of
the ordinary shares price by referring to the average volatility
of these comparable companies because management believes
that the average volatility of such companies was a reasonable
benchmark to use in estimating the expected volatility of Engen’s
ordinary shares. The fair value of the underlying ordinary shares of
Engen of RMB21,235 per ordinary share was based on the results
using an income approach. The expected dividend yield of 0%,
a suboptimal factor of 2.2 and a risk-free rate of 3.855% were
used as other key assumptions. No Engen Share Options were
exercised during the year ended 31 December 2012. The Engen
Share Options outstanding at 31 December 2012 had a remaining
contractual life of 8.8 years. On August 23, 2013, the Company
entered into the Yu Share Option Agreement with Mr. Yu Jiangiu
which the Company agreed to grant to Mr. Yu Jiangiu options
to purchase 1,013,000 shares in the Company at the exercise
price of RMB63,179 per share. The purpose of the Yu Share
Option Agreement is to replace the share option agreement (the
“Engen Option Agreement”) dated 31 October 2011 entered into
between Mr. Yu liangiu, Gushan and Engen, pursuant to which
Mr. Yu Jiangiu was granted options to purchase shares in Engen
as disclosed above. The replacement of Engen Share Options by
Yu Share Options is accounted for as a modification of the original
grant of Engen Share Options. The modification has no impact on
the profit or loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013 as there was no incremental fair value related to the options
granted at the date of replacement. The options under the Yu
Share Option Agreement have been fully exercised on 16 October
2013 (see note 30(c)(v)).
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31

Share-based compensation (continued)

On January 11, 2011, Gushan granted share options for the
purchase of an aggregate of 3,000,000 of its ordinary shares
to nine employees of Jinxin pursuant to Gushan's share option
scheme (“Gushan Share Options”). The exercise price is US$0.61
per ordinary share. One third of the options will be vested in 12
months from the date of grant, one third will be in 24 months
from the date of grant and the remaining one third will be in 36
months from the date of grant. The estimated fair value of the
Gushan Share Options at grant date was US$0.36 (RMB2.36)
per share. The expected volatility of 82.48% was based on the
implied volatility of the options in the market which were based
on Gushan’s shares as the underlying asset. The expected dividend
yield of 0.87% was used as an assumption.

On 12 October 2012, Gushan cancelled such share options due
to its privatisation from the New York Stock Exchange. As a result
of such cancellation, the Group fully recognised the previously
measured but unrecognised cost of RMB2,647,000 at the
cancellation date. Such share-based payment expenses in 2012
were recorded as contribution from shareholder in capital reserve
since the Group had no obligation to settle the share option
awards.
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32 Commitments 32 EIE
(@) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December (a) HM2013F12A31BRENMXEEER
2013 not provided for in the financial statements BB RABBNEREELT :
were as follows:
2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ T RMB'000AERBFT
Contracted for BEETAY
— property, plant and equipment — W - BB KRG 67,387 95,363
- land use rights — T bfE AR 14,000 56,216
Authorised but not contracted for EEBEERTLN 120,698 4,490
202,085 156,069
As at 31 December 2013, each of Tongxin, Baohe Xinshiji and 2013128318 » & - RAFH L MR
Baohe Taiyue had a Management Consultancy Agreement with BMEHBEARMELZI—HEEBERBZ (5
Baohe Fushan (collectively (the “Management Consultancy [ZEBTREERBZE] Bt RANE LR ZMHE
Agreements”), pursuant to which Baohe Fushan agreed to provide Z RUNFHLMRMEUREZERS - EA
various services to Tongxin, Baohe Xinshiji and Baohe Taiyue. THEM - 8 - RAET A AR A R R B AR
In return, each of Tongxin, Baohe Xinshiji and Baohe Taiyue is MRME L MITHERERE - RED B RER
committed to pay Baohe Fushan an administrative fee and a RS  CRFNE tH 42 R0 AR R0 22 B9 2% b6 P15 BT 78
consultancy fee which amounts to 20% and 30%, respectively, of A R BN 20% K230%  ZEEHERM B HE ST
all government grants and subsidies obtained in connection with 20155 R —EAM °
the facility of each of Tongxin, Baohe Xinshiji and Baohe Taiyue.
The Management Consultancy Agreements will remain in force till
2015.
(b) At 31 December 2013, the total future minimum (b) 72013%F12831H ' BEEEIBS K

lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of staff quarters and office
premises are payable as follows:

SENTIHEEEHERETHRRRE
HERBBFRNOT :

2013 2012

RMB'000 A R¥F T RMB'O00ARETFT

Within 1 year 15E 1A 438 13
After 1 year but within 5 years 1FBESFER 5 -
443 13

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT
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(o)

33

Commitments (continued)

At 31 December 2013, the Group had outstanding purchase
agreements with some of its suppliers and was required to
purchase from the suppliers an aggregate of 60,410 metric tons
(2012: Nil) of scrap copper with the price to be determined at the
time of purchases based on market price.

Contingent liabilities

At 31 December 2012, Jinxin entered into a cross guarantee
agreement with a bank in respect of bills payable facilities totaling
RMB40,000,000 granted to Jinxin, a supplier and two customers
of Jinxin (“Contracted Parties”) which remain in force so long
as the Contracted Parties have drawn down under the banking
facilities. According to the cross guarantee agreement, the
Contracted Parties that are a party to the guarantee arrangement
are jointly and severally liable for all and any of the borrowings
of each of them from the bank which is the beneficiary of the
guarantee.

At 31 December 2012, the directors did not consider it probable
that a claim will be made against the Group under any of the
above guarantees. The maximum liabilities of the Group as at 31
December 2012 under the cross guarantees are the aggregate
amount of the facilities available for the two customers and a
supplier of RMB25,000,000.

On 14 November 2013, each of the Contracted Parties entered
into a supplemental agreement with the bank. Pursuant to the
supplemental agreements, the Contracted Parties agreed to
place deposits in an aggregate amount of RMB40,000,000 to
secure the bills payable facilities in full. Jinxin is responsible for
RMB15,000,000 and other Contracted Parties are responsible for
the remaining RMB25,000,000. On the same day, the Contracted
Parties deposited the required amounts under the supplemental
agreements. As such, the Group had no contingent liabilities
under the cross guarantee arrangement at 31 December 2013.
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34 Related party transactions 3 BHARS
In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in BRI 52 5 B 75 TRk E b 20 ) 42 BB MO B B 5 B RN -
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following REBNARFEE RBEFEF LA TERES AR
significant related party transactions during the current and prior Z °
years.

(a) Significant related party transactions (a) BXREEAIRZ

0) Financing arrangements (i) RE T HE

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKEFIT

Interest expense on loan from Gushan ERA-E X okilks\ba 5,297 5,359
Interest expense on loan from Gold Hero £ Z Ex8IF EH % - 318
Interest expense on loan from Silver Harvest 4R & A F| B 52 143 265
5,440 5,942
(i) Sales, purchases and processing fee expenses (i) HE  RBRINIERX
2013 2012

RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKEFIT

Sale of recycled copper products to SHEBERER T EMNTH

Guangzhou Taiyue 28,461 -
Sale of communication cables to HEBEEETEMNEY

Guangzhou Taiyue 15,741 -
Sale of recycled copper products to Sichuan 4% F5 4 2 & P9 || Fi it 42

Xinshiji (Note) (Hf$3E) 170,247 =
Purchase of power transmission and M)l 3t 42 i B XAl B 48

distribution cables from Sichuan Xinshiji (e

(Note) 195,817 -
Purchase of recycled copper products from  [a)P0) 1| ¥t 42 88 B B AL R E &

Sichuan Xinshiji 5,353 -
Processing fee charged by Guangzhou BN RBIAER I T &

Taiyue 9,350 =
Processing fee charged by Sichuan Xinshiji 70/ &7t 42 Y B i 10 T 2 51,174 =
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34 Related party transactions (continued)
(a) Significant related party transactions (continued)

(ii) Sales, purchases and processing fee expenses (continued)

Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group sold recycled
copper products in the amount of RMB170,247,000 to Sichuan
Xinshiji and purchased from Sichuan Xinshiji power transmission and
distribution cables in the amount of RMB195,817,000. As the recycled
copper products sold by the Group to Sichuan Xinshiji were used or
were expected to be used by Sichuan Xinshiji as raw materials for its
production of power transmission and distribution cable products, for
financial reporting purposes, the RMB170,247,000 sales of recycled
copper products by the Group have not been recognised as revenue in
the consolidated income statement of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 but as a reduction of the cost of the Group’s purchases
of power transmission and distribution cables.

(iii) Other related party transactions

Notes to the Financial Statements
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BRBLERS (&)
EXREBRAERS (&)
WE  FWEMIERE (F)

fisk : BZE2013F12A31BIEFE - AEBEERBA
R#170,247,0007T #) 8 4= $2E & F 1) | #r it 42 -
N 1A 9|6 42 BR S S BA R #5195,817,0007TH)
AREE - ARAKEE T 0)IF 42 6 8 £ 40
E R B AR S TE AR e U )| 3t A2 PR R MR A £ 2
AREBER  BUBHREME  AEEHES
EERMNEEEARE170,247,0007T 7 R A
EEHEZE2013F12A31BIEFEMNGE KERE
RBRABA - BERAAEBRBALESENHK AR

LibEET R 5

\

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKETIT

Administrative fee and consultancy fee

paid/payable to Baohe Fushan TRENEAE

BT/ RIS L&

2,725 =

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the directors of the Company as
disclosed in note 9 and certain of the highest paid individuals as
disclosed in note 10, is as follows:

FTEEEASHHM

AEBTEEEABNHH (BENKEIPTHES
RNFPRRBEFHIFRIE - LA FE10PT K EE S
FETESFHMALHOZRE) ST :

2013 2012
RMB'000A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKEFIT

Short-term employee benefits % HAfE B M5 1,920 283
Retirement scheme contributions RRET IR 39 8
Share-based payments LARRAD B B A 1~ 51 - 2,148

1,959 2,439

Total remuneration was included in “staff costs” (see note 7(b)).

BEMEBEREITEIRA]A (RIEE7(D)) -
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35

(a)

AARBIIE)

Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate, currency and commodity
price risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s business.

The Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to manage
these risks are described below.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over
a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customers’ past
history of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and may take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade debtors are normally due within 90
days from the date of transaction. The Group also offers revolving
credit to its customers. The revolving credit, which provides for a
maximum credit limit that may be outstanding at any one time,
is determined based on such factors as current market conditions
and the customers’ credit history and current ability to pay.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT
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(a)

(b)

Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer rather than the
industry in which the customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. At 31 December
2013, 10.3% (2012: 17.2%) and 22.1% (2012: 55.0%) of the
total trade debtors and bills receivable was due from the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of
any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the balance sheet after deducting any impairment
allowance.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade debtors and bills receivable are set
out in note 22.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual maturities
at the balance sheet date of the Group’s non-derivative financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and
the earliest date the Group can be required to pay.
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EEFRBREFZEASEEAZERNELNES AR
BFESE - N2013F 128318 ESEREEKE
B 4 %8 R H10.3% (2012F : 17.2%) K22.1%
(20124 : 55.0%) EHRIAAREBNRAT P R
RAARBFP I -

WAEBEMAFERR  KREERRERES
BERBERTESREELHBRTMRERBRN
BRME(E

BRAAEEMMASRE SRR EEEEME LN
EERBROE T EEREHNHE22 -

RBE SRR

AEENBRRREHERERBDES TR - B
RE#FACReRENEIECHBBIRHAR
EofE  WENHEBRERRARDESHK -

TRAGAEEFRNTESRBERNGEEBRNHT
AREBER  ZFBEDERGRAFTRRER
(BREEAERMNES (HEFE) &5 B AR X5
HHORBNR) RAKERBRNROZEAH
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

35 Financial risk management and fair values 35 HERKBEEREMIANATE

of financial instruments (continued) (&)
(b)  Liquidity risk (continued) (b) RBELEK ()
2013
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
BRAFRREER
More than2 ~ More than 1 Balance sheet
years but less  year butless  Within 1 year carrying
than 5years  than 2 years or on demand Total amount
MEAL —FH0LE —FRH BESER
EEHUR MELR REXR @t HREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T AR®T R ARET T ARET
Trade and other payables B 5 N EMEMNZIE - - 420,671 420,671 420,671
Obligations under finance leases ~ FIEME FHE(T 40,222 15,398 15,187 70,807 60,000
Bank loans and other borrowings  $R{TEZ R A MRt - 124,407 330,830 455,237 424,374
Amounts due to related parties  JE{SEEEH FUE - - 30,200 30,200 30,200
Loans from related parties RE B ARER - - 90,391 90,391 84,948
40,222 139,805 887,279 1,067,306 1,020,193
2012
Contractual undiscounted cash flow
BRRTERER
More than 2 More than 1 Balance sheet
years but less year but less  Within 1 year carrying
than 5 years than 2 years  or on demand Total amount
REMAE —FE —FRA% BEABR
AFHA R AR REX et REE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFTT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEMHIE = = 253,810 253,810 253,810
Bank loans and other borrowings  $R1TE R R A gk = = 183,158 183,158 175,000
Amounts due to related parties  JE{BaHE 7 708 - - 145,662 145,662 145,662
Loans from related parties RE B AR EH - = 100,136 100,136 94,315
= - 682,766 682,766 668,787
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35 Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from interest bearing
borrowings. Borrowings at variable rates and at fixed rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s

Notes to the Financial Statements

A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

35 BBEREERERTIANAFE
(#4&)

() F=E R
AEENFERRABREZRRTEMBR - ZERTE
BREPRSAEBEAZREREMNEAR KAF
EREER AEBREEBERNMRMELSEHN
() °

(i) FREE

TRAMAEEET SEFNEERF XA

total interest bearing borrowings at the balance sheet date: &
2013 2012
Effective interest Effective interest
rate Amount rate Amount
1 ES &8 B FI= x|
% RMB'000 % RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEBR:
Bank loans and other BITERREM
borrowings B 9.87 424,374 7.27 175,000
Loans from related parties KB @8 T HIE 6.54 84,948 6.21 94,315
Obligations under finance ~ FAME T
leases BE 6.66 60,000 - -
Total fixed rate borrowings & BfE 45 569,322 269,315

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, all of the Group’s interest
bearing borrowings are fixed rate borrowings, no sensitivity
analysis on interest rate risk is presented.

(i) BRE DT
MR20135 K2012F12 8310 » REBW AT E

BB BE LB - BAEZ25IFEE B GRE D

#r o
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B R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmAEHEN

35

(d)

(ii)

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT

AARBIIE)

Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily related to
receivables, payables and cash balances that are denominated in
United States dollars, currencies other than the functional currency
of the operations to which the transactions relate.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the balance
sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in United States dollars (“USD") in
connection with entities with functional currency in Hong Kong
dollars (“HKD"). For presentation purposes, the amounts of the
exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate at
the balance sheet date. Differences resulting from the translation
of the financial statements of the subsidiaries with functional
currency other than RMB into the Group’s presentation currency
are excluded.

35

(d)

BREREERERTANAFE
(#4&)

B & e

AEBEARREIERIAET (REXZEANES
M REE B AN EH) FHER YR - B
ARBReESREROEERR -

P R B E R

TRAJREENEEAMAZOEERR - %%
E¥RRIDEBLET (DET)) RMEEENE
i ((Ex)) HENERREEXBEME
EoRE2HMENTME - BREAARETIIR - I
NEERRANERGE - MEWIENARETR
WEEEENIE AR BHRR AL EEZREE R
EENZRWEAEER -

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKEFIT

United States dollars E
Cash and cash equivalents ReLHEEEIER 58 3,277
Loans from related parties KB REEE N E R (84,948) (94,315)
Amounts due to related parties FE At A EE: 77 O (14,877) (9,645)
Net exposure arising from recognised assets B #ERE & & B &FTE 4 8

and liabilities L (99,767) (100,683)

Sensitivity analysis

As HKD is pegged to the USD, the Group considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to
be insignificant.

(i)

GURE DM

MABTERETAS - AEERABTRET 2R
ExSHHABRTRAK -



35

(e)

()

Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the Group's
products are scrap copper. The Group is exposed to fluctuations
in the price of copper which are influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. Fluctuations in the prices
of raw materials could adversely affect the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses copper futures contracts to mitigate
its exposure against price fluctuations of copper raw materials.
The market value of futures contracts is based on quoted market
price at settlement or balance sheet date. The Group does not
have significant outstanding copper futures contracts as at 31
December 2013 and 2012.

Fair value measurement
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of the reporting period on a
recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technigue as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

35

(e)

(f)
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BEEREERESMIANQTE
(#4&)

2 fm B AR LB

EEASEERFMANEZRMEAER - AEE
TR B 2 R R b 8 1 B SIGHROR, T B B B R RHE
R BRI R o R MBS K Bh Al 8% 3 748 & B 19 Bf
BRABA AT E - XEEFERINHES LR
H &S EMRHER RS NERR - HESH0T
BERUNEEXEEABRANTSHREREE - K
FEER2013F R2012F12A31B W EEARFER
WERAAEEL -

BATEFAENEREENRAR
DNEEE

TREJIAEESRTEANAFE  ZETARRK
SHRBEELELENE - U RRBEBEIBRE
ERIF 1R FEABEERN=RAFERE - &
RVEFEDENERTIELEUNTHETERA
BABBNABREREZHRETE

— FRMEE : EERS 1R ARBE (BIRF
ERMRAREEREBENERTISNARER
BRE) FFEHRTE -

- 2 fh1E - RSB 2R AR (BlRELE
IFEOAERG A B BXFERE
AT BRBABBTTENATE - THEH
SR ABBERETIZERNEAZRE -

— B3R EREATTERESAMET
EHATMHE
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

35 Financial risk management and fair values 35
of financial instruments (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued) (f)

—
=

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during the
current and prior years.

Assets/(liabilities)

BEEREERERTANAFE
(#4&)

DR EFTE (B)
BRATEIENSREERAR (4)
AT ERHE (H)

RAFERBEFE - 1 2R3F 2 M mEH -

gE (&)

2013 2012
Level 1514 Level 188 14%
RMB'000A R¥Ft RMB'000ARETIT

Derivative financial instruments TESMIA
— Copper futures contracts —EEAL

- 3)

Level 3534k Level 3534k
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKETIT

Contingent consideration liabilities arising ~ E4 B E/5A FTRIA
from business combination RE&E

The movement during the current and prior years in the balance
of Level 3 fair value measurement is as follows:

RAEE BB & B B3R A TEE & ARG
EREBNT

2013 2012
RMB'000 A R¥ Tt RMB'O00ARKEFIT

Contingent consideration liabilities EEEEEESHNRA

arising from a business combination REAE
At 1 January ®1A1R - 1,880
Addition 0 - -
Changes in fair value recognised in profit i8R PERHAFEE S

or loss (note 6(b)) (FfizE6(b)) - 2,211
Settlement #=ER - (4,091)
At 31 December M12A31H8 - =

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT



35

()

(i)

(ii)

Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The valuation technique used in the determination of fair values

within Level 3 of the hierarchy, as well as the key unobservable
inputs used in the valuation models is as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements

+ EWEN
A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

BHREREEREMTANQFE
(#4&)

35

(f) 2FHEE (&)
(i) BATEFAEBNEREEREE (B)
DFEREE (H)
EEFEIRR AR FEM A EERN - AR

BEANERN ARG ABLT

Inter relationship inputs
between key unobservable and

Type Valuation approach Key unobservable inputs fair value measurement
EENTIHEHAERK

EE thER % EENRABEGEAR AFEFEZENBERE

Contingent The fair value is — Discount rate (7.14% to 8.03%) The estimated fair value of

consideration calculated by applying

contingent consideration

liabilities the income approach  — A probability adjusted level of liabilities is positively correlated
the cumulative net income of to the estimated net income
Xiangbei for the three-year of Xiangbei and valuation of
period ended 31 December 2013 Engen’s ordinary shares and
negatively correlated to the
— Valuation of Engen’s ordinary discount rate
shares
IARBAEE NHEREAWAETE —HHRE (7.14%%8.03%) SARBEENGF AT EEMIL
EDFRA R B & BB
— MR B ZE2013612A318 1 BT IEHARERETRETAH
ZFHMRTDFRANAIRELT B
BIKF
—BeTRIRNEE

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments carried
at cost or amortised cost are not materially different from their fair
values as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

(ii) BRAFEUIINEIRT RSB T AN AFE
20134 K2012F12 8318 » 1R Ak AN 8k # §5 5 AN

RN ERMTARAEYEAATEYESAE
Pl
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35

(9)

(i)

(i)

36

(a)

AARBIIE)

Financial risk management and fair values
of financial instruments (continued)

Estimation of fair values
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

The fair value is estimated as the present value of future cash
flows, discounted at current market interest rates for similar
financial instruments at the balance sheet date.

Derivatives

Copper futures contracts are measured using quoted prices in
active markets for identical financial instruments.

Business combinations
Acquisition of Baohe Xinshiji

(i) On 30 November 2012, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to acquire all of the equity interests of
Baohe Xinshiji at a cash consideration of R\MB30,000,000
from Sichuan Xinshiji and Baohe Fushan. Baohe Xinshiji
was established in September 2012 and owned as to
80% by Sichuan Xinshiji and 20% by Baohe Fushan.
The purpose of the acquisition is to extend the depth of
the Group’s copper business vertically in order to benefit
from synergy effect from sale of power transmission and
distribution cables. During the relevant periods, Sichuan
Xinshiji was one of the customers for the Group’s recycled
copper products. The acquisition of Baohe Xinshiji was
completed on 31 December 2012. The consideration was
fully settled by the Group in March 2013.

(ii) The effect on turnover and net profit of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012 as if the acquisition had
occurred at the date of establishment of Baohe Xinshiji on
19 September 2012 is an increase of RMB71,442,000 and
a decrease of RMB213,000 respectively.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT

35

(9)

36

(a)

BREREERERTANAFE
(#4&)

NHENGE

tRERRMER

b=[113

AFPEEAGEAOARBESRERE REUSR
TARNBHEBRITISMNEMBRAE) -

PTETHE

MMEARNNBELREMSTHARSRTANRE

HE -
EKE6t
WSt B 4R 0 37 tE 42

(i) 20126118308 - AEE L —HEE
ik - LR @ R 1B A R#30,000,0007T [
7o ) 1] 3 tt 42 A0 AR A = 1L W R 4R 0T HHE 42 A9
2 EOARE o (RFDFTH 4D 201269 AR
PO )| 3t A2 B80% - RAIE ILEA
20% - WIEMEBEWR AT EEMERANSE
EREBHRE - HiMZERIHEXEEE
TEIRE BRI RUE - AR - I 4D
2 AEEBEREMNEPZ — o WHR
MEFH A B R2012F 128318 EMK ° %
EER2013F3A 28 HRE -

(ii) R R WS PR RN it A2 A S B 82012479 A
19B B %4 - HAEBEEE2013F12A31
HIEFEZE£HEREFNZE S R AN
AR¥71,442,00070 &E A AR 213,000

JT °



36 Business combinations (continued)

(a)

Acquisition of Baohe Xinshiji (continued)

(iif)

Notes to the Financial Statements

A #%5  ak B o
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(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

36 ¥XBEE6t (E)

(a) WAL (&)

The estimated fair value of the assets acquired and (i) RURE R ERTEE A E R ATEE B Ea A E
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition: ANFAE
Fair value
AFE
RMB'000 A R#EF 7T
Property, plant and equipment W - WE REE 8
Prepayment for property, plant and equipment Y% - BB REERTER K 13,500
Intangible assets mEE 7,598
Inventories TE 262
Trade and other receivables & 5 R H M FEWGRIA 55,523
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHEIER 134
Trade and other payables B 5 REMBERFRIE (29,656)
Amount due to Sichuan Xinshiji FEF )| it 42 B9 IR (16,797)
Current taxation RNERTHIE (787)
Identifiable net assets AR & EFE 29,787
Goodwill EES 213
Total consideration BRE 30,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired and net cash B UEERIR S RIRSZ(EIER
inflow arising from the acquisition of Bache RS BB AR AN tH AC FTEE AE Y
Xinshiji FIRE R 134
The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Baohe Xinshiji WERMTECMEENAEXERRERE T
is mainly for the benefit of synergy effect of expansion into 4 ST RO 17 R AR BV AT BR

downstream copper cable business.
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(BRmAEHEN

36 Business combinations (continued)

(@) Acquisition of Baohe Xinshiji (continued)

(iv)

Prior to and in connection with the Group’s acquisition

of Baohe Xinshiji, Baohe Xinshiji entered into certain

agreements with the relevant parties:

(a)

Baohe Xinshiji Asset Transfer Agreements

Baohe Xinshiji entered into an asset transfer
agreement with Sichuan Xinshiji on 21 September
2012, pursuant to which Sichuan Xinshiji agreed
to transfer all of its production equipment
and intangible assets to Baohe Xinshiji for a
consideration of RMB30,000,000. As at 31
December 2012, the date of acquisition of
Baohe Xinshiji, RMB10,000,000 of such assets
have been transferred to Baohe Xinshiji which
are taken into account in the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired presented in note
36(a)(iii) above. In March 2013, Bache Xinshiji
entered into a supplemental agreement with
Sichuan Xinshiji under which the consideration of
RMB30,000,000 in respect of the asset transfer
agreement will be adjusted if the relevant assets
cannot be successfully transferred or installed. As
at 31 December 2012, remaining commitment
of RMB20,000,000 is included in the capital
commitment of the Group disclosed in note 32(a).

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT

36 ¥XBEE6f (E)

s R AR AT (4])

(iv) AEERERBFRIFTCLCHERENS @ F
AL G EBRER T RISLE T ek

RIS B EE R

R AN F A A2 7201249 A21H £ 71
Nt e ZT - EEEZEHZ
Bt - W)t e REEREmME
FEZREBEREFRAE TR
4 - R{E A ARY30,000,0007T °
UG BE (R A0 3Tt 42 B #A20124F12
A318B - ZEEE (@B RARE
10,000,0007T) B ¥ % T (R F0 ¥
400 & B &t A L XXM FE36(a) i) 2
PR BB HAFEENDTE
A o 20134538 » (R ATt 42 64
M) FT AT — D e g - B
Ut - WA R EE R BRI ES R R
£ RAEHAEEEEBENREA
R #30,000,0007C# F LAFHE - K
20129 12A318 * A TEEARE
20,000,000 T B BIEEARE BB &
RAEER (M EE32() T E) °
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36 Business combinations (continued)

(@) Acquisition of Baohe Xinshiji (continued)

(iv) (continued)

(b)

(0)

Xinshiji processing Agreement

Baohe Xinshiji entered into a processing agreement
in September 2012, pursuant to which Sichuan
Xinshiji was engaged as the contract manufacturer
of Baohe Xinshiji pending the completion of
Baohe Xinshiji facility. According to the processing
agreement, Baohe Xinshiji has agreed to supply
copper raw materials to Sichuan Xinshiji and
Sichuan Xinshiji is agreed to source other ancillary
raw materials and provide processing services to
Baohe Xinshiji for a fee. The processing fees are
negotiated and agreed between the parties on an
order-by-order basis.

Baohe Xinshiji Project Investment Agreement

Baohe Xinshiji and Baohe Fushan entered into an
agreement (the “Baohe Xinshiji Project Investment
Agreement”) on 19 September 2012 in connection
with the Baohe Xinshiji facility in the industrial
park within the Youxian Economic Development
Zone, Mianyang, Sichuan Province (the “Youxian
Industrial Park”). Pursuant to the Baohe Xinshiji
Project Investment Agreement, Baohe Fushan, as
the administrator of the industrial park, agreed to
assist Baohe Xinshiji in its application for the land
use right certificate for a piece of land located
in the Youxian Industrial Park. According to the
Baohe Xinshiji Project Investment Agreement, the
land will be granted with an estimated price of
RMB21,000,000. Separately, Baohe Xinshiji agreed
to pay an amount of RMB13,500,000 to Baohe
Fushan as an infrastructure development fee.

A #%5  ak B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

36 ¥XBEE6t (E)

(a) WAL (&)

(iv) (&)

(b)

FE A0 T 55

RAFTH A2 PA2012F9 AT T
Waak - UL AR AT A AR R
FXRT » T3 i 40 78 & B AR AN %
WaMmEREER - REMT %
o R AL R E )t 4
PSR R AR - T P01 T A2 B R
BRIE E AL R AR R ) (R AN
REIM TR - WUELE R - 1
TERFNTIRZRGTEBHREHTE o

IRANFTIEACIE B R A e

IR FNF 42 R AR T E L R201249
A19B Zh AL A M) & BT ILE
BEREEANNITER (LTI 2
B ) BRIt 42 R T — 1 15
# ([RAMFtLIEE R ERZE]) -
BEBERFFMtLEERERZE R
MELWEAIEXBEERA) AE
12 B AR 0 3 tt 42 3k — 1R Az AR AL T
E B A B T4 FR RS L (S AR o
BB RAFLIERRE RS - Z
4 0 #5 /B A R #21,000,0007T H
o BHN RAFH LR E AR A
B AR¥13,500,0007TE A
EMBEERE -
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36 Business combinations (continued) 36 XEKEHf (&)
(@)  Acquisition of Baohe Xinshiji (continued) (a) WEARMHMAL (&)
(iv) (continued) (iv) (#8)
@ leshe sG] Projee: s Ageemen © REFEEEERERE (E)

(continued)

Furthermore, if Baohe Xinshiji pays taxes in BEAN B R AN tH A2 B AR B9 B RKGER
excess of certain threshold in each of 2013, 2014 Hi20134F + 20144 K2015% & &
and 2015, Baohe Fushan has agreed to assist FETPIE  RMEILERE R
Baohe Xinshiji in obtaining subsidies from the RNt 42 HUAS B TR A 8L © 48
government. Conversely, if Baohe Xinshiji does R B R 42 R AR E R Z AT
not meet such tax payment threshold, it may PItE - BIZR (N —EHE R AT
be required to pay an amount equivalent to the BE T B FIE o

shortfall from the tax payment threshold.

As at 31 December 2012, the date of acquisition M2012F12A318 - BURFFH 42
of Baohe Xinshiji, the infrastructure development WIEBE  ERREEREARY
fee of RMB13,500,000 had been paid to Baohe 13,500,0007c B X FARAE 1L -
Fushan and is included in “prepayment for I 5 P 2 51 6 P E B 2 P
property, plant and equipment” in the summary of REBBBMEFRFAIDE  BE
assets acquired and liabilities assumed presented REEEOEA K] A o fBEH A
above. The estimated cost of land in the amount KRN AR®21,000,0007T5t AR EH
of RMB21,000,000 is included in the capital R20124612 8318 8 & KA & R
commitments of the Group as at 31 December (FABTE32(a) PR ER ) o

2012 as disclosed in note 32(a).

In August 2013, Baohe Xinshiji and Baohe Fushan FR20139F8 7 + RN F tH 42 B4R AN
entered into a supplemental project investment BT —HhfxEERE NS -
agreement. Details of the arrangement, as KT HOFER RN ERE
supplemented, are summarised under paragraph (%% -BEREHZEREEERN
headed “Business — Project Investment Agreements Wzl — & -

and Management Consultancy Agreements” in the
Prospectus.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT



36 Business combinations (continued)

(@) Acquisition of Baohe Xinshiji (continued)

(iv) (continued)

(d)

Baohe Xinshiji Management Consultancy

Agreement

Baohe Xinshiji and Baohe Fushan entered into
the Baohe Xinshiji Management Consultancy
Agreement on 19 September 2012 pursuant
to which Baohe Fushan has agreed to provide
various management consultancy services to Baohe
Xinshiji, including handling government filings,
applying for licenses and providing certain other
consultancy services. In return, Bache Xinshiji is
required to pay Baohe Fushan an administrative
fee and a consultancy fee which amounts to 20%
and 30%, respectively, of all government grants
and subsidies that Baohe Xinshiji obtained in
connection with the Baohe Xinshiji facility.

The directors of the Company considered that the

agreements that were in place at the date of the

acquisition had been entered into by Baohe Xinshiji and

the relevant parties under commercial terms. Accordingly,

no separate assets or liabilities have been recognised

in respect of these contractual arrangements under

acquisition accounting.
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36 ¥XBEE6t (E)

WEBRAMF A ()
(iv) (&)

(d) R AN A2 TR R T o

R A0 # t 42 BAR A0 E 1L 20124
9 A 19H 7T 3R A 3t 40 & 12 A RS
sk Bt RFEILRE R
It CiREEEEEERRYE - 2
ERBEBRXHER  AEBRR
ARBHETEMERMRS - R
Bl - RAFHALERRE L
HITBRBREBRE (BFESES A
A OR AN tH 42 FE AR AN R 42 R B ER
B H P A BT #0 Bh I A BE 920% K.
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(RRAEBEIN  RARKFIE)

36 Business combinations (continued) 36 XEKEHf (&)
(b)  Acquisition of Baohe Taiyue (b) WEBRANZRE
(i) On 3 November 2011, Gushan, Engen and other (i) MR2011E11A3R a2 RekREME
shareholders of Engen entered into a sale and purchase CRRELHREERBESFL LT (BF
agreement with Mr. Fan Dunxian and Ms. Wen MEMNEBRREEMAREZ WEERS
Chunxiu, the then shareholders of Guangzhou Taiyue REBUEB=F) I EBEmE - KABEE
and both independent third parties at the time of the MEBORE BNOBEEESROAR
proposed acquisition, to acquire the equity interests of %#10,000,0007C : (i) E H BEITHRZMHE
Guangzhou Taiyue. The purchase price payable included S EIEBEITRA10.63%MWBE LMK G - 1
(i) RMB10,000,000; (i) the issuance of shares of Engen 183,246,000% 7T : K(i)mE 7 #ET®HE
representing up to 10.63% of the total issued share capital 20,000,0000% & #Z iR f5 - 1EfE & 2£2005%8
of Engen at the price of US$3,246,000 to the sellers; and e HERRGELBLER  FTHOFRN
(iii) the issuance of up to 20 million shares of Gushan at 20126529 ABRIEEEHZ - BAE
the price of HK$200 in total to the sellers. Subsequently MEBNERBEENERLDBEUAETYR
and as a result of the privatisation proposal of Gushan, BAEAZMN - MEERLETEE K
the parties agreed to terminate the sale and purchase THARSM - Bt - 5T R20134654
agreement on 29 May 2012 as a significant portion of the VERAEBRIEEEHH -  AELALLTK
proposed purchase price of Guangzhou Taiyue was to be in % NEBR2012F11A308: T2 —1HE
the form of shares of Gushan, which would no longer be Ezm - UWREESMKEARM30,000,0007T
liquid upon the completion of the privatisation, the parties M EM AR S LSRN R A 2
agreed to terminate the sale and purchase agreement A i - (RAMZEHA2012F8 AR - FAEM
on 29 May 2013. Subsequent to the completion of the FHHEES0%  RMEILEB20%  WHE
privatisation of Gushan, the Group entered into a sale MEMNEAT EAMBRAEBREFIR
and purchase agreement on 30 November 2012 to B #mMXERNEEREEELRNBRE
acquire all of the equity interests of Baohe Taiyue at a fE - BEMNFZMEREBBHEANERNES 2
cash consideration of RMB30,000,000 from Guangzhou — o WERMFHEDN2012F12A318 %
Taiyue and Baohe Fushan. Baohe Taiyue was established in B o AEBEBR2013F3AZHIANE -

August 2012 and owned as to 80% by Guangzhou Taiyue
and 20% by Baohe Fushan. The purpose of the acquisition
is to extend the depth of the Group’s copper business
vertically in order to benefit from synergy effect from sale
of communication cables. Guangzhou Taiyue is one of
the Group’s customers for its recycled copper products.
The acquisition of Baohe Taiyue was completed on 31
December 2012. The consideration was fully settled by the
Group in March 2013.

(i) The effect on turnover and net profit of the Group for the (ii) R B IR AN 2R B SZ B BA20124F8 A 13
year ended 31 December 2012 as if the acquisition had HE#4E  HAEEBZE2012612A31H
occurred at the date of establishment of Baohe Taiyue on IFFEEEBERANNZEDRIAEIMAR
13 August 2012 is an increase of RMB6,972,000 and a #6,972,0007T K AR #6248,0007T ©

decrease of RMB248,000 respectively.
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36 Business combinations (continued)

(b)

Acquisition of Baohe Taiyue (continued)

(iif)

Notes to the Financial Statements

A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

36 ¥XBEE6t (E)

(b) WEBAERNZ=E ()

The estimated fair value of the assets acquired and (i) RURE R ERTEE A E R ATEE B Ea A E
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition: ANFAE
Fair value
AEE
RMB'000 A R#EF 7T
Property, plant and equipment Wz - BB REE 2,148
Prepayment for property, plant and equipment Y% - BB REERTER K 9,005
Intangible assets mEE 3,370
Inventories FE8 832
Trade and other receivables H 5 R H M pERGRIE 8,626
Amount due from Mr. Fan Dunxian FEMCEHER LR SRR 3,190
Amount due from Guangzhou Taiyue L) ZR A SRR 7,187
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFEFEIER 18
Trade and other payables B 5 R H M ERRIE (4,496)
Current taxation BNEATEIE (128)
Identifiable net assets AHAFEE 29,752
Goodwill e 248
Total consideration BB 30,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired and net cash BRENReRFASEFEEI R
inflow arising from the acquisition of Baohe Taiyue WERMBEAAEERNFRSRA 18

The goodwill arising from the acquisition of Baohe Taiyue
is mainly for the benefit of synergy effect of expansion into

the downstream copper cable business.

WERMEUMELNHE IR RERE
TR RS X TS 15 R B 4T B ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

AARBIIE)

(BRmAEHEN

36 Business combinations (continued)

(b)  Acquisition of Baohe Taiyue (continued)

(iv)

Prior to and in connection with the Group’s acquisition

of Baohe Taiyue, Baohe Taiyue entered into certain

agreements with the relevant parties:

(a)

Baohe Taiyue Asset Transfer Agreement

Baohe Taiyue entered into an asset transfer
agreement with Guangzhou Taiyue on 24
September 2012, pursuant to which Guangzhou
Taiyue agreed to transfer all of its production
equipment and intangible assets to Baohe Taiyue
for a consideration of RMB30,000,000. As at
31 December 2012, the date of acquisition of
Baohe Taiyue, RMB10,000,000 of such assets
have been transferred to Baohe Taiyue, which
are taken into account of the fair value in the
identifiable net assets acquired presented in note
36(b)(iii) above. In March 2013, Baohe Taiyue
entered into a supplemental agreement with
Guangzhou Taiyue under which the consideration
of RMB30,000,000 in respect of the asset transfer
agreement will be adjusted if the relevant assets
cannot be successfully transferred or installed. As
at 31 December 2012, remaining commitment
of RMB20,000,000 is included in the capital
commitment of the Group disclosed in note 32(a).

Taiyue Processing Agreements

Baohe Taiyue entered into a series of processing
agreements with Guangzhou Taiyue in November
2012. Guangzhou Taiyue is engaged as the
contract manufacturer for production of Baohe
Taiyue's communication cable products pending the
completion of Baohe Taiyue facility. The processing
fees are negotiated and agreed between the
parties on an order-by-order basis.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT

36 ¥XBEE6f (E)

WERARE (&)

(iv) AEEERBERNFBARBLNS - &N

gy

BEGMETTEI LA T

RINZRHE B R Tk

R R201269A24 8 £ FE )
RHEIT—HEEEZENMZE &
b BMNEHRAEEREMAEEE
BEREREE TRAOEM  RE
A AR #30,000,0007T ° A UREER
MEBE 20126128318 * %F
EE (25 A ARK10,000,0007T)
BEZTRASEME  EEFAEX
B 3E36(b) i) 25K B U BB AT 3 B
BEEMNRTFENAN - RN20135F34 -
RAZEBEEM RIS — D7
Wk - Bt WABE S EEEER
ERRTE - AIEEEEEZEHR
AR B A R #30,000,0007T # F A
FAEE o 20125128318 » $ T
& AR %20,000,0007T B BIEEAR
SEMERAEAR (0K E32(a)
FT#ER) o

FHIN T 1

RIEFBH2012F11 A EHEMNRB
RIS — RIM I o FERFZTH
RIEERA  BEMNEBEZREAS
RRER - LWEERNEHOBE
BEEM - MIBAIOHIKRER
HER RS



Notes to the Financial Statements

36 Business combinations (continued)

(b)  Acquisition of Baohe Taiyue (continued)

(iv) (continued)

(0)

Baohe Taiyue Project Investment Agreement

Baohe Taiyue and Baohe Fushan entered into an
agreement (the “Baohe Taiyue Project Investment
Agreement”) on 27 September 2012 in connection
with the Baohe Taiyue facility in the Youxian
Industrial Park. Pursuant to the Baohe Taiyue
Project Investment Agreement, Baohe Fushan, as
the administrator of the industrial park, agreed to
assist Baohe Taiyue in its application for the land
use right certificate for a piece of land located
in the Youxian Industrial Park. According to the
Baohe Taiyue Project Investment Agreement, the
land will be granted with an estimated price of
RMB14,000,000. Separately, Baohe Taiyue agreed
to pay an amount of RMB9,000,000 to Baoche
Fushan as an infrastructure development fee.

Furthermore, if Baohe Taiyue pays taxes in excess of
certain threshold in each of 2013, 2014 and 2015,
Baohe Fushan has agreed to assist Baohe Taiyue in
obtaining certain subsidies from the government.
Conversely, if Baohe Taiyue does not meet such
tax payment threshold, it may be required to pay
an amount equivalent to the shortfall from the tax
payment threshold.

As at 31 December 2012, the date of acquisition
of Baohe Taiyue, the initial infrastructure
development fee of RMB9,000,000 had been paid
to Baohe Fushan and is included in “prepayment
for property, plant and equipment” in the summary
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed presented
above. The estimated cost of land in the amount
of RMB14,000,000 is included in the capital
commitment of the Group as at 31 December
2012 as disclosed in note 32(a).

A #%5  ak B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

36 ¥XBEE6t (E)

(b) WEBERM=M ()

(iv) (&)

(@)

RANZR A B & s

RAFEBRRME LR201259 A
278 BEAL R B AL T B &9 R A ZR
MERMEE —HHE ((RAZTS
BEHKEMZELD - BIERMNZE M
BEREWHZ  ®RMEL (EAT
XEEEA) RERBRA R 5
— BRI TEBR R TR
BT ERAEE - BREBRMEMIE
BB ZLHBEEOAR
#14,000,0007C i E- 5 5N R
MRBRAERNRANEILIMFARE
9,000,000 TERERREBERE -

IEAN - B RN R A AN A AR BB
20134 - 20144 K2015%F & F &Y
EFPIE - RAELE REHBR
MEVEREE T EAHE - 8K
HRMET AR = B2 A P
AZAE N —SEE R AT IR T
RFEMFIEA -

M2012412A318  BHRFIZHIKL
BEE VILERIEERBAR
#9,000,0007C B 4 FRFIE L -
T 7 STFT 2 51 8 P Uk BB K B T
EEBBERERFATDE  BFE

BEMTEMAR] A o HET LA
AN AR #14,000,0007T 5t A A& 5
M2012E12A31H 8 & RN & E R
(PR EE32(a) AT ER) -
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(BRAAEBEIN  UARKFIE)

36 Business combinations (continued)

(b)  Acquisition of Baohe Taiyue (continued)

(iv) (continued)

(0)

Baohe Taiyue Project Investment Agreement

(continued)

In August 2013, Baobe Taiyue and Baohe Fushan
entered into a supplemental project investment
agreement. Details of the supplemental agreement
are set out in paragraph headed “Business —
Project Investment Agreements and Management
Consultancy Agreements” in the Prospectus.

Baohe Taiyue Management Consultancy
Agreement

Baohe Taiyue and Baohe Fushan entered into
the Baohe Taiyue Management Consultancy
Agreement on 27 September 2012 pursuant to
which Baohe Fushan has agreed to provide various
management consultancy services to Baohe Taiyue,
including handling government filings, applying for
licenses and providing certain other consultancy
services. In return, Baohe Taiyue is required to
pay Baohe Fushan an administrative fee and a
consultancy fee which amounts to 20% and 30%,
respectively, of all government grants and subsidies
that Baohe Taiyue obtained in connection with the
Baohe Taiyue facility.

The directors of the Company considered that the

agreements that were in place at the date of acquisition

had been entered into by Baohe Taiyue and the relevant

parties under commercial terms. Accordingly, no separate

assets or liabilities have been recognised in respect of these

contractual arrangements under acquisition accounting.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT

(%)

(c)

36 ¥XBEE6f (E)

B R M= (4)

RMFEBIABRE WE (F)

201348 H  RMFBERME
WEISZ — (s H B RE W - 1

R FIERNBRE 125 —
REREHE R EEBER R —

B

RANFEBEIRER BE

RFZR B ERR A S 1L R201289 A
27 BET M IRFIZE B R R 5%
EUt - RAE WL R E AR A 2R IR
HEEEEEMRE - 2ENER
X HER - AFERR - ARRH
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BERE (FEeES R ARMNE W
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37

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2013

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB
has issued a number of amendments, new standards and

interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31

37

Notes to the Financial Statements

+ EWEN
A #%5  ak B o
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRAABEN  RARKTIE)

EEMERERREE2013F124
31B L FEEMMIEET ~ HER
KEREBARELENTE

HEAPBHRERTIHEH  BRe£EEeD
MM ZENEE2013F 128318 LFEE M AER
Hﬁ%%ﬁ%¢ﬁﬂﬂmm%ﬂ~%ﬁW&%ﬁo

December 2013 and which have not been adopted in the financial ZEBREN T REAEEE @S] - £RIRZ
statements. These include the following which may be relevant to o
the Group.
Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
RT5IBBS &R0
R R
Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27, B RS AR50 « BURR A TS RS 2 1 January 2014

Investment entities F125RKERE

Amendments to IAS 32, Financial instruments:

Presentation Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities

Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount B e

disclosures for non-financial assets Al % B RE
Amendments to IAS 39, Notation of derivatives and A

continuation of hedge accounting Eobr-ragiofiZ
IFRIC 21, Levies BRI BRERERE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.

FHERIE2TREEIAN - REEE

Bl St ERIE2RERTA  2HTA -

25| -2 HEER AR EHAH

ATERFIGRERTA - F2HEES

FTERIEIRIEETIAN - EFITETAR

&2

EU

201451 A1H

1 January 2014
201451 A1H

1 January 2014
20141 A1H

1 January 2014
20141814
2015 - #E 1 January 2014
20141818

AEBEAEFGEZFER - ML RFTRENRIIR
ERMERPELANTE - LS HERRRMNZE
BFT - MM RMRB IRt WAL KE
EERMBANBRERATE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRmAEHEN

38

(a)

(b)

AARBIIE)

Subsequent events

The following significant events took place subsequent to 31
December 2013:

Listing of the Company’s shares

On 21 February 2014, the shares of the Company became
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, pursuant to
which 525,001,600 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were issued
at a price of HK$1.13 per share by the Company. The total
gross proceeds from the issue of these shares amounted to
HK$593,252,000 (approximately RMB474,602,000).

On 18 March 2014, 6,824,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
were issued at a price of HK$1.13 per share by the Company
pursuant to the partial exercise of the over-allotment option by
the sole global coordinator. The total gross proceeds from the
issue of these shares amounted to HK$7,711,000 (approximately
RMBS6,169,000).

Capitalisation issue

On 21 February 2014, the Company capitalised an amount of
HK$156,208,000 (approximately RMB124,966,000) standing
to the credit of the share premium account of the Company by
applying such sum in paying up in full at par of 1,562,082,000
shares, each of which to be allotted and issued to the shareholders
of the Company appearing on the register of members of the
Company on 28 January 2014 in proportion to their respective
shareholding.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited FEI£BE RN AER AT
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(a)

(b)

RESH

THEAEHR2013F12 531 BB A -

2NN il

MR2014F28218 © AR & &5 KRB R AT E IR
EW- Bl ARARGRAREIA3E TEAT
525,001,600/% F X EIH0. 175 LA BIEAR - A& %
TZERMFTS I EE /R593,252,0007 7T (KA
R #474,602,0007T) °

M2014F3R188 » WEBREMRBAATHITE
WRBERARE  ARAIETRREI3ETET
6,824,000 SRR EEO. 1B TH LB o LM EETT
ZEMRD TS HIEAE AT,711,0008 T (AR
6,169,0007T) °

BARLERT

M2014F2H218 N2 AR H % B RAER
#4156,208,000/8 7T (41 A R *124,966,0007T)
BREA UHBEEREANZAEBEZEAE
1,562,082,000/& iR 15 + % ZE M7 IR AN 2D FIARER
B BH R fI A0 8 R EIT T R2014F1 A28B 4
I AR RIRR R & i 9 AR IR o



A summary of the audited consolidated results and assets and liabilities of

Four Year Financial Summary

PO F 5 2

AEEREMEFENKERRAEEAREERARERE

the Group for the last four years is set out below T
Results E 4
Period from
6 August 2010
Years ended 31 December to 31 December
BZE12A3181LEE 2010
20108 A6H
F2010F
2013 2012 2011 12 A31HEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETTT ARETTT AREETTT
Turnover ] 2,959,004 1,513,133 1,396,375 205,059
Cost of sales THER A (2,828,880) (1,401,445) (1,321,586) (191,697)
Gross profit EF 130,124 111,688 74,789 13,362
Other revenue Emhlas 280,565 55,886 28,575 2,276
Other net income/(loss) Hiyg A (E18) 428 (1,509) 2,412 26
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEAY (9,107) (5,927) (4,227) (1,311)
Administrative expenses TR (63,640) (20,413) (22,553) (1,360)
Profit from operations ST 338,370 139,725 78,996 12,993
Finance costs BASE AR (33,330) (16,850) (11,920) (720)
Profit before taxation TR A 305,040 122,875 67,076 12,273
Income tax FTiS#i (59,492) (30,583) (18,396) (2,899)
Profit for the period/year R T 245,548 92,292 48,680 9,374
Exchange differences on translation of & 3Fh R & EE
financial statements of non-PRC SRR AER EZRE
entities 4,935 (72) 7,222 285
Total comprehensive income for B/ FAEERESEE
the period/year 250,483 92,220 55,902 9,659

ANNUAL REPORT 2013 £}

181



Four Year Financial Summary

4 [Eas]
PO B S 2
Assets and Liabilities BEEREE
At 31 December
A12A318
2013 2012 2011 2010
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFTT ARETTT ARETTT
Total assets wEE 1,694,092 993,035 598,576 312,610
Total liabilities Fy=F (1,081,287) (694,713) (476,912) (269,658)
Net assets FEE 612,805 298,322 121,664 42,952
Notes: N

1. The financial information of the Group for the period ended 31 December 2010,

and years ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012 are extracted from

the accountants’ report of the Group as set out on Appendix | to the Prospectus.

1. RNEEEHZ2010F12A318 LM REZ2011612A831
HX%2012F12 A31 B IEFEMMBER TSk 8 BREM
- AN NEEN SRS -
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